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Introduction
Who we are

College Hospital, and Guy's and St Thomas'
and South London and Maudsley NHS
Foundation Trusts. KHP is one of only five
accredited AHSCs in the UK and brings
together an unrivalled range and depth of
clinical and research expertise, spanning
both physical and mental health. Our
combined
strengths
are
driving
improvements in care for patients,
allowing
them
to
benefit
from
breakthroughs in medical science and
making sure they receive leading edge
treatment at the earliest possible
opportunity.

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust is one of London’s largest and busiest
teaching hospitals. We have a reputation
for providing excellent local healthcare in
the London boroughs of Lambeth and
Southwark, and a range of specialist
services for patients across South East
England and beyond.
King’s is recognised nationally and
internationally for its work in liver disease
and
transplantation,
neurosciences,
diabetes, cardiac services, haematooncology, and fetal medicine. We are a
major Trauma Centre and a Hyper-Acute
Stroke Centre, and also play a key role in
the training and education of medical,
nursing and dental students.

King’s works closely with other healthcare
organisations, such as local Primary Care
Trusts and neighbouring hospitals, in
delivering strong networks of healthcare
locally.

King’s is part of King's Health Partners
(KHP) Academic Health Science Centre
(AHSC), a pioneering collaboration
between King's College London, King's

For
more
information,
www.kch.nhs.uk or
www.kingshealthpartners.org
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Chair’s Statement
During my first few
months as Chairman of
King’s we have seen
some
tremendous
changes. As well as the
Health and Social Care
Bill becoming an Act,
and all the consequent
changes to the NHS
that this entails, King’s has itself been
undergoing a sea change.
We have
welcomed three new Non-Executive
Directors to the Board in Graham Meek,
Christopher Stooke and Faith Boardman
and bid farewell to long-serving Non-Execs
Maxine James, Robert Foster and Martin
West. I would like to take this opportunity
to thank our three departing Board
members for the contribution all of them
have made to King’s over the years.
Ahmad Toumadj, our long-standing
Director of Capital, Estates and facilities
retired in April 2011. His legacy is obvious
to see in the wealth of new buildings
around the Denmark Hill site and his
experience will be sorely missed, though
he continues to work with us on some
commercial development projects.

since our accreditation in 2009, we want to
achieve ever greater collaboration
between mental and physical health and
well-being and make it easier for staff
across the different partner organisations
to work together. With this in mind, we
are now looking at the possibility of
creating an integrated academic healthcare
organisation that will enable us to deliver
on the benefits for patients we envisaged
at the outset.
We have a unique
opportunity to create one of the best
health organisations in the world focused
on and reflecting our diverse local
population here in South London. It is also
one of our key objectives as an Academic
Health Sciences Centre to reduce health
inequalities in our local communities by
focussing particularly on their needs. As I
write this we are still at an initial stage, but
if all our Boards agree the Strategic Outline
Case that is being prepared this summer,
we could be going out to wider
consultation later this year.
My first year has been challenging and
exciting in equal measure, and I would like
to take this opportunity to thank my
predecessor, Michael Parker for all his
good work over the years and for leaving
the Trust in such good shape as I take over
the Chair.

This has been another successful year for
King’s in terms of finance and
performance. We have been busier than
ever before, with the level of emergency
admissions in particular putting the
hospital under pressure. It is a reflection
of the hard work and dedication of King’s
staff that despite this we met all our access
and performance targets.

Last but by no means least, we held
elections for our Council of Governors late
last year, and I am delighted to welcome
new Council members. Governors will
have an increasingly important part to play
in our future, and I am delighted that our
members have elected such a strong
Council to help us through what I am sure
will be another challenging year ahead.

Our involvement with King’s Health
Partners has also reached an important
stage. Whilst much has been achieved

Professor Sir George Alberti
Chairman
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Hours in A&E’ was broadcast last summer.
The decision to take part was not taken
lightly, and we were well aware of the
potential risks in allowing cameras access
to our busiest department. However, we
felt that the general public would be
interested in what goes on in an inner city
A&E and Major Trauma Centre, and we
were right - the programme was watched
by more people than any other programme
on Channel 4, it was critically acclaimed
and has won plaudits from across the
world. The second series is being shown
this summer, and we hope public reaction
will be just as positive.

Chief Executive’s
Statement
Welcome to King’s
Annual Report for
2011/2012. When
we set our financial
targets at the end
of last year, we
knew
how
challenging
it
would be for us to do any more than break
even, but I am happy to say that we are
reporting a surplus of £2 million. For the
last three years we have made in-year cost
savings of between £35 and £45 million,
and each year it has been progressively
more difficult to find that level of
efficiencies, but we have achieved
efficiencies of £33.5 million this year.

Our staff
At a time when staff salaries have been
frozen for the last two years and pension
contributions are being increased, our staff
deserve
our
admiration
and
congratulations for continuing to provide
care for patients of a consistently high
standard. One of our key cost-savings
measures has been to reduce agency
spend. Consequently, many nursing staff
are choosing to work overtime - the extra
income will be welcome, but it does mean
they are busier and more tired. This has
been reflected in the most recent staff
survey where it is little surprise that job
satisfaction has fallen. However, one of the
great things about King’s is that we are a
values-based organisation, and all our
values are about improving the quality of
care we deliver, so I am confident that our
staff will be sustained through these times,
which are difficult for everyone.

We have begun to reap the benefit of the
Transformation programme launched last
year, which is providing sustainable savings
in areas such as outpatients, where the
appointment system has been changed to
improve both speed and ease of use for
patients, whilst reducing the resource
required to manage the process.
Performance
Our performance was exemplary in all
areas this year. We met all performance
targets, including all our access and waiting
targets – one of only a few Trusts across
the country to achieve this. We improved
our MRSA performance significantly inyear, and although we failed to meet the
C.Diff target, our progress in the second
half of the year was deemed encouraging
by Monitor.

Volunteers
The expansion of our volunteers
programme this year has also been very
successful, with many patients and staff
recognising the value of someone who can
spend more time interacting directly with
patients and making them feel happier
during their hospital stay. We have already
doubled the number of volunteers from
250 to 500, and the programme has been
so successful that we now plan to increase
this to 1,000, so that every ward and every

King's reputation
All the signs are that King's is a rapidly
improving Trust. Patient approval ratings
on the NHS Choices website are running at
95%, and gauged by feedback on social
networking sites, our reputation has never
been higher.
The first series of the TV documentary ‘24
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outpatient clinic has at least one volunteer
each day. One of the most evident aspects
of this very innovative programme is the
way that it has engaged a very broad
spectrum of the communities that we
serve. Our commitment to ‘effortless
inclusion’ is all about treating everyone
with equal care and compassion, and our
volunteers play a huge part in this.

Centre. We have already made progress in
working more collaboratively with our
partners in integrating services across the
two acute Trusts, beginning to bring
together physical and mental health and
wellbeing for patients with long term
conditions such as diabetes or dementia,
and in translating academic research into
clinical treatment much faster for the
benefit of our patients. We are now
looking at the case for creating a single
academic healthcare organisation to
maximise the benefits for our patients of
joint working. The decision as to whether
or not to progress further with this will be
a very important matter for our Board of
Directors and other stakeholders later this
summer and beyond. What is, I believe,
beyond dispute is that academic hospitals
(where research and clinical trials are the
norm) deliver higher quality of care and
better outcomes for all patients.

Board changes
This year has seen significant changes to
our Board of Directors and a new Council
of Governors, and guiding both bodies we
have a new Chair in Professor Sir George
Alberti, whose knowledge and experience
have helped guide us successfully through
a year that has been both challenging and
rewarding.
King's Health Partners
We are continuing to develop King's Health
Partners, our Academic Health Sciences

Timothy Smart
Chief Executive
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Part 1: Directors’ Report
Financial Review
2011/12 was the second full year of
implementing the Trust’s Medium Term
Financial Strategy, designed to address the
requirement to improve overall efficiency
in light of the restrictions on public
expenditure. This year the Trust had an
efficiency target of £38.5 million,
representing 6.4% of turnover. 87% of this
target was achieved in-year and, together
with increased income from high demand
for the Trust’s services, allowed the Trust
to achieve a surplus for the year. The
surplus was £3.7 million before exceptional
items, a small improvement on the
previous year and broadly in line with the
Annual Plan. Impairments on completed
capital projects during the year generated
exceptional items of £1.6 million, leaving a
retained surplus of £2 million (see table 1
for summary details).
Table 1: Key financial indicators
Full year (£’000)
Income
Expenditure
Operating surplus
Net Financing costs
Public dividends
Share of loss of associate
(GSTS Pathology LLP)
accounted for using the
equity method
Surplus

£628,615
£607,594
£ 21,021
£ 10,083
£ 8,038
£

816

£ 2,084

The overall liquidity position of the Trust
was in line with the plan value. There was
also some slippage in planned capital
schemes. These schemes will progress in
the new financial year. This was offset by
delays in receiving payment due to activity
levels being above contracted values. The
Trust has been able to maintain a position
where there was only a minimal
requirement to access its short term

working capital facility.1 The combined
effect of the surplus and liquidity has
resulted in the Trust achieving a year-end
financial risk rating of 3 using the Monitor
system, which is a medium level rating.
Value for money and improved efficiency
As noted above, Divisions and corporate
departments delivered 87% of the planned
efficiency schemes during 2011/12, a
similar rate to 2010/11. For 2012/13, the
Trust will be concentrating on conducting
integrated service reviews, led by
clinicians, to improve patient pathways
and experience. In addition, reviews are
being carried out on the medical and
nursing workforce to ensure that resources
are concentrated in the areas of highest
need. Performance is peer reviewed as
well as considered regularly by the
Executive and the Board Finance and
Performance Committee, facilitated by the
deployment of the Trust’s new online
performance management system.
Trading environment and financial risks
Despite commissioner attempts to manage
demand and to redirect patients to more
community based healthcare provision,
demand on the Trust’s facilities increased
again during the year.
Designation as both a major Trauma and
Stroke Centre has also increased the level
of patients referred to the hospital. The
pressure on facilities caused by the high
level of emergency demand affected the
ability to treat elective patients. Future
demand projections indicate that there is a
need to expand capacity on the Denmark
Hill site to manage this demand. Schemes
are currently being identified to ensure this
is in place prior to the coming winter. The
Trust is also working with Guy’s and St
Thomas’ and other providers in South East
1

The Trust has in place a £35m working capital
facility, to protect it from the effects of any
short-term fluctuations in cash flow.
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London to provide the most clinically
effective arrangement of services for the
local population.
The continued economic downturn means
that there will be pressure on NHS income
streams for the foreseeable future. It is
also likely that central funding streams will
be squeezed, tariffs will fall even after
allowing for inflation, and commissioners
will seek to reduce activity. The combined
effects of these restrictions and associated
risks are dealt with in the Trust’s Medium
Term Financial Strategy, which is currently
in its fourth revision. It is intended to
leverage the benefits of King’s Health
Partners (KHP) by means of service and
back office consolidation and to diversify
income by expanding commercial activities
both in the UK and overseas. KHP is
currently preparing a Strategic Outline
Case to assess the advantages of closer
integration between the constituent
Foundation Trusts up to, and including, full
merger into a new organisational form.
Non-clinical activities
KCH Commercial Services Limited, the
company established to oversee our
commercial operations, has now been in
operation for 5 years. During that time, the
first of the operating companies, Agnentis
Limited, has continued to grow. It has
expanded its product range to include
software solutions specially configured for
use in the NHS. Trading conditions have
been difficult for GSTS Pathology, a
venture between King’s, Guy’s and St
Thomas’ and Serco plc. due to the slow
pace of pathology consolidation. The
partners agreed a new business plan in
December 2011 which will return the
venture to an operating surplus within the
next two years. King’s Management
Limited was established to pursue
commercial opportunities in overseas
markets and has been successful in
acquiring business in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and the United Arab Emirates.

Changes to accounting policies
The Trust is required to apply IAS 20 to the
treatment of government and other grants.
As detailed in note 1.8 of the Annual
Accounts,
from
2011/12
a
new
interpretation is applied. The new
interpretation represents a change in
accounting policy and the Trust has
therefore applied the new policy
retrospectively, through a prior period
adjustment, in accordance with IAS 8.
Cost allocation requirements
The Trust has complied with the cost
allocation and charging requirements set
out in HM Treasury and Office of Public
Sector Information guidance.
External audit services
Following a competitive tendering
exercise, the Council of Governors at its
meeting in May 2011 resolved to appoint
Deloitte LLP as the Trust’s external auditors
for a period of three years. The Trust
incurred £84,000 in fees for audit services
in relation to the statutory audit for the
year to 31 March 2012 and £2,000 in
respect of regulatory reporting.
So far as the Trust’s Directors are aware,
there is no relevant audit information of
which the auditors are unaware. The
Trust’s Directors have taken all of the steps
that they ought to have taken as Directors
in order to make themselves aware of any
audit information and to establish that the
auditors are aware of that information.
After making enquiries, the Directors have
a reasonable expectation that the NHS
Foundation Trust has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason they
continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the accounts.
Borrowing and capital plans
Monitor set a prudential borrowing limit
for the Trust of £124.1m. Due to the
adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards, the majority of this
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limit is consumed by past expenditure on
the private finance initiative (PFI) schemes
for the Golden Jubilee Wing and Ruskin
Wing.
The Trust did not undertake any further
borrowing in the year.
In light of the need to expand capacity in
order to accommodate increasing demand,
it is likely that the Trust will undertake
further borrowing in the near future. This
will fund a number of new projects
including a significant development in
Critical Care facilities and increased
inpatient beds and theatre capacity.
Further investment will also be made to

enhance research and academic activities
related to our tertiary specialities, and also
to complement the facilities available in
our partner organisations in the Academic
Health Sciences Centre.
We will continue with our policy of
maintaining our asset base by committing
capital expenditure on existing assets at a
level broadly consistent with their rate of
depreciation.
Full details of financial performance in
2011/12, the responsibilities of the
Accounting Officer and a statement from
the auditors can be found in Part 7: Annual
Accounts, on pages 156-208.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Operating and
Performance Review
2011/12 was also a challenging year for
King’s in terms of performance, a situation
mirrored across London and the NHS.
Key performance highlights in 2011/12
Despite unprecedented growth throughout
the year in emergency attendances,
admissions, and patient acuity, the Trust
succeeded in delivering key national and
local targets for Emergency Department
(ED) wait times, 23 and 18 week referral to
treatment, cancer waits, cases of post 48
hour Meticillin-resistant Staphylococcus
Aureus (MRSA) bacteraemia, risk adjusted
mortality and venous-thromboembolism
(VTE) assessment. In addition, the Trust
maintained a downward trajectory for
cases of Clostridium Difficile (C-Diff) in-year
and reduced the overall number of cases
below 2010/11 levels, although it was still
above the 2011/12 quota of 75.
Emergency (A&E) ‘4 hour wait’
performance
Despite the continued, increasing demands
on the Trust, wait times for Type 12 A&E
2

Type 1 A&E departments are consultant led
24 hour services with full resuscitation facilities

attendances were above the 95% target in
each quarter. The Trust’s overall
performance against the ‘4 hour wait’
target for all A&E type services was
95.79%.
This performance challenge has been
particularly significant as the Trust has also
managed the development of the King’s
Major Trauma Centre and become the
Hyper Acute Stroke Centre for South East
London.
Access targets
King’s delivered the Department of Health
target to treat admitted patients within 23
weeks of referral in each month of
2011/12 (95th percentile patient). This was
also the case for the treatment of nonadmitted patients within 18 weeks of
referral (95th percentile patient).
In addition, King’s delivered the National
Cancer Waiting Time Targets, ensuring that
suspected cancer and cancer patients were
treated in a timely manner.
Contributing to this achievement was the
Trust’s success in continuing to reduce
and designated accommodation for the
reception of accident and emergency patients.
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average non-elective length of stay. This is
predominantly due to improved patient
medical and surgical assessment unit
models, including an acute assessment
unit.
Infection control
In 2011/12, the Trust continued to reduce
the number of C-Diff cases. Following a
21% improvement in 2010/11, the Trust
recorded a further improvement of 8% in
2011/12, reducing the number of cases
from 106 in 2010/11 to 97 cases in
2011/12. However this was not enough to
achieve the 2011/12 quota of 75 set by
Monitor. The Trust has developed an
action plan and performance structure to
reduce the number of C-Diff cases further
in 2012/13.
The Trust reduced the level of post 48 hour
MRSA bacteraemia from 16 in 2010/11, to
5 in 2011/2012; a 69% improvement. The
quota set by Monitor for 2011/12 was 6.
Other
In 2011/12 the Trust recorded a risk
adjusted mortality rate of 53 against an
expected score of 100, which was an
improvement on the 2010/11 score of 61.
The continued support and steer from the
Medical Director to ensure that all

mortalities are discussed and learned from
has been a key driver for delivering this.
Finally, the Trust ensured that it delivered
above the nationally set target of 90% of
patients being assessed for VTE and will
focus further on appropriate treatments
for assessed patients in 2012/13.
Further
details
on
key
quality
improvements
and
the
Trust’s
performance against goals agreed with
commissioners can be found in the Quality
Account 2011/12, from page 65.
Cleaning, Catering and Transport Services
The Trust has contractual arrangements
with Medirest for the provision of cleaning,
catering, portering and linen services. In
2011/12, negotiations began for a new
agreement between Medirest and the
Trust to encourage sustained improvement
and patient focussed delivery of these
essential services. This will link to patient
perception and satisfaction, as determined
by the ‘How are we doing?’ survey. During
the year, the contract with the Trust’s
patient transport provider was extended
for a period of 12 months to allow for indepth planning around the London 2012
Olympics.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Regulatory Ratings
Report
The Trust makes a quarterly submission to
Monitor which includes a financial and
governance risk rating for that quarter.
The Trust began 2011/12 with an AmberGreen governance risk rating following
breach of the Clostridium Difficile (C.Diff)
quota for Quarter 1. At the end of Quarter
3 this rating shifted to Red due to three
consecutive quarter failures of the quota.

However, Monitor moderated this to
Amber-Red in light of the significant
measures implemented by the Trust which
resulted in a downward trajectory for the
number of C.Diff cases. The Trust
submitted a Red rating in Quarter 4.
Reducing the number of C.Diff cases is one
of the Trust’s top priorities for the coming
year.
Tables 2 and 3 on the next page outline the
financial and governance ratings for
2010/11 and 2011/12.
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Table 2: Monitor Financial and Governance Ratings 2010/11
Annual Plan Q1 2010/11
2010/11
Financial risk 3
3
rating

Q2 2010/11

Q3 2010/11

Q4 2010/11

3

3

3

Governance
risk rating

AmberGreen

AmberGreen

Amber-Red

Green

Green

Table 3: Monitor Financial and Governance Ratings 2011/12
Annual Plan Q1 2011/12
2011/12
Financial risk 3
3
rating

Q2 2011/12

Q3 2011/12

Q4 2011/12

3

3

3

Governance
risk rating

AmberGreen

Amber-Red

Red

Amber-Red

AmberGreen

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Research and
Development

recruitment from the previous year, and a
significant achievement.

As a world renowned research institution,
King’s strives to integrate clinical research
into the daily care that patients receive,
demonstrating a commitment to improving
the quality of care offered at King’s, and to
making a contribution to wider health
improvement. Trust clinical staff stay
abreast of the latest treatment possibilities
and actively participate in research, leading
to successful patient outcomes.

In addition, in excess of 800 publications
have resulted from involvement in
research over the past year, demonstrating
the commitment of King’s to driving
research that will lead to improvement in
patient outcomes and experience across
the NHS.

Over 250 staff across 24 different medical
specialities participated in research during
2011/12. They were a mix of researchers,
clinical
staff
and
support
staff,
demonstrating how King’s is actively
integrating research into clinical practice.
4662 patients, who were receiving NHS
services provided or sub-contracted by
King’s, were recruited to 203 National
Institute for Health Research adopted
studies. This is a 14% increase in

Listed below are a few examples of the
research being conducted within the Trust,
reflecting the high quality, patient focussed
research conducted and supported by
King’s, and how it impacts and benefits our
local community as well as having
influence on national policy and standards
of care.
Fetal Medicine
Professor Kypros Nicolaides and his team
continue their world leading studies on
fetal monitoring and scanning. They are
also looking into maternal hypertension,
including a study investigating the use of
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aspirin to reduce blood pressure during
pregnancy.
Cardiology
Research is focussed around innovative
techniques and new technologies that will
have a direct impact on quality of
treatment and care. The results of a
project funded by Research and
Development at King’s have provided data
that are changing the way patients with
heart attacks are treated across London,
improving outcomes and delivering the
best possible care in emergency situations.
Haematology
The White Cell group continue their clinical
trials into medicines for the treatment of
myeloma, lymphoma and leukaemia. King’s
now hosts Europe’s largest bone marrow
transplant unit. The Red Cell group
continue their important work into sickle
cell disease, collaborating with cardiology
and renal research, to address better
prediction of disease severity and early
intervention to minimise complications.
Palliative Care
Professor Irene Higginson and her research
group within the Cicely Saunders Institute
lead an international standard for
translational research in the field of
palliation
and
chronic
disease
management. The development of a
patient and family based scoring system,
and the outreach of palliative care into
other chronic disease areas, has resulted in
the creation of national and international
guidance.

Renal Disease
The renal team are addressing various
conditions that impact on renal disease,
working closely with haematology to
investigate sickle cell disease, with the HIV
team, and with palliative care to support
end of life. They also have research
interests in obesity, exercise and nutrition.
Therapies – Breast Cancer
King’s, as centre of the South London
Breast Screening Service under Doctor
Michael Michell, is playing a leading part in
the development of 3D imaging. If
successful, this will help radiologists to
ensure that fewer women suffer from false
positives, lessening their anxiety whilst
maintaining the unit’s extremely high
success rate. One of the therapists
attached to the Breast Unit has, on her
own initiative, just completed an
investigation into the emotional and
physical needs of breast cancer survivors.
Diabetes
In an on-going collaboration between
King’s, King’s College London and the
Institute of Psychiatry, Professor Stephanie
Amiel’s programme of research is proving
just how beneficial King’s Health Partners
can be to the community. Having recruited
thousands of patients from across much of
South London they are about to apply this
successful model to a pioneering look at
the natural history of sleep apnoea – a
condition which can effect a significant
proportion of the population at any time
and is associated with memory loss and
the risk of stroke.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------will lead an integrated and well-managed
King’s Vision and
healthcare system, which meets the
Forward Plan 2012/13
diverse needs of the many local
Vision
Everything King’s does is focussed on
patient need. Patients will experience the
highest quality of care from the local
services and global specialties provided
here. With King’s Health Partners (KHP)
and other local healthcare providers, King’s

communities served by the hospital.
Forward Plan
With major structural changes in the NHS,
and significant pressure on public finances,
King’s needs a robust strategy to deliver
high quality care to its patients, now and in
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the future. Going forward the Trust will
continue to focus on 3 goals and 10
supporting objectives:



Goal 1: Quality Improvement
2011/12 saw a strong performance; this
was evidenced by all access targets being
met, significant improvement to patient
safety and positive responses from
regulators.
However,
further
improvements are required and we have
identified the following objectives to meet
these challenges:






To deliver further improvements in
patient safety we will focus on venousthromboembolism (VTE) screening and
‘appropriate
thromboprophylaxis’,
improve the management of acutely ill
patients,
take a zero tolerance
approach to infection control and harm
acquired in the hospital and to further
roll out our
Safety Express
programme;
We will drive up clinical effectiveness
in all services, with a continued specific
focus on Diabetes and End of Life care;
and
We will work to ensure the experience
of patients is consistently high,
including improved responsiveness to
inpatients personal needs, roll out of
the outpatient ‘How Are We Doing’
and the transformation of outpatient
services, with a continued focus on
cleanliness and the quality of food.

Goal 2: Financial Sustainability &
Efficiency
Despite a challenging year the Trust
performed well, with cost improvement
programmes (CIP) largely achieved and
productivity significantly improved as
evidenced by higher activity levels and
reduced length of stay. Going forward, the
financial climate will continue to be
challenging. The Trust has identified the
following priorities:
 To develop cost improvement schemes
and income diversification schemes by
maintaining existing cost controls,

focussed CIPs and
new income
streams; and
To
implement
hospital
based
transformational and productivity
including integrated service reviews,
transforming
outpatient
care,
continued medical and nursing
productivity reviews, patient flow and
capacity planning to improve the use
of the hospital estate, and creating a
paperless hospital to improve quality
and efficiency.

Goal 3: Leading change across the system
There has been positive progress in a
number of areas including new Foundation
Trust members and a stronger Board,
better relationships with Governors, and
King’s Health Partners (KHP) moving
forward on governance, thereby enabling
us to achieve more. The Trust’s plan is to
focus on the following 5 objectives, which
are aligned with those of KHP:
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To continue to develop local integrated
services, focussing on implementing
the integrated care pathway for frail
older people and improving the
emergency care pathway;
To develop regional and national
specialist networks by continued
engagement to inform the London
Cancer Alliance, responding to relevant
external services reviews and exploring
options for improving the quality and
efficiency of services across South East
London;
To strengthen research and education
across King’s and KHP by improving
educational facilities and research
infrastructure and actively engaging in
the establishment of the South London
Local Education and Training Board;
To improve the health of our local
population and to address inequalities
through work with the Addictions
Clinical Academic Group to develop a
KHP Alcohol Strategy and further the
integration of mental and physical
health; and



To support KHP integration and secure
the full potential of the partnership by
contributing to the Strategic Outline
Case by July 2012 which will explore

whether closer integration will help
accelerate the delivery of the KHP
mission.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Workforce Review
Staff development
King’s is committed to ensuring that each
and every member of staff is supported to
realise their full potential at work. The
Trust continually invests in training and
development and encourages staff to take
advantage of continued professional
development, qualifications and training in
order to attain their best.







By encouraging people to innovate and by
retaining a fresh approach to what we do,
King’s staff continue to deliver better care,
year-on-year, to the communities we
serve.
In recognition of this, King’s received the
coveted Investors in People Gold Standard
in 2010 and, having first been accredited in
1999, has also achieved the award for ’10
Years’ as an Investor in People.
Below are a few examples of the training
being offered and supported within the
Trust:




Staff seconded to gain first or second
professional qualifications in a range of
occupations including: Healthcare
Assistant to Nurse, Adult Nurse to
Midwife,
Medical Secretary to
Occupational
Therapist
and
Radiography
Assistant
to
Radiographer;
New managers and leaders provided
with Institute of Leadership and
Management qualifications, and a
front line leadership programme run in
conjunction with Guy’s and St Thomas’
which has been Highly Commended by
both
the
Healthcare
People
Management Association and the
Training Journal;

A Senior Management Development
Programme run with the King’s Fund,
which included Clinical Directors and
was designed to encourage good
management practices that can
improve patient outcomes and
experiences;
Patient Experience training delivered
through drama based workshops and
attended by over 1,100 staff; and
Launch of a new apprenticeship
scheme which takes young people
from our local community and
provides them with qualifications and
work experience.
Several former
apprentices now work for the Trust as
permanent employees.

Medical Training and Development
The Post-Graduate Medical and Dental
Education unit works with Divisions to
provide tailored training within the local
environment, also providing weekend and
evening courses for ease of access. Faculty
Development is embedded and ensures
compliance with the General Medical
Council (GMC) Standards for Trainers. The
GMC’s Trainee Survey ranked 2 King’s
specialties in the top 25% nationally and
indicated that another 9 specialties have
risen 3 or more places in their London
rating compared with 2010.
The Keele Clinical Leadership programme
continues to be a success. This year the
programme has been extended to enable a
multi-professional approach, which has
been extremely well evaluated. The
Specialty Lead Registrar Development
Programme, which incorporates a 2-day
Keele management course, is going from
strength to strength.
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As Lead Provider for Core Medical Training
across South East London, the Trust has
installed video conferencing facilities to
support educational and training activities
across London.
Working with Local
Education Providers the Trust has
introduced generic training days on
`Training Tomorrow's Trainers`, `Nuts &
Bolts of the NHS`, `Leadership Training`
and `Critical Appraisal`.

how it works in practice. Recruiting
managers must select for interview or
assessment all candidates who meet the
essential requirements for the role and
have indicated they have a disability, as
defined in the Equality Act (2010). At the
interview, discussions can also take place
on reasonable adjustments that may be
necessary for a candidate to perform
effectively in their new role.

In preparation for medical revalidation the
Trust is rolling out 360° appraisal for
consultants, following a successful pilot
with Clinical Directors and Clinical Leads.
Alongside this there has been training for
appraisers and appraisees, which meets
the national requirements for revalidation.

In 2011/12 JobCentrePlus conducted the
annual formal assessment and the Trust
was re-accredited as a nationally
recognised Positive About Disabled People
‘Two-Ticks’ employer.

Simulation training, which is integral to the
patient safety agenda, is strengthening,
with courses for ‘Hospital at Night’ Core
Medical Training, Foundation Trainees and
laparoscopic training.
Positive about Disabled People
The Trust has a Disability Charter which
sets out its ethos and a firm commitment
to disability equality. The Trust also has a
Disability and Deaf Guide which outlines
the responsibilities and behaviours
expected of staff and managers. Both
documents were developed in partnership
with the Staff Disability Interest Group (see
also ‘We Are Positively Diverse’ on page
21).

Occupational Health and Wellbeing
Following the 2010 review and restructure
of the Occupational Health and Wellbeing
service, 2011 has been about embedding
the service which has now merged with
that of the South London and Maudsley
NHS Foundation Trust (SLaM). The merged
service operates on the King’s site and
continues to serve King’s, SLaM, King’s
College London, the Institute of Psychiatry,
Medirest and more recently, Aramark.
During the year the Occupational Health
and Wellbeing service:



The Trust’s Recruitment Policy, Training
Policy and Equal Opportunities Policy are
designed to support those who declare a
disability. Policies apply from the preemployment stage, when applying for
vacancies, to supporting those who
become disabled during the course of their
employment and ensuring that all staff
have equal access to promotion and
development opportunities.
All recruiting managers must attend a
formal Trust recruitment and selection
training course to understand the
significance of the Equality Act (2010) and
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Ran a seasonal staff ‘flu vaccination
programme from October 2011 to
March 2012. By season close 1,618
King’s staff had been vaccinated;
Commenced the accreditation process
with Safe, Effective, & Quality
Occupational Health Services, a
voluntary accreditation scheme from
the Faculty of Occupational Medicine
which is seeking to raise UK
Occupational
Health
services
standards;
Rolled out a self-referral route into
physiotherapy for musculoskeletal
injuries one week old or less;
Introduced an HR link nurse role and a
working group for sickness absence
‘hot spots’ to help tackle high areas of
sickness absence, as well as to





promote wellbeing and provide more
preventative advice in the workplace;
Continued to promote health and
wellbeing initiatives through the
‘Active King’s’ steering group; and
Created an Occupational Health (OH)
Users Group as a forum to develop a
service level agreement between the
Trust and OH aimed at producing
standard terms of delivery for the
service.

The Trust annual sickness rate for 2011/12
was 3.3%. This benchmarks well in
comparison to public and private sector
organisations and falls within the top
performance
quartile
for
NHS
organisations in London.
Health and Safety
Following review of the Trust’s governance
framework, Health and Safety is now
overseen by the Organisational Safety
Committee, working with the Patient
Safety Committee and Joint Consultative
Council.
In 2011/12 the Organisational Safety
Committee:

King’s dermatitis management. The HSE
found the Trust demonstrated a strategic
approach with effective policies for Health
and Safety, Occupational Health, Infection
Control and Procurement teams. Action
points included requiring non-latex surgical
gloves unless justified, finalising a skin
check
programme
and
tightening
notification procedures.
There were 54 incidents reported under
the ‘Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and
Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995’.
All incidents have been investigated and no
underlying trend was found. At the end of
2011/12 the overall number of Health and
Safety reported incidents was 1,513. This
figure is 0.8% higher than 2010/11.
Commendation Awards
The King's Commendation scheme was set
up to recognise those individuals who
make outstanding contributions to patient
care or hospital services.
During 2011/12 the Trust presented
commendations to 17 individuals and 3
teams, including:




Supported completion of Health and
Safety checklists which prompted a
wide range of safety controls - by yearend 85% of departments had met
target times for returns;



Monitored safety training attendance
for clinical and non-clinical staff, and
initiation of a strategic review of
compliance training by the Education
and Development team; and
Worked to reduce levels of blood
borne virus exposure through the roll
out of safety engineered devices to
minimise sharps injuries - confirmed
exposures to blood borne viruses are
down from 37 in 2007/8, to 18 in
2011/12.







In March 2012 there was an inspection by
the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) of
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A Junior Charge Nurse in the HIV
Nursing Team for her organisation and
implementation of the biggest, most
ambitious and most successful World
Aids Day at King’s to date, raising funds
and awareness;
The Endocrine Service for the
individualised care they have provided,
beyond expectation, and helping to
prevent unnecessary admissions to
hospital; and
The Critical Care Unit for the
perseverance and dedication of
consultants, doctors and nurses from
Resuscitation, together with the
Emergency and Cardiac Departments,
when treating a patient who collapsed
and suffered a number of cardiac
arrests.

Actions taken in the financial year to
provide employees systematically with
information on matters of concern to
them as employees:
















Corporate and local induction training
is mandatory and is given to all new
members of staff, along with a King’s
email account;
The monthly Chief Executive’s Brief
and King’s Daily Bulletin communicate
key messages to staff;
The
Trust
has
a
clear
management/committee
structure
and a culture of regular team meetings
to ensure that key issues are cascaded
throughout the organisation;
Monthly Joint Consultation Committee
(JCC)
meetings
update
staff
representatives on Trust plans, the
development of King’s Health Partners
and the financial position. A nominated
JCC representative has a seat as a
Stakeholder Governor on the Council
of Governors;
Representatives of the Trust’s three
staff-led diversity groups : Cultural
Diversity Group, Staff Disability
Interest Group and the Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual and Transgender Forum, sit on
the Equality and Diversity Committee
of the Board of Directors; and
Daily news updates on Kingsweb, the
staff intranet and King’s Health
Partners staff e-bulletin are published
throughout the year keeping staff
updated on, amongst other things,
Academic Health Sciences Centre
matters.

Actions taken in the financial year to
encourage the involvement of employees
in
the
NHS
Foundation
Trust’s
performance:


Financial and operational challenges
faced by the Trust are regularly
communicated through the Chief
Executive’s Brief to staff and the Chief
Executive’s report to the Board of
Directors;



During the course of the year,
performance
appraisals
were
conducted for 93.5% of staff with 12
months or more service;
In the 2011 NHS Staff Survey, King’s
was rated above average for Trusts
whose staff had well-structured
appraisals; and
King’s was in the top 20% of Trusts for
the number of staff who reported good
communication between staff and
senior managers and for staff feeling
able
to
contribute
towards
improvements at work.

Actions taken in the financial year to
achieve a common awareness on the part
of all employees of the financial and
economic
factors
affecting
the
performance of the NHS Foundation
Trust:




There are regular presentations on the
Trust’s financial position at the JCC,
reports and briefs from the Chief
Executive, and staff intranet briefings;
and
Several
Chief
Executive
Briefs
throughout the year focussed on the
Trust’s
financial
position,
the
importance of achieving significant
cost reductions and the role of
individual staff within that.

Actions taken in the financial year to
consult
employees
or
their
representatives on a regular basis so that
the views of employees can be taken into
account in making decisions which are
likely to affect their interests:
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Meetings of the JCC took place
throughout 2011/12 and were well
attended by representatives of Trust
management and of recognised trade
unions;
The JCC continued its rolling review of
workforce policies and had the
development of King’s Health Partners
as a standing item on the agenda;



The Trust’s staff-led diversity groups
met on a regular basis, and invited
senior members of staff to discuss
issues of interest to the groups; and



The Trust has an active Staff
Engagement Group which meets
quarterly to review staff engagement
and share best practice on this topic.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Equality and Diversity
Report



King’s is located in one of the most diverse
areas in London, and the UK as a whole.
For this reason, it is important that equality
and diversity issues remain front-of-mind
for everyone who works for King’s.
Changing policies to reflect our equality
commitments
The Trust reviews all existing and planned
services and policies against equality and
diversity indicators on a three year cycle.
This is to ensure that everything the Trust
does takes into consideration how staff
and patients from different backgrounds
might be impacted. All policies and
consultations are equality impact assessed
and the assessments are available via the
Trust’s Equality and Diversity webpage:
www.kch.nhs.uk/about/corporate/equality
-and-diversity
Staff have 24/7 access to two support
services: Dignity at Work Helpline (which
supports staff in relation to bullying and
harassment); and Workplace Options
(which offers telephone, online and webbased advice on a range of matters
including
legal
matters,
financial
management, and general counselling).
Kingsflex, the Trust’s flexible working
scheme, helps staff balance family and
work commitments. In November 2011,
King’s received the ‘Most Family Friendly
Trust’ award by the Medical Womens’
Federation.
National Initiatives
Over the course of the year, King’s has
been involved with and implemented a
number of national equality and diversity
initiatives, including:









Implementation of the Department of
Health’s Equality Delivery System
(EDS). An external assessor was
engaged to review the Trust against
the EDS outcomes with the support of
local stakeholders. Formal equality
objectives have now been set in line
with the EDS assessments;
Compliance with the Public Sector
Equality Duties set out in the Equality
Act (2010) has been achieved, with
relevant information published on the
Trust website to support this;
Promotion of the NHS Employers
‘Personal, Fair & Diverse Campaign’
and an application to join the NHS
Employers
Equality
Partners
programme;
Promotion of the NHS London
‘Mentoring for Diversity’ programme,
onto which three staff have been
accepted; and
Promotion of the ‘Breaking Through’
Top Talent programme, personally
supported by the Chief Executive.

We are Positively Diverse
The Trust’s commitment to promoting
equality and diversity has been recognised
through the award of ‘Positively Diverse’
lead site status.
The equality and diversity training
programme offered by the Trust helps to
ensure that staff have the skills and
knowledge they need to provide all
patients with consistently high standards
of care. Equality and diversity training is
mandatory for all new staff, and King’s is
on track for ensuring that the majority of
staff have received equality and diversity
training by 2012.
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King’s equality agenda features heavily in
recruitment and selection training, which is
mandatory for all those taking part in
recruitment panels. It also informs our
‘Effective Management’ training course
which is aimed at ensuring that all line
managers receive training on applying the
Trust’s key workforce policies, such as the
disciplinary and grievance procedures.
Training is provided to front line staff in
deaf and disability awareness, and to
managers for managing deaf and disabled
staff appropriately. To help improve the
experience of those working in the Trust
with a disability, Disability Network
Advisors are trained to offer support to
staff with a disability and their line
managers. King’s also provides training for
staff working with people who may have
learning disabilities, and there are elearning programmes available which
relate to a range of diversity issues, plus an
introductory British Sign Language elearning
programme.
Self-marketing
courses are provided to help staff improve
their career prospects within the Trust.
Networks help ensure all voices are heard
King’s has three staff-led diversity groups:
Cultural Diversity Group, Staff Disability
Interest Group, and the Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual and Transgender Forum. All three
groups perform a vital function in
providing
support
and
network
opportunities for group members, whilst at
the same time holding the Trust to account
on its equality and diversity commitments.
The Trust has worked closely with external
partners, including Stonewall as part of
their ‘Healthy Lives’ initiative to support
lesbian, gay and bi-sexual staff. King’s
submitted an application for the 2012
Stonewall Top 100 Employer’s Index and

showed a 45% improvement on the
previous score. Over 700 staff have been
trained on the Stonewall “Train the
Trainer” scheme.
The King’s annual Diversity Event was held
in October 2011. The Trust used this event
as an opportunity to celebrate the diversity
of staff and patients, and plans to organise
future events along the same lines.
The staff-led diversity groups have devised
and published an induction leaflet,
highlighting how staff can become involved
with the groups, and they have updated
their website content to ensure that they
are highly visible to all staff within the
Trust.
King’s Commitment
King’s is committed to employing a
workforce that reflects the diverse
communities it serves. Our recruitment
policies support this. 48% of King’s staff are
from Black and Minority Ethnic (BME)
backgrounds with 40% of middle grade
staff and 29% of senior staff being from
BME backgrounds. The proportion of
senior staff from BME backgrounds has
increased by 5% over the past 4 years.
The Trust’s Equality & Diversity Committee
(EDC) meets quarterly and reviews
progress made against the Trust’s equality
objectives. The EDC produces an annual
report which highlights progress made
against these objectives. The EDC also
considers the annual Workforce Report,
which details information regarding the
demographics of Trust staff.
Refer to table 4 on the next page for
information about the demographics of
staff at King’s:
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Table 4: Workforce Statistics
2009/2010
Head-count
Age
0-16
17-21
22+
Ethnicity
White
Mixed
Asian or Asian British
Black or Black British
Other
Unknown
Gender
Male
Female
Recorded Disability
Yes
No
Not Declared
Unknown
Sexual Orientation
Bisexual
Gay
Heterosexual
Lesbian
I do not wish to disclose
Unknown
Religion
Atheism
Buddhism
Christianity
Hinduism
Islam
Jainism
Judaism
Sikhism
Other
I do not wish to disclose
Unknown
Total Staff Numbers

2010/2011
Head-count

%

%

2011/2012
Head-count

%

0
71
6888

0%
1%
99%

0
57
7117

0%
1%
99%

0
50
7177

0%
1%
99%

3495
241
1201
1738
137
147

50%
3%
17%
25%
2%
2%

3681
237
1221
1767
132
136

51%
3%
17%
25%
2%
2%

3736
225
1246
1742
137
141

52%
3%
17%
24%
2%
2%

1862
5097

27%
73%

1864
5310

26%
74%

1859
5368

26%
74%

232
5773

3%
83%

954

14%

219
5906
246
803

3%
82%
3%
11%

216
6064
215
732

3%
84%
3%
10%

-

-

-

-

54
74
4449
31
1445
1174

1%
1%
62%
0%
20%
16%

-

-

-

-

444
42
3289
225
258
14
17
29
366
1373
1170

6%
1%
46%
3%
4%
0%
0%
0%
5%
19%
16%

6959

7174

7227

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Staff Survey Report
As part of the NHS National Staff Survey for
2011/12, questionnaires were sent to 824
randomly selected King’s staff. This year’s
response rate was 50%, compared to a
national average of 54%. This was a 2%
increase from the response rate of the
2010 survey, and a 5% overall increase
over the past two years.

The 2011/12 staff survey results reported
on 38 key findings. King’s was ranked in the
top 20% nationally for 7 of the key findings
and in the worst 20% for 7 other key
findings.
Areas where King’s performed well
included:
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Feeling satisfied with the quality of
work and patient care they are able to
deliver;





Staff feeling there are good
opportunities to develop their
potential at work; and
Staff recommending the Trust as a
place to work/receive treatment.

A score of 3.75 was recorded for overall
staff engagement. This places King’s in the
top 20% nationally and is particularly
encouraging given that the Trust had
challenging cost improvement targets to
meet in 2011/12, as well as the industrial
action taken by some staff over public
sector pay and pensions.
The
Trust
reported
its
highest
improvement over the past 12 months in
the reduction of staff experiencing physical
violence from other staff and the impact of
health and wellbeing on the ability of staff
to perform their work or daily activities.

There are still significant
improvement, which include:





areas

for

Staff experiencing physical violence,
bullying, harassment or abuse from
other staff;
The number of staff reporting
discrimination; and
Staff believing the Trust provides equal
opportunities for career progression or
promotion.

The staff survey results are discussed
widely and presentations are made to the
Board of Directors, the Council of
Governors,
the
Joint
Consultation
Committee and other management
groups.
Details about these key findings can be
found in summary tables 5 to 8 overleaf
where they are compared with the results
of the 2010/11 survey.
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Table 5: Response Rates
2010/11
Response rate

Trust
48%

2011/12
National
average
53%

Trust

Improvement/
Deterioration
National
Average
54%

2% improvement

82%

National
Average
74%

Improvement/
Deterioration
5% improvement

3.82

3.50

0.10 improvement

34%

26%

1% improvement

46%

40%

1% improvement

20%

National
Average
13%

Improvement
Deterioration
4% improvement

65%

81%

4% deterioration

80%

90%

4% deterioration

53%

66%

2% improvement

50%

Table 6: Top Ranking Scores
2010/11
Trust
National
Average
Feeling satisfied with 77%
74%
the quality of work
and patient care able
to deliver
Recommending King’s 3.72
3.52
as a place to work or
receive treatment
Good communication 33%
26%
between
Senior
management and staff
Feeling there are good 45%
41%
opportunities
to
develop potential at
work

2011/12
Trust

Table 7: Bottom Ranking Scores
2010/11
Trust
National
Average
Staff
experiencing 24%
13%
discrimination at work
80%
Receiving health and 69%
safety training
Believing the Trust 84%
90%
provides
equal
opportunities
for
career progression or
promotion
Hand
washing 51%
67%
materials available

2011/12
Trust
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Table 8: Key Findings of 2011/12 Survey
Amber highlighted scores indicate that for
that key finding, achieving a higher score
this year is a positive outcome. Blue

highlighted scores indicate that for that
key finding, achieving a lower score this
year is a positive outcome.

Best 20% scores
KF 1. Feeling satisfied with quality of work and patient
care able to deliver
KF5. Work pressure felt by staff
KF10. Feeling there are good opportunities to develop
their potential at work
KF13. Having well-structured appraisals in last 12
months
KF30. Reporting good communication between senior
management and staff
KF31. Able to contribute towards improvements at work
KF34. Staff recommendation of the Trust as a place to
work / receive treatment
Above average scores
KF4. Quality of work design
KF8. Working extra hours
KF11. Receiving job-relevant training, learning or
development in the last 12 months
KF12. Appraised in last 12 months
KF22. Fairness and effectiveness of incident reporting
procedures
KF.24 Experiencing physical violence from staff in last 12
months
KF27. Perceptions of effective action from employer
towards violence and harassment
KF28. Impact of health and well-being on ability to
perform work or daily activities
KF29. Feeling pressure in last 3 months to attend work
when feeling unwell
KF35. Staff motivation at work
Average
KF2. Agreeing that their role makes a difference to
patients
KF6. Effective Team Working
KF7. Trust committed to work-life balance
KF9. Using flexible working options
KF14. Appraised with personal development plans in last
12 months
KF18. Suffering work related stress in last 12 months
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2010/2011 2011/2012 2011/2012
Nat Av
77%
82%
74%
3.04
45%

3.00
46%

3.12
40%

41%

41%

34%

33%

34%

26%

65%
3.72

65%
3.82

61%
3.50

3.45
67%
79%

3.44
63%
80%

3.41
65%
78%

78%
3.47

83%
3.52

81%
3.46

3%

1%

1%

3.65

3.61

3.58

1.66

1.52

1.56

22%

25%

26%

3.85

3.85

3.82

92%

90%

90%

3.69
3.43
58%
64%

3.72
3.40
60%
69%

3.72
3.36
61%
68%

33%

29%

29%

KF23. Experiencing physical violence from patients,
relatives or the public in last 12 months
Worse than average
KF15. Support from immediate managers
KF20. Witnessing potentially harmful errors, near misses
or incidents in the last month
KF21. Reporting errors, near misses or incidents
witnessed in the last month
KF25. Experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse from
patients, relatives or public in last 12 months
KF32. Staff job satisfaction
KF33. Staff intention to leave jobs
KF36. Having equality and diversity training in last 12
months
Worst 20%

7%

8%

8%

3.61
41%

3.58
36%

3.61
34%

95%

96%

96%

18%

15%

15%

3.47
2.63
39%

3.45
2.63
44%

3.47
2.59
48%

KF3. Feeling valued by their work colleague
KF16. Receiving health and safety training in last 12
months
KF17. Suffering work related injury in last 12 months
KF19. Saying hand washing materials are always
available
KF26. Experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse from
staff in last 12 months
KF37. Believing the Trust provides equal opportunities
for career progression or promotion
KF38. Experiencing discrimination at work in last 12
months

73%
69%

72%
65%

76%
81%

18%
51%

19%
53%

16%
66%

21%

18%

16%

84%

80%

90%

24%

20%

13%

Significant Statistical Changes since 20102011 Survey
The Trust has statistically improved the
most since the 2010 survey in the following
key findings:

local
British
Medical
Association
representative has a seat at the JCC table
but, in practice, specific matters relating to
medical and dental staff are discussed at
the Local Negotiating Committee.



Trust managers and consultants attend
monthly Consultants’ Committee meetings
to ensure that close working relationships
are maintained.



Staff experiencing physical violence
from other staff within the past 12
months; and
Impact of health and well-being on
ability to perform work or daily duties.

Partnership Working with Staff Side
Representatives
The monthly Joint Consultation Committee
(JCC) meetings enable Trust managers and
staff
representatives
to
review
employment policies and practices. The

The Trust’s Staff Engagement Group meets
on a quarterly basis and includes members
of the Executive Team, staff side
representatives and the leads of the Trust’s
staff-led diversity groups.
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Alongside the annual staff survey, the
Trust’s junior doctors respond to the
annual General Medical Council survey. In
addition, the Trust has undertaken an exit
questionnaire survey to address issues of
recruitment and retention within the Trust.
The Trust is committed to embedding
‘King’s Values’, which were defined by
King’s staff and stakeholders. Establishing
King’s Values within the organisational
culture begins at recruitment, and
throughout
the
‘on-Boarding’
and
induction of new staff. King’s Values are
further incorporated into training and
development throughout employment.

Action Plan for 2012/13
Key priorities for 2012/13 are: continued
focus on addressing discrimination, and
harassment and bullying at work; and
development of plans to address concerns
relating to the patient safety aspects of the
survey results.
King’s will continue to ensure that staff are
encouraged to voice their views and
opinions. This feedback will be monitored
through the annual surveys and on-going
discussions with staff side representatives
and other staff forums outlined above.
Following analysis of staff feedback, both
Trust-wide and local action plans will be
developed to ensure that issues raised by
staff are addressed and these plans will be
objectively reviewed and monitored.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Sustainability Report
King’s undertakes Sustainability reporting
in line with the HM Treasury Public Sector
Annual Reports: Sustainability Reporting.
Sustainability reporting is an important
element of King’s performance as an
organisation. We recognise the need to
minimise our impact on the environment
and to operate as a sustainable and
efficient organisation.

Summary of Performance
King’s reduced its carbon emissions by 3%
this year reducing emissions by 570
tonnes. The carbon reduction target set
for 2011/12 was a reduction of 1.8% or 374
tonnes. Overall waste has reduced by 203
tonnes in 2011/12 which is a 6.8%
reduction. King’s improved upon the 16%
decrease in water consumption achieved in
2010/11 by reducing consumption by a
further 2% or 3,352 cubic metres.

Table 9: Summary of 2011/12 Performance
2011/12 Performance
Actual
Target

Area
Greenhouse Gas emissions (Scope 1, 2, 3 Business Travel excluding
air & rail
travel.)
Consumption
Estate Energy
Expenditure
Amoun
Estate Waste
t
Expenditure
Consumption
Expenditure

Estate Water
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20,670

20,805

116 million kWh
£
3,218,367
2,995 tonnes
£
950,338
206,087 m3
£
319,940

206,297 m3
£
325,344

Table 10: Greenhouse Gas Emissions

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

2009/10

2010/11

2011/12

Graphical Analysis

Total gross emissions
Non Total net emissions
Financial
Gross emissions scope 1 Direct
Indicators
(1,000 tCO2e)
Gross emissions scope 2 & 3 Indirect

24.5
24.0
8.9

25.3
21.1
19.7

25.3
20.7
19.7

15.6

5.6

5.6

Electricity: Non - Renewable
Related
Electricity: Renewable
Energy
Gas
Consumption
LPG
(million KWh)

28.5

10.2

10.1

-

48

-

107

-

106
-

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

70.0

Gross emissions
scope 2 & 3 Indirect

60.0

Gross emissions
scope 1 Direct

50.0
40.0

Total net emissions

30.0

Total gross
emissions

20.0

Other
Expenditure on Energy
Financial
CRC License Expenditure (2010 onwards)
Indicators (£
Expenditure on accredited offsets*
milllion)
Expenditure on official business travel

1000
tCO2e
80.0

3.5

3.2

3.8

-

-

-

-

-

-

10.0
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

*The Government Carbon Offsetting Facility is an example of an accredited offset
King’s has reported the carbon emissions associated with Fleet transport
and Business travel for the first time this year. These amounted to 23 and
95 tonnes respectively.

million investment in an energy centre which includes two combined heat
and power (CHP) engines that generate 70% of the electricity used by the
Trust. It also provides heating and cooling for the main hospital site. The
3% reduction achieved this year is the result of a £200,000 investment in
Phillips LED lighting, Certero PC Powerdown software which switches PCs
off when not in use and a software enhancement which has improved the
operation of the CHP.

Reducing carbon emissions by 3% this year builds on the very successful
result last year, where King’s reduced carbon emissions by 12%, and
means that overall emissions have been reduced by 15% over the past
two years. The 12% reduction in 2010/11 was achieved through a £17
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Waste Management
Overall waste has reduced by 203 tonnes in 2011/12 which is a 6.8%
reduction. Recycling has increased by 8 tonnes or 1.4%. The roll out of

the re-usable sharps bin system has assisted in the waste minimisation
targets and delivered a 47.9 tonne reduction in waste for 2011/12.

Table 11: Waste Management
Waste
Total Waste
Hazardous Waste

Non - Financial
Indicators (tonnes)

Total
Landfill
Reused/Recycled
Composted
Incinerated with
energy recovery
Incinerated without
Non hazardous waste energy recovery

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 Graphical Analysis
2516
2592
3198
2995
1238
1192
1459
1335 3500
909
1032
1158
1070
369
368
581
590 3000
0
0
0
0
2500

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total

2000

Hazardous
1500

Landfill
Recycling

1000

Total Waste (£s)

N/A

N/A

904,309 950,338

500
0

Financial Indicators
(£s)

In 2009/10 revised PFI contract to include total waste management. This is for all
waste streams including chemical waste.

(Figures from 2009/10 onwards include Waste Electrical Equipment for recycling)

30

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

Water
King’s improved on the 16% decrease in
water consumption achieved in 2010/11 by
reducing consumption by further 2% or
3,352 cubic metres. This meant that in

2011/12 we spent £319,940 on water
which was a reduction of £10,359 on the
previous year.

Table 12: Finite Resources Consumption
FINITE RESOURCES CONSUMPTION

2009 - 10 2010 - 11 2011 - 12

Graphical Analysis

Supplied
Non
Financial
Indicators
( 000m3 )

Water Consumption
(Office Estate)

Water Usage

Abstracted

(000m3)
300

Per FTE
Water Consumption
(Non - Office Estate)

Supplied

250

251

209

206

200
150

Abstracted

Water Usage

100

Water Supply Costs (Office Estate

Financial
Indicators
Water Supply Costs (Non - Office
(£K )
Estate

50
0

371

Summary of future strategy
This year King’s has developed a Trustwide Environmental Strategy which looks
to deliver targets for the following
environmental themes:












Improving the patient experience;
Designing and maintaining the built
environment;
Waste management and minimisation;
Pollution prevention;
Energy and CO2 management;
Water;
Procurement;
Low carbon transport and travel;
Staff engagement and ownership;
Working with our stakeholders; and
Governance and finance

A copy of the Environmental Strategy can
kchbe
requested
by
emailing
tr.foi@nhs.net.
Carbon emissions
The
Environmental
Strategy
has
superseded the Carbon Management Plan.
The Trust continues to work towards a
target to reduce CO2 emissions by 25% by
2015.
Energy Performance Contract
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320

2009 - 10

2010 - 11

2011 - 12

Schneider Electric has been commissioned
to undertake an Investment Grade Audit as
part of a feasibility study for an Energy
Performance Contract. Schneider Electric
would guarantee a 20% reduction in the
Trust’s energy consumption - equating to
annual energy savings of approximately
£750,000.
King’s has been working with the London
Procurement Program to develop a project
whereby Energy Services Companies are
able to provide energy managed services
through designing, building, managing,
maintaining and guaranteeing a reduced
consumption on a per kilowatt hour basis.
The proposed Strategic Sustainability
Transformation project is self-funded;
being paid for from guaranteed reductions
in future energy consumption.
The project consists of the enhancement
and renewal of out-dated plant and
machinery, installation of energy efficient
technologies and optimisation of all
systems.
Key deliverables include:
reduction in operating costs (energy,
carbon taxes and reactive maintenance),
reduced operating risks from removal of
backlog maintenance, improved safety and
environment for patients, staff and visitors

31

and significant reduction in carbon
emissions and energy consumption.

reached, the Trust will seek to implement a
biodiversity project.

Waste
Numerous targets are laid out in the
Environmental Strategy with regards to
waste management and minimisation.
Whilst the Trust has reduced its overall
waste produced this year and delivered a
slight increase in recycling, it is aware that
the current waste compound does not
allow appropriate segregation for diversion
from landfill. Plans are being drawn up for
a new waste compound area which will
allow the delivery of increased segregation
for recycling and diversion for landfill. A
business case for the compound is to be
drawn up within the 2012/13 financial
year.

Sustainable Procurement
King’s has committed to a variety of targets
around sustainable procurement. These
are available in the procurement section of
the Environmental Strategy.

Use of resources
King’s
has
committed
via
the
Environmental Strategy to look at our
existing use of resource and how we can
become more sustainable and efficient as
an organisation.
Water management
We hope to continue to identify water
leaks across the site and other water
reduction opportunities as part of the
Energy Performance Contract described on
page 31. The main focus of the initial
energy survey will be to identify water loss
as a result of steam, condensate and hot
water leaks where energy and water cost
savings can be made.
Climate Change: adaption and mitigation
The Trust is assessing how climate change
may impact the King’s site and pending the
outcome of the assessment, will devise an
action plan outlining adaption measures.
Biodiversity and natural environment
King’s is also in the process of assessing
how more on-site planting and green
spaces, which promote biodiversity, might
benefit patients by assisting the healing
process. If the assessment target is

Sustainable construction
The Trust has targets in place to achieve
‘Excellent’ under the Building Research
Establishment Environmental Assessment
Method (BREEAM) on all new build
projects and ‘Very Good’ on all major
refurbishments. Additional targets are laid
out in the ‘Designing and maintaining the
Built Environment’ section of the Trust
Environmental Strategy.
The Guthrie Wing - The International and
Private Patients Service
The Capital Projects Team has designed
energy and carbon reduction and
sustainability into a number of larger
projects including the Guthrie Wing which
houses the International and Private
Patients Service.
The projects team
managed an extensive refurbishment in
early 2011 and incorporated the following
energy efficiency and sustainable initiatives
into the refurbishment work.
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Patient rooms have climate control
which uses heating and chilled water
from the hospital Combined Heat and
Power system;
Solar control film was added on the
windows to reduce solar gain and
cooling required in the summer;
As far as practical LED lights were used.
These consume approximately half the
electricity required by traditional
compact fluorescent luminaries;
The LEDs have an anticipated life of
50,000 hours, 2-3 times that of
compact fluorescents, this will offer
further
savings
in
terms
of
maintenance costs;
All stores, WCs, bathrooms and offices
incorporate movement detectors








which turn the lights off when people
are not present;
The corridor lighting is controlled to
reduce the lighting level during the
night;
The WCs have automatic basins which
will reduce both water consumption
and energy in reduced hot water
consumption;
All WCs are dual flush to reduce water
usage;
A Gerflor vinyl floor was used which is
100% recyclable with a 75%
sustainable resource content.

The Assisted Conception Unit
The project team are expected to complete
a major refurbishment to deliver a new
Assisted Conception Unit in May 2012.
This new facility will incorporate natural
lighting provided by Monodraught.
Monodraught sun pipes consist of
silverised mirror-finish aluminium tubes
that carry daylight down into the room
below. This daylight system reduces the
need for electric lighting during daylight
hours and enhances the patient and staff
environment.

People
Work has continued by the Active King’s
project to promote activity and wellbeing
to staff. A staff bicycle user group has
been established and a focus will be placed
on walking this year.
Environmental Management Systems
Capital, Estates and Facilities continue to
work towards ISO14001 accreditation this
year. The first stage audit is scheduled to
take place in August 2012.
Governance
King’s Environmental Strategy places an
emphasis on the improvement of staff
engagement and ownership, working with
our stakeholders and within our
governance structures to ensure that
King’s continues to evolve into a more
sustainable and efficient organisation. Biannual reports on sustainability are
provided to the Board.
Green House Gas emissions data are
collated under the requirements of the
Carbon Reduction Commitment.
A
monthly report on waste is produced
which is monitored via the private funding
initiative performance.
Systems are
currently being reviewed for more robust
reporting on transport data.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------the confidential handling of patient
Information Governance
The Information Governance Steering
Group is responsible for reviewing the
effectiveness of the Trust’s information
governance systems and processes.
The Trust’s Senior Information Risk Owner,
Caldicott Guardian and Information
Security Manager, together with other
colleagues, play a key role in ensuring the
highest practical standards and systems for

information and personal data within the
Trust.
During the year 2011/12 two serious
incidents occurred. Both incidents were
investigated and reported to the
Information Commissioner and to our
commissioning Primary Care Trust, and are
summarised in table 13 on the next page.
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Table 13: Serious Incidents involving information loss or confidentiality breach
Date of incident

Nature of incident

Number of people affected

January 2012

Clinical data faxed outside of 1
the NHS

Nature of data
Name, DOB, telephone number, address and sex. Detailed referral form outlining forensic
sexual assault examination.
Notification steps
The affected individual was contacted about the incident.

Date of incident

Nature of incident

Number of people affected

March 2012

Demographic data extracted 1,000s
to the US by a supplier

Nature of data
Age, initials, hospital number, sex, height & weight, exam. Low level demographic data was
extracted by a supplier excessively and inadvertently in performance of their contract.
Notification steps
The Department of Health and Information Commissioner are aware as this has been a
wider issue, affecting more than one hospital. Notification to affected individuals was not
deemed to be necessary.

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Part 2: Improving Patient Care
Providing safe, kind and effective care
continues to be the top priority of King’s
College Hospital. The Quality Account
outlines in detail the Trust’s performance
and
improvements
against
quality
priorities and objectives. For further
information, refer to Part 6: Quality
Account 2011/12, on pages 65-155.

This section outlines how King’s uses its
Foundation Trust status to develop its
services and improve patient care and
patient experience. This means listening to
and acting on patients’ real concerns
directly and through their elected and
nominated representatives.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------services meet the health needs of the
Public, Patient and
diverse community served by King’s.
Governor Involvement
Over the past year, Foundation Trust
members and Governors of King’s have
continued to play an active role in helping
to improve services and in ensuring that

Council of Governors
Following elections held in June/July 2011,
new and existing Governors officially
formed a new Council of Governors on 01
December 2011. Following in the footsteps
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of the previous cohort, the new Governors
of King’s have taken up roles on a range of
Trust committees and working groups,
including
the
Patient
Experience
Committee, the End of Life Care Group and
the Public Health Committee. They are
also getting involved in initiatives to help
improve the experience of our patients.

“One of the best ways to learn about
patients’ needs is to visit them and listen
to and record their stories. By talking to
patients, I can learn what works well and
what does not. My findings can then be
shared with staff to influence practice.”

Governors
also
have
their
own
committees, which focus on strategy,
patient experience & safety, transport and
membership.

Dignity visits
February 2012 was Dignity Month at
King’s. Governors participated in a series
of ward visits during Dignity Month to hear
from staff about initiatives that they had
developed to improve dignity for patients.
Two master classes on dignity were held,
one focussing on end of life care and one
on nutrition. Governor participation has
provided encouragement to staff as well as
valuable evaluation and feedback.

This year, the Governor Membership
Committee has expanded its remit to
include community engagement.
The
Committee will focus on monitoring
implementation of the Trust’s Engagement
and Experience Strategy, on engaging with
Trust members and the local community,
and on identifying ways in which the Trust
can make a contribution to the local
community.
More information about Governors and
their Committees can be found on pages
56-57.
Ward 20:20
Launched in 2011, the Ward 20:20
programme is about providing modern
hospital care that puts the patient at the
centre at all times, removing obstacles to
delivering excellent quality care, and to
improve the patient experience. In the
first wave, five wards have taken part in
Ward 20:20. They are Dawson, Katherine
Monk, Lister, Mary Ray and two Children’s
wards, Lion and Princess Elizabeth.
Each ward has an Executive, nursing,
medical and Governor sponsor. The role of
these sponsors is to support and mentor
the Ward Managers, to meet regularly with
teams and to bring important external
perspective and experience to the work.
Governors also collected patient and staff
stories as part of the programme,
providing valuable insights from both the
patient and staff perspectives.

Governor sponsor, Katherine Monk Ward

Involving members in improving the
patient experience
A group of dedicated members are
continuing to help improve the Trust’s
patient food service by joining staff on
daily patient food service quality rounds.
They are particularly valued for the patient
interviews that they carry out as part of
this work.
This year members have also been helping
to improve outpatient services. King’s is in
the process of making changes to its
outpatient services. An important aspect
of this work is to ensure that service user
views are fed into the process so that
proposed changes meet the needs of our
patients. Through the quarterly Members’
News and the welcome letter for new
members, volunteers were asked for to
help gather patient feedback in outpatient
areas. Four members have now been
trained in interviewing skills and gathering
outpatient views through surveys and
interviews on various aspects of patient
experience before their appointment.
Between them, they have collected the
views of some 400 patients which can now
be used to inform changes to the Trust’s
pre-appointment processes.
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‘In Your Shoes’ listening events
This year, three ’In Your Shoes’ listening
events have been held: two for inpatients
and one for outpatients. For patients,
coming to King’s can be a worrying and
stressful time so listening events are
designed to allow staff to put themselves
in the patient’s shoes. Staff and patients
then identify key themes and priorities for
improving experience. The remainder of
the session provides an opportunity to
focus on particular issues.
By building a better understanding of what
it is like to be an outpatient at King’s, the
Trust can begin to improve the service
provided. An example from an outpatient
‘In Your Shoes’ event are two service
elements discussed that day which are
now the subject of improvement
initiatives: the appointment system and
new touch screen registration kiosks.

that could be made, and demonstrating
how much they had grown in confidence
and had learned during the process. Over
100 students from Lambeth College have
expressed an interest in becoming
volunteers.
Annual Public Meeting and Community
Events
In September, Trust members and
members of the public were invited to
attend the Trust’s Annual Public Meeting
(APM). Adopting a similar format to the
successful 2011 APM, the evening again
proved very popular with more than 200
people attending. Timothy Smart, Chief
Executive, presented a review of the year
and Simon Taylor, Chief Financial Officer,
took the audience through the Annual
Report and Accounts.
After the plenary session, attendees went
into breakout sessions focussing on:

Feedback has been excellent with patients
feeling positive about the open discussion
and being able to raise issues.



Listening to patient stories was also very
much valued by staff. One staff member
commented that:




“It made me feel that change is possible
and that simple things can make a lot of
difference.”
Lambeth College partnership
The partnership with Lambeth College
continued this year and the two teams of
health and social care students from the
College completed their ‘Food Glorious
Food Challenge’, which involved them
working with King’s staff teams on the
wards to improve the patient food service.
The students interviewed a number of
patients and then analysed their findings
and wrote a report which they presented
to a judging panel comprised of staff from
both King’s and Lambeth College.

Stroke - led by Professor Lalit Kalra,
Professor of Stroke Medicine and
Maria Fitzpatrick, Nurse Consultant in
Stroke Management;
Men’s Health - led by Mr Gordon Muir,
Consultant Urologist; and
Diabetes - led by Dr. Carol Gayle,
Consultant Physician, Diabetes.

There was also opportunity for attendees
to visit display stands and talk to staff, as
well as to have some basic health checks,
including blood sugar levels and blood
pressure.
Two Community Events were held in
March 2012. These gave members a
chance to hear about King’s forward plan
and to ask questions. Discussion groups
focussed on the King’s Health Partners
Integrated Care Pilot and on involving
patients in research. These group sessions
provided some useful insights and
feedback will inform these programmes of
work as they go forward.

Both teams produced some fantastic work,
making suggestions about improvements
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Campaigning for better transport and the
environment
The Governors and Trust members were
instrumental in securing the funding for
the upgrades to disabled access at
Denmark
Hill
station
from
the
Government’s £370m ‘Access for All'
programme. Network Rail is investing £7
million pounds in the project which
includes refurbishment of the wooden
footbridge and staircase, lift access, a new
ticket office at the Champion Park side of
the station and a new footbridge. The work
is well underway and due for completion in
Winter 2012.
The Trust continues to meet regularly with
local community organisations, visitors and
staff to discuss other transport related
issues. Following discontinuation of the
South London Line, on-going focus will be
on the impact of the reduction of services
from Denmark Hill to London Bridge and
Victoria. In the longer term the Trust will
continue to input into wider local transport
discussions
including
the
possible
extension of the Bakerloo line through
Camberwell.
Service improvements following staff or
patient surveys or comments and Care
Quality Commission reports
Care Quality Commission
On 09 February 2012, the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) carried out an
unannounced routine inspection of King’s
College Hospital. The clinical areas visited
included the Health and Ageing Wards,
Emergency Department, Oliver Ward,
Christine Brown, Lonsdale, Annie Zunz,
Katherine Monk, Mary Ray, Matthew
Whiting, Davidson, Philip Isaacs Day unit,
Princess Elizabeth, and Rays of Sunshine.

be meeting all CQC essential standards.
Many examples of positive feedback from
patients and relatives are cited in the
report.
One
improvement
action
was
recommended to ensure on-going
compliance with the requirements for safe
storage of medicines, in particular the
locked
storage
of
non-controlled
medicines. This issue is being addressed
through an action plan, informed by an
audit of medicines security across the
Trust.
2011 CQC national patient surveys
In 2011 the CQC commissioned two
national surveys: one for inpatients (an
annual survey) and one for outpatients.
Inpatient survey
The annual national survey was sent to a
random sample of 850 adults who were
inpatients at King’s in July 2011. King’s
received an amber rating for all sections of
the survey. As a result of the survey an
action plan will be developed and progress
monitored by the Patient Experience
Committee.
Outpatient survey
The last national outpatient survey was
conducted in 2009, when King’s was rated
by patients as the highest performing
acute Trust in London for outpatient
services3. The results from the 2011 survey
showed:





The final report was received by the Trust
at the end of March and posted on the
CQC website.

Improvement in patient experience
before the appointment;
Similar scores to 2009 for waiting
times, environment and facilities,
leaving outpatients; and
Slightly lower scores for tests and
treatments, seeing a doctor /another
health professional and overall
experience of the appointment.

The findings of the report are extremely
positive overall, and the Trust was found to
3
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Not including specialist hospitals

How Are We Doing?
The Trust has continued to develop its
‘How are we doing?’ patient feedback
programme to monitor performance and
drive improvement.
Overall, patients
consistently rate King’s highly. However,
there is always room for improvement and
a number of work streams, ward initiatives
and the volunteer programme which this
year achieved the target recruitment figure
of 500, are aimed at improving patient
experience. In 2012/13, a further 6 wards
will be subjected to monitoring through
the Commissioning for Quality and
Innovation (CQUIN) payment framework to
ensure that improvements are delivered
widely across the Trust.
The Trust’s ‘First Choice’ Transformation
Programme
continued
to
drive
improvements during the year. There have
been four key work streams:






Ward 20:20;
Volunteering;
Developing a Culture of Care –
including patient experience training
and ‘In Your Shoes’ events (see section
on page 36); and
Improving patient food and nutrition.

The Quality Account details the work done
this year around two patient experience
quality priorities: improving inpatient care
and the cleanliness of the hospital (see
pages 90 and 94).
Patient experience has also been a focus of
both national and local CQUIN goals with
the national CQUIN goal focussing on
improving 5 key areas of patient
experience and a local CQUIN goal
focussing on improving maternity services.
The Patient Experience Report continues to
provide integrated monthly data on
complaints, contacts with the Patient
Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) and
patient comments. The report is included
as part of monthly feedback to the Board
of Directors.

Responding to complaints
The Trust received 597 formal complaints
during 2011/12, maintaining the lower
level of complaints received in 2010/11
(570). The Trust adopts a pro-active
approach to concerns raised by patients
through a responsive front line PALS
service aimed at resolving concerns as they
occur and providing a better experience for
patients and their relatives. This is at the
heart of the Health Service Ombudsman’s
Principles in complaint handling.
The profile of patient complaints has
remained consistent with previous years,
in that half of all complaints relate to some
aspect of clinical treatment. Alongside this
are concerns about staff attitude and
behaviour, and problems with poor or
miscommunication between staff and
patients. Approximately 30% of complaints
raised an issue of an unsatisfactory
experience which were considered to be
well founded. Complaints continue to be
used as learning events to drive service
improvement, both locally within Divisions,
and as part of Trust wide initiatives, such
as staff training and as part of wider
improvement programmes.
Details of any consultations completed in
the previous year and forthcoming
consultations
There were no formal consultations during
the year 2011/12.
However, King’s
continues to engage with members and
stakeholders about service improvement,
change and development.
Service improvement
In the current climate of change within the
NHS, King’s understands the need to
engage and consult with patients, Local
Involvement Networks (LINks) and
Overview and Scrutiny Committees (OSCs)
to ensure that any changes in services are
informed by the views of patients, the
public and key stakeholders. The Trust
continues to have regular contact with
local OSCs and has recently involved LINks
and OSCs in the development of the
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Quality Account and Patient Engagement
and Experience Strategy. OSCs were kept
informed about service changes including
the transfer of Bone Marrow Transplant
services from Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS
Foundation Trust to the Denmark Hill site.
Emergency Department re-development
Following a consultation in 2009, work to
redevelop King’s Emergency Department
(ED) continues.
The Ed Glucksman
Resuscitation Unit was opened in
December 2011. This state of the art
facility is the largest of its kind in London.
The new ED entrance on Bessemer Road
has been completed and work is now
taking place to redevelop other areas of
the department, including a separate
mental health suite.
Service users, LINk members and the public
have continued to be involved in the
Mental Health Project Board and are
working with staff and the architects to
explore the more detailed design of the
mental health spaces to ensure that they
meet the needs of users.
Patient information
The Trust officially launched its new,
redesigned external website in May 2011.
All online information relevant to patients
was reviewed, updated and is now
presented in a more patient friendly
format and language. The site also offers a
translation tool to assist patients where
English is not their first language. Patients,
staff and visitors have been actively
engaged in the development of the new
Trust website and a virtual web users
group continues to monitor the site and
provide feedback.

The Trust is committed to providing a
website that is accessible to the widest
possible
audience,
regardless
of
technology or ability, including disabled
people, people with visual impairments
and those with motor deficiencies and
cognitive disabilities.
The website conforms to the World Wide
Web Consortium (W3C) Web Content
Accessibility Guidelines 2.0 at the AA
standard, making it more user friendly for
everyone.
All patient information leaflets and
brochures are routinely reviewed to ensure
they are up to date, accurate and
compliant. Patients are involved in this
reviewing process.
Enhanced quality governance reporting
In addition to the monitoring of Trust
quality priorities outlined in the Quality
Account, the Trust’s Board of Directors has
regard to Monitor’s Quality Governance
Framework. The Board governance
structure has at its heart a Quality and
Governance Committee and reporting
committees which focus on the three
dimensions of quality: patient outcomes,
patient safety and patient experience. The
Committee also reviews a self -assessment
against the Monitor Quality Governance
Framework. This self-assessment is then
reported to the Board and submitted as
part of the quarterly return to Monitor.
More information about the Quality and
Governance Committee can be found on
page 54; further detail about the Trust’s
quality governance processes can be found
in the Annual Governance Statement
within the Annual Accounts on pages 159162.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Membership Report
The Membership Development Strategy of
previous years has been replaced by a new
Engagement and Experience Strategy. The
new strategy outlines the Trust’s approach
to recruiting, maintaining and involving a

membership representative of the
community so that through its members,
King’s can play a positive role in improving
the local community.
The Engagement and Experience Strategy
will be monitored by the Governors’
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Membership and Community Engagement
Committee and the Trust Patient
Experience Committee.
A representative membership
The Trust’s membership is split into three
constituencies: public, patient and staff.
Public membership - anyone who is 16
years old or over and lives within the
Boroughs of Lambeth or Southwark is
entitled to become a public member.
Patient membership - anyone who is 16
years old or over and lives outside of
Lambeth and Southwark but has been a
patient of King’s in the last six years, or has
been the carer of a patient of King’s in the
last six years, is entitled to become a
patient member.
Staff membership - all staff of the Trust
who have contracts of at least 12 months
are automatically members unless they
choose to opt out. Employees of other
companies who are based at King’s and
who provide services for the Trust e.g.
Medirest staff, are also entitled to become
staff members.

Membership recruitment
Given the continuing difficult financial
climate for the NHS as a whole, the
Governors’ Membership and Community
Engagement Committee agreed that the
Trust should continue to employ low-cost
recruitment methods over the last year.
However, recruitment for the period has
been encouraging with 945 new members
recruited in 2010/11, compared to 328 in
the previous year. A total of 728 members
left during the year so there was an overall
net increase of 217 members. This
represents an increase of 2.6% of total
membership.
Recruitment methods have included:







The total number of members at year end
was 15,318. This total includes 4,255 from
the public constituency and 3,894 from the
patient constituency.
The Trust continues to work hard to ensure
that its membership is representative of
the local community, and takes steps to
ensure that membership is accessible to all
who are eligible, irrespective of age,
gender, race or social background.
Demographics of the membership are
monitored via the membership database
and any gaps can be addressed with
targeted recruitment. For example, King’s
has proportionally fewer members in the
16-35 age category and so new Trust
volunteers, a large proportion of whom are
under 25, are being encouraged to sign up
for membership.





Mailings to local voluntary sector
groups in Lambeth and Southwark,
attending local community group
meetings and AGMs ;
Promoting membership via Lambeth
and Southwark’s Patient and Public
Involvement
email
alerts
and
newsletters;
Promoting membership as part of
King’s ‘How are we doing?’ patient
feedback programme;
Including
information
about
membership as part of the Trust’s new
outpatient survey;
Working with local schools and
colleges including Lambeth College and
Sacred Heart School, Camberwell; and
Working with the King’s volunteer
programme to promote membership
at external community events, careers
fairs, at local schools.

The Trust’s Engagement and Experience
Strategy sets out a target of maintaining a
patient and public membership of between
8,000 and 10,000 members.
Other key goals for the coming year
include:
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Continue to develop opportunities for
patient, public and staff member
involvement in the work of King’s so








that members can have a real say in
how the organisation develops;
Work with King’s Health Partners (KHP)
to promote membership and develop
opportunities for member involvement
across the partner organisations;
Promote opportunities for Governors
to engage effectively with members;
Work together with our colleagues in
KHP to engage with our stakeholders in
the development of KHP services and
to work together to improve patient
experience; and
Work with our Governors and
members
to
campaign
for
improvements in our local community.

An involved membership
King’s undertakes a number of regular
initiatives to involve members with Trust
activities. Some of these are outlined on
pages 36 and 37. Others include:







Members’ News - a regular newsletter
which updates members on events at
King’s and highlights opportunities to
get more involved in the Trust, plus
notification of all Council of Governor
meetings;
Members’ Health Talks - a programme
of talks on public health and how
services are structured and delivered;
Annual Review - a digest of the Trust
annual report; and
Members’ Section on Trust website useful up-to-date information and
news is provided in the section of the
website dedicated to members. It

includes more information on how
they can get involved in the work of
the Trust.
Engagement in Governor elections
A large scale communications and
engagement programme was run in the
lead up to the Governor elections held in
summer 2011. The main aim was to
encourage patient, public and staff
members to stand as a Governor and to
vote in the elections. Information tailored
to young people and adults was produced
and circulated widely both in King’s and to
local community groups. The elections
were promoted at a range of local groups
e.g. the SE5 Forum and a local Muslim
women’s centre. Current Governors spoke
at an information session for members;
they talked about their role and why
members should stand for election.
Concerted effort was made to engage staff
in the elections with senior staff attending
staff meetings, manning stands in public
areas and in the staff canteen.
Contacting the Membership Office
If you have any queries regarding
membership,
please
contact
the
Membership team:
Membership Office
King’s College Hospital
FREEPOST NAT 7343
London SE5 9BR
Email: kch-tr.members@nhs.net
Telephone: 020 3299 8888

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PART 3: NHS FOUNDATION TRUST CODE OF
GOVERNANCE
Statutory Framework
King’ College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust received authorisation as a public
benefit corporation on 01 December 2006.
The Trust’s principal purpose is the

provision of goods and services for the
purposes of the health service in England.
Governance Framework
The Trust has eight Membership
Constituencies, a Council of Governors
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(formerly Board of Governors) and a Board
of Directors. The responsibilities of the
Board of Directors and the Council of
Governors are set out in the Trust’s
Constitution and in approved standing
orders.
The members of the Council of Governors
are elected by the membership or
appointed
by
various
bodies
or
organisation in accordance with the Trust’s
Constitution.
The Council of Governors is responsible for
representing the interests of NHS
Foundation
Trust
members
and
stakeholder
organisations
in
the
governance of the Trust. They exercise
statutory powers, such as the appointment
of Non-Executive Directors and the
external auditor.
The Council of Governors comprises twelve
elected Public Governors, six elected
Patient Governors, six elected Staff
Governors and nine appointed Stakeholder
representatives (see tables 22-24 on pages
58-61 for details).

Management Framework
The Board of Directors is responsible for
the management and governance of the
Trust. It is responsible for ensuring
compliance with the Trust’s terms of
authorisation, constitution, mandatory
guidance issued by the Trust independent
regulator, Monitor, and with relevant
statutory requirements and contractual
obligations.
Led by the Chairman, the Board of
Directors sets the Trust’s strategy,
determines objectives and regularly
monitors performance. It decides on
matters of risk and assurance and is
responsible for delivering high quality and
safe services. It provides leadership within
a framework of prudent and effective
controls that enables risk to be assessed
and managed.
The Board meets regularly and has a
formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved for its decision. The Board
delegates other matters to the Executive
Directors and other senior managers.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Performance of the Board of Directors, its
Compliance Statement
The Trust is committed to high standards
of corporate governance as set out in the
NHS
Foundation
Trust
Code
of
Governance. The Trust meets all the main
principles of the code especially those
relating to the development and
management
of
patient
services,
information provision and accountability
for the use of public resources.
Information, development and evaluation
Directors and Governors are supplied with
information in a timely manner and in an
appropriate form and quality to enable
them to discharge their duties.
The
information needs of both the Board of
Directors and Council of Governors are
subject to periodic review.

Committees and individual Directors are
subject to regular review as detailed on
page 50.
Accountability and Audit
As detailed on page 52, the Council of
Governors appointed Deloitte LLP as the
Trust’s external auditor. In addition, the
Board of Directors maintains a sound
system of internal control and has reappointed KPMG as its internal auditors.
The Board of Directors ensures effective
scrutiny of financial and operational
matters
through
its
designated
Committees and regular reporting to the
Board presenting a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Trust’s
position and forward plans.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------42

Stakeholder Relations
The Board of Directors recognises the
importance of effective communication
with a wide range of stakeholders,
including members of the Trust.
The annual public meeting is used as an
opportunity
to
communicate
with
members, in addition to regular written
communication and member events. A
series of community events are held
annually to enable members to feed into
the Trust’s annual plan and other
initiatives. More information about these
events can be found on page 37-38.
The Board of Directors and Council of
Governors enjoy a close working
relationship. Members of the Board of
Directors regularly attend Council of
Governors meetings, and Governors are
actively encouraged to attend Board of
Directors meetings.
The annual plan
submitted to Monitor has had regard to
the views of the Council of Governors and
members.
Examples of on-going projects which
involve working alongside key stakeholders
are outlined below:
King’s Health Partners (KHP)
At their meeting in January 2012, the
Board of Directors agreed to engage in the
process to develop a Strategic Outline Case
(SOC) for the creation of a fully integrated
academic
healthcare
organisation.
Development of the SOC is in progress,
with representatives from all partner
organisations working closely together.

Integrated Care
KHP is leading an ambitious programme to
develop integrated care for local people,
covering mental and physical health, social
care and the voluntary sector. There are a
number of new initiatives starting over the
summer designed to improve care for
older people, to support care in the
community, in their homes, reduce
hospital admissions and support early
discharge. Guy’s and St Thomas’ charity
have now approved funding over 3 years.
Patients and carers continue to work with
us to co-produce new ways of working.
Ultimately, the Integrated Care Programme
will encompass several long term
conditions such as diabetes.
Care Closer to Home
King’s continues to work with primary care
(PCTs and GP commissioning groups) to
redesign care pathways that facilitate the
shift of care closer to home in a primary
care, community setting or at home where
possible. Working closely with clinicians as
well as commissioners we have identified
patient groups who are able to receive
their care safely and appropriately in
alternative settings, accessing specialist
opinion where necessary. King’s continues
to evaluate new service models to ensure
that they are both high quality and
affordable.
Community Services Integration
Community services are now hosted
through Guy’s and St Thomas’. King’s
continues to work in partnership with
community services, primary and social
care to enhance homecare so that patients
who need more intensive support can be
managed
safely
at
home.

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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Divergence from the NHS
Foundation Trust Code of
Governance
There are three areas where the Trust
diverges from the NHS Foundation Trust
Code of Governance:
A.3.1 - The Board should identify each
Non-Executive Director it considers to be
independent.
Declaration - The Board considers that all
its Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) are
independent in character and judgement,
including Professor Alan McGregor
representative of King’s College London.
The test of independence for NEDs is made
both at interview and again annually at
performance review. Professor McGregor
brings a breadth of expertise to the Board
and he is independent of the executive and
is able to provide an objective and

balanced opinion on matters relating to
the Trust’s business.
C.2.1 – The Chief Executive and other
Executive Directors should be subject to reappointment at intervals of no more than 5
years.
Declaration – With the exception of the
Medical Director, who is appointed on a
fixed term three year contract, executive
Directors are employed on substantive
contracts not subject to re-appointment.
C.2.1 – Non-Executive Directors, including
the Chairman, should be appointed by the
Council of Governors for specified terms
subject to re-appointment thereafter at
intervals of no more than three years.
Declaration – The Council of Governors
have approved four year terms of office for
Non-Executive appointments, subject to a
maximum of two four year terms (except
in exceptional circumstances).

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PART 4: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors is made up of the
Chair and six Non-Executive Directors, plus
six Executive and two non-voting Directors
all of whom are collectively responsible for
the success of the Trust. Executive
Directors are full time employees of the
Trust and Non-Executive Directors,
considered independent, are appointed by
the Council of Governors on a fixed term
basis of currently four years. The Council of
Governors also have the power to remove
Non-Executive Directors.
Executive Directors manage the day-to-day
running of the Trust whilst the Chair and
the Non-Executive Directors provide
strategic and board level guidance, support
and steer. The members of the Board
boast a wide range of skills and bring
experience gained from NHS organisations,

other public bodies and private sector
organisations.
The skills portfolio of the Directors, both
Executive and Non-Executive is wide
ranging and includes accountancy, audit,
education, management consultancy, law,
engineering and medicine. This broad
coverage of knowledge and skills
strengthens the effectiveness of the Board
of Directors giving the Trust confidence
that the Board of Directors is balanced,
complete and appropriate to supporting
the Trust in meeting its objectives.
Previously, the Board had elected one of its
Non-Executive Directors to serve both as
Vice Chair and as Senior Independent
Director. Following changes in Board
personnel, outlined below, the roles of
Vice Chair and Senior Independent Director
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are now held by separate Non-Executive
Directors.
There have been a number of changes to
the Board this year. The Board said
goodbye to one of its longest serving NonExecutive Directors and Chair Michael
Parker on 30 November 2011. This role
was taken over by Professor Sir George
Alberti who has been a Non-Executive

Director at the Trust since 2010. The Board
also bid farewell to Martin West and
Robert Foster. In their place the Trust was
delighted to welcome Christopher Stooke,
Graham Meek and Faith Boardman.
Executive director Ahmad Toumadj retired
as a non-voting Executive Director but is
still supporting the Trust through its
commercial services.

Table 14: Directors of the Trust during 2011/12
Non-Executives
Professor Sir George Alberti (Chair from Dec 2011)
Mr Graham Meek (appointed Non-Executive Director Dec 2011)
(appointed Vice Chair from Feb 2012)
Mr Marc Meryon ( appointed Senior Independent Director Mar 2012)
Ms Maxine James
Mr Christopher Stooke (appointed Non-Executive Director Nov 2011)
Ms Faith Boardman (appointed Non-Executive Director Mar 2012)
Mr Michael Parker (Chair until Nov 2011)
Mr Robert Foster (Vice Chair and Senior Independent Director until Mar 2012)
Mr Martin West (until June 2011)
Executives
Mr Timothy Smart, Chief Executive
Ms Angela Huxham, Director of Workforce Development
Mr Michael Marrinan, Medical Director
Mr Roland Sinker, Director of Operations
Mr Simon Taylor, Chief Financial Officer
Dr Geraldine Walters, Director of Nursing and Midwifery
Ms Jane Walters, Director Corporate Affairs
Mr Jacob West, Director of Strategy
Mr Ahmad Toumadj, Director of Facilities (until Apr 2011) Retired
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Directors’ Biographies
Non-Executive Directors
Professor Sir George Alberti (Chair)

Maxine James

Internationally renowned for
his work in the field of
diabetes, he has also been
instrumental in shaping recent healthcare
policy towards the management of urgent
care and major emergencies. He served as
a Non-Executive Director of the Trust
before being appointed as the Chair of
King’s in December 2011.

Maxine is an IMC registered
consultant who has been
involved
in
management
development for voluntary and community
organisations and small businesses for over
20 years. She was a member of DTI’s
Ethnic Minority Business Forum for four
years, and is Chair of Ethnic Mutual, a
community development finance initiative
and Vice Chair of Julian’s Primary School.

Professor Alberti was knighted in 2000 for
services to Diabetic Medicine, and is a
member
of
the
World
Health
Organisation’s Expert Advisory Panel on
Diabetes. He is also Chair of Diabetes UK.
He is a past Dean of Medicine at the
University of Newcastle upon Tyne and a
former President of the Royal College of
Physicians.
He was the Government’s National Clinical
Director for Emergency Access from 2002
to 2009, and was the author of the
influential Emergency access – Clinical Case
for Change. George’s term of office will
end in November 2015.
Graham Meek (Vice Chair)
Graham is a trustee of the
British Cardiovascular Society
and a Non-Executive Director of
Filtronic plc and Capital Gearing Trust plc.
He was previously Chairman of two other
listed companies, ICM Computer Group plc
and SPI Lasers plc.
During his career as an investment banker
with Wood Mackenzie, Smith New Court
and Merrill Lynch, he advised a broad
range of UK companies on capital raising,
mergers and acquisitions and corporate
strategy. Graham joined the King’s Board in
December 2011 and his current term of
office will end in November 2015.

Maxine has been a Non-Executive Director
of King’s since 2004 and was re-appointed
in May 2008 and her current term of office
ends in April 2012.
Professor Alan McGregor
Professor of Medicine at King’s
College London and Campus
Dean for the Denmark Hill site,
in addition, Professor McGregor is an
Honorary Consultant Physician and
Endocrinologist at King’s College Hospital.
Nationally he has chaired numerous
Boards and Committees for bodies
including the Medical Research Council and
the Department of Health.
Alan has been a Non-Executive Director of
King’s since 2003. He was re-appointed in
2007 and subsequently re-appointed for a
further 1 year term of office to end in
October 2012.
Marc Meryon
Marc Meryon is a partner and
Head of Industrial Relations of
international law firm Eversheds
LLP. Marc specialises in employment law
and is recognised in the legal directories as
an expert in industrial relations. He
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frequently comments on this area in both
broadcast and print media.

financial, performance
challenges.

Marc acts for a large number of household
names in a wide range of sectors including
manufacturing, transport/logistics and
healthcare,
advising
on
effective
organisational change in a unionised
environment, as well as managing and
resolving industrial disputes.

She has been Chief Executive for both the
Child Support Agency (1997-2000) and
more recently at Lambeth Council (200005).

In the healthcare sector he has advised
Trusts on equal opportunities law, the
application of the working time directive
and pay protection for junior doctors. Marc
has been a Non-Executive Director of Kings
since August 2010.
Christopher M Stooke
Christopher
graduated
in
economics
from
Durham
University and started his
accountancy career at PwC. He was made
partner in 1990 and was responsible for
the audit of a number of blue chip
companies in the UK and Europe, mainly in
the financial services sector.
From 2003 to 2009 he was Chief Financial
Officer of Catlin Group, the FTSE 350
insurer.
He is now a Non-Executive Director at
three companies and one charity, in
addition to King's. He has lived in South
London almost all his life and is now based
in Dulwich. Chris joined the King’s Board in
November 2011 and his current term of
office will end in October 2015.
Faith Boardman
Faith lives in Lambeth, and
brings 40 years of public service
at both the local and the
national levels. She has a proven track
record of delivering service improvements
in large public sector organisations that are
dealing with substantial change, and with

and

customer

She is Chair of Trustees for Vauxhall City
Farm and London Ecumenical Aids Trust,
and was formerly a Non-Executive member
of the Metropolitan Police Authority. Faith
joined the King's Board in March 2012.
Michael Parker (Chair until Nov. 2011) –
End of Term
Michael is a Fellow of the
Association
of
Chartered
Certified Accountants. He served
as a Non-Executive Director and Vice Chair
of Guy’s and St. Thomas’s NHS Trust before
being appointed as Chair of King’s in 2002
until November 2011. He then joined NHS
London as a Non-Executive Board member
and went on to Chair Croydon Health
Services NHS Trust.
Michael was the Chair of ACCA’s Corporate
Governance
&
Risk
Management
Committee, the President of the Sickle Cell
Society and Treasurer of the Mary Seacole
Memorial Statute Appeal. He is also a
Board member of the Food Standards
Agency until May 2012, an external advisor
to the Royal College of Nurses’ Audit
Committee, Chair of NHS London’s
Diversity Reference Group, a member of
ACCA’s Health Panel.
Michael is a Fellow of the Royal Society of
Arts, an Honorary Fellow of King’s College,
London and in 2011 he received a CBE in
the New Year’s Honours list.
Robert Foster (Vice Chair and Senior
Independent Director until Mar 2012) End
of Term
Robert is a Commissioner of the
National Lottery Commission, a
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Non-Executive Director of the Jersey
Competition Regulatory Authority, a
Governor of GSTT NHS Foundation Trust
and a member of the Advisory Council of
Oxford Capital Partners.
Previously, he was Chief Executive of the
UK Competition Commission; and a Senior
Civil Servant in the Cabinet Office and
DBIS. He is a Chartered Engineer and was
an engineering manager in the electronics
and telecommunications industries. Robert
is Vice Chair and Senior Independent
Director.

was re-appointed in March 2008. Robert’s
term of office ended in March 2012.
Martin West – Resigned
A qualified management
accountant and chartered civil
engineer, Martin is a director in
the Real Estate Strategy & Finance Team at
Drivers Jonas Deloitte and was, until
recently, an independent board member
and Chair of the services committee for
Willow Housing & Care Ltd. Martin joined
the Board in July 2007 and he resigned
from office in June 2011.

Robert was originally appointed as NonExecutive director on 18 March 2004, and

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Executive Directors – Voting
Timothy Smart (Chief Executive)

Simon Taylor (Chief Financial Officer)

Since 2008 when he joined
King’s, Tim has brought a
renewed
focus
on
improvements in patient experience,
service quality, and partner and
stakeholder relationships.

Simon has worked at King’s for
over 20 years holding positions
as Financial Controller and
Deputy Director of Finance before
becoming Director of Finance in 2002.

Before joining the NHS, Tim had a 30-year
career in the commercial sector, first with
Shell and latterly with BT. He brings with
him a wealth of experience in customer
service and satisfaction, developing
commercial partnerships, and team and
people development.
He has worked in the Middle East, the
Netherlands and the US. He also has
experience as a Non-Executive director of a
US-listed financial services company, he is
Trustee of a charity which provides mental
health support to primary school children
and he was a member of the Foundation
Trust Network Board until May 2012.

He is also responsible for Information
Services, Capital Estates & Facilities and
overseeing the Trust’s commercial
developments.
Simon is a director of KCH Commercial
Services and its subsidiaries, Agnentis Ltd
and KCH Management Ltd.
Roland Sinker (Executive Director of
Operations)
Roland joined the Trust in 2005
as Director of Strategy for King’s
and latterly as Joint Director of
Strategy for King’s and Guy’s and St
Thomas’.
Prior to joining the NHS, Roland worked as
a lawyer and management consultant.
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Roland is a Director and Company
Secretary of KCH Commercial Services.
Angela Huxham (Executive Director of
Workforce Development)
Angela has been a Director in the
NHS since 2002, working for
acute teaching hospitals, primary
and secondary care sectors.
She co-chairs the NHS Pension Scheme
Governance Group and chairs the UK
University
Hospitals
HR
Directors’
Network.
Since 1995 she has served as a judicial
Member of the Employment Tribunals
Service. Her career in people management
spans manufacturing, insurance, retailing
and local government.
Mr Michael Marrinan (Medical Director)
A
Consultant
Thoracic
Surgeon,
Michael
was
appointed as the Trust’s
Executive Medical Director in
February 2010 following two years' service
as Deputy Medical Director.
Michael has worked at King’s for nearly 20
years, and has previously chaired both the
Consultants’ Committee and the Patient
Records Committee.

Honorary Professor at the Florence
Nightingale School at Kings College
London. Geraldine is an Advisor to the
Florence Nightingale Foundation, a
member of the Royal College of Nursing
Audit Committee, the National Clinical
Audit Advisory Group and a Trustee of
Trinity Hospice.
Geraldine worked in a variety of hospitals
in her early career, including King’s, and
subsequently gained a PhD and an MBA.
Board Directors – Non-Voting
Jane Walters (Director of Corporate
Affairs and Trust Secretary)
Jane has worked at King’s since
1992, holding positions as
Business Manager and Head of
Corporate Services before being appointed
as Director of Corporate Affairs in 2004.
Her earlier career was in local government,
where she worked in a variety of senior
roles in the fields of corporate governance
and quality assurance.
Jane holds a Masters in Social Policy from
the University of Cranfield, and leads the
Trust’s Patient Experience programme.
She is also a trustee of a local hospice.
Jacob West (Director of Strategy)

He was also heavily involved in the
development of King’s activity based
costing system
Dr Geraldine Walters (Director of Nursing
and Midwifery and Director of Infection
Prevention and Control)
A cardiac nurse by background,
Geraldine has held a number of
Executive Nurse Director posts in
acute NHS Trusts in London.
Geraldine is visiting Professor at
Buckinghamshire New University and an

Jacob was Deputy Director and
latterly Acting Director at the
Prime Minister's Strategy Unit
before joining King’s. His role was to advise
Number 10 and the Prime Minister on a
range of public service reform issues, and
was lead adviser on health policy from
2007.
In 2006 Jacob was seconded to the
Premier's Office in Queensland, Australia
where he helped develop a public health
strategy for the State.
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Prior to this he worked as a consultant to a
number of government agencies in the
United States on a range of public service
reform issues and was a senior policy
adviser in the UK government.
Ahmad Toumadj (Director of Capital,
Estates and Facilities) - Retired

All Executive and Non-Executive Directors
have an annual performance appraisal and
a personal development plan, which forms
the basis of their individual development.
Annual performance appraisals were
completed in July 2011 and are next due in
July 2012.

Ahmad holds a post-graduate
qualification in Architecture
from the Bartlett School of
Architecture at UCL and is a Fellow of
Chartered Institute of Building.

The performance of Executive Directors is
reviewed by the Chief Executive and
considered by the Remuneration and
Appointments Committee in relation to
remuneration.

After working in the construction industry,
he joined the NHS in 1980 and King’s in
1997. Ahmad retired in April 2011.

The
process
for
evaluating
the
performance of the Chair and NonExecutive Directors has been agreed in
consultation with the Council of
Governors.

Evaluation and development of the Board
As detailed on page 45, there have been a
number of changes to the Board of
Directors during the reporting period. In
addition, Maxine James’ term of office
ends in April 2012 when she reaches the
end of her second term as Non-Executive
Director. The Board will welcome Sue
Slipman as Non-Executive Director from
July 2012.
Because of these changes the Board of
Directors will undertake a process of Board
evaluation when all new appointees are in
place in the autumn of 2012.

Members of the Board undertake personal
development on an on-going basis and
collectively, the Board holds periodic
development sessions during the year.
Company Directorships and Other
Significant Interests and Commitments
The Trust maintains a Register of Interests
for its Directors. You can make
arrangements to view the register by
contacting the Trust Secretary on 020 3299
1680.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Board Meetings and
Committees
The Board of Directors met regularly
throughout the year. Table 15 on the next
page records the attendance of each
Director at Board of Directors’ meetings.
The Trust has six board committees which

also meet regularly and are each chaired
by a Non-Executive Director. Some of the
work of the Board is delegated to these
Committees, as illustrated in the diagram
below table 15.
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Table 15: Directors’ attendance at Board meetings
Attendance at meeting
(Actual/possible)
Non-Executive Directors
George Alberti, Chair
Graham Meek, Vice Chair *1
Alan McGregor
Maxine James*2
Marc Meryon
Christopher Stooke*3
Faith Boardman*4
Michael Parker*5
Robert Foster*6
Martin West*7

12/12
5/5
11/12
11/12
11/12
5/5
0/1
8/8
10/11
4/4
Executive Directors

Timothy Smart
Michael Marrinan
Angela Huxham
Geraldine Walters
Simon Taylor
Roland Sinker

12/12
12/12
12/12
12/12
12/12
12/12
Executive Directors – Non Voting

Jane Walters
Ahmad Toumadj*8
Jacob West
*1
Started Office 01 December 2011
*2
Attended only the private session in July
*3
Started Office 01 November 2011
*4
Started Office 18 March 2012
*5
End of Office 30 November 2011
*6
End of Office 17 March 2012
*7
Resigned
*8
Retired

12/12
1/1
10/12
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The Board of Directors approve the terms
of reference which detail the remit and the
delegated authority of each committee.
Each committee is required to complete an
annual review and self-assessment which is
then presented to the Board of Directors.
In addition, to regularly reporting to the
Board of Directors, committee minutes are

a standing item on each Board agenda.
Tables 16 to 21 record the Non-Executive
Director membership of each Committee;
in addition, tables 16 and 17 record
attendance at the Audit Committee and
Remuneration
and
Appointments
Committee respectively.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------During the reporting period the Committee
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is responsible for
monitoring the externally reported
performance of the Trust and providing
independent assurance to the Board of
Directors on a range of areas including
internal control, risk management,
external assurance of the Trust risk
management processes, internal and
external audit and financial reporting. The
Trust also has a zero-tolerance policy
towards fraud and the Committee is
responsible for overseeing the work of the
Counter Fraud Team.
It continues to closely monitor the
effectiveness of internal control and audit
processes on behalf of the Trust.
The Committee met four times during the
year. It is currently chaired by Christopher
Stooke who brings a wealth of financial
expertise to the Committee. It comprises
the Non-Executive Directors detailed in
table 16. The internal and external auditors
regularly attend meetings of the
Committee in addition to the Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Executive, the
Director of Corporate Affairs and the Trust
local counter fraud specialist, although
they are not members of the Committee.
The Chair of the Board of Directors and
other members of the executive team
attend meetings of the Committee by
invitation. The broad coverage of
knowledge and skills of the members and
attendees strengthens the effectiveness of
the committee. The Trust is satisfied that
the Committee is sufficiently independent.

reviewed and discussed the risk
management strategy and board assurance
framework documents which cover risk to
the delivery of the Trust’s objectives. It
evaluated considered reports from internal
and external auditors focusing on those
with ‘limited assurance’ and the
implementation
of
agreed
recommendations. It also received reports
on counter fraud work at the Trust.
It fulfilled its oversight responsibilities with
regard to the monitoring of the integrity of
financial statements and the annual
accounts, including the annual statement
of internal control before submission to
the Board.
The Trust’s external audit service contract
with the Audit Commission came to an end
in June 2011. The Trust underwent an
agreed tender process, appointing an audit
tender panel comprising of two NonExecutive Directors (one a member of the
Audit Committee), two Governors, the
Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer,
Executive Director of Operations and the
Director of Procurement shared services.
In May 2011 the Council of Governors
approved the recommendation to appoint
Deloitte for a period of three years,
commencing 2011/12, with an option to
extend for up to two further years.
Independence of external auditor
The Trust’s external auditors, Deloitte,
have communicated the following matters
to the Audit Committee:
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The principal threats, if any, to
objectivity
and
independence
identified by the auditor, including
consideration of all relationships
between the Trust, Directors and the
auditor;
Any safeguards adopted and the
reasons why they are considered to be
effective;
Any independent partner review;




The overall assessment of threats and
safeguards;
Information about the general policies
and
processes
for maintaining
objectivity and independence.

Deloitte is not aware of any relationships
that may affect the independence and
objectivity of the team, and which are
required to be disclosed under auditing
and ethical standards.

Table 16: Audit Committee - Non-Executive Director membership and attendance
Attendance at meeting
(Actual/possible)
2/2
4/5
5/5
4/4
5/5
1/1
1/3
1/1

Chris Stooke (Chair from Nov 2011)
Martin West (Chair until Jun 2011)
Marc Meryon
George Alberti (until Dec 2011)
Maxine James
Graham Meek
Robert Foster
Alan McGregor

Remuneration and
Appointments
Committee

In addition, together with the Chief
Executive, Committee members form a
panel for the appointment of Executive
Directors.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, the
Committee agrees Executive Directors’
remuneration and terms of service.

The Committee met 3 times during the
reporting period.

Table 17: Remuneration and Appointments Committee – membership and attendance
Attendance at meeting
(Actual/possible)
3/3
2/2
3/3
2/2
3/3
2/3
1/1
3/3
1/1
0/0

Prof George Alberti (Chair from Dec 2011)
Michael Parker (Chair until Nov 2011)
Robert Foster (until Mar 2012)
Martin West (until June 2011)
Maxine James
Prof. Alan McGregor
Graham Meek (from Dec 2011)
Marc Meryon
Christopher Stooke (from Nov 2011)
Faith Boardman (from Mar 2012)

53

Finance and Performance Committee
This Committee is responsible for
reviewing and monitoring the Trust
operational and financial performance
against core targets and indicators,
national targets and ensuring that the
Trust remains compliant with Monitor’s
financial and governance risk ratings.

The Committee met 11 times in during the
reporting period.
On 26 July 2011, the Committee reviewed
its Terms of Reference and the
membership of the Committee was
extended to include all Board members.

Table 18: Finance and Performance Committee – Non-Executive Director membership
Graham Meek (Chair from Dec 2011)
Michael Parker (Chair until Nov 2011)
Marc Meryon
Prof Sir George Alberti
Maxine James
Equality and Diversity Committee
This Committee monitors equality and
diversity issues related to the provision of
services to patients, employees and
procurement practices.

Prof Alan McGregor
Robert Foster (until Mar 2012)
Faith Boardman (from Mar 2012)
Martin West (until Jun 2011)
Christopher Stooke (from Nov 2011)
progress in implementing its Diversity
Strategy objectives and compliance with
the Equality Act.
The Committee met 4 times in during the
reporting period.

It is also responsible for monitoring
Table 19: Equality and Diversity Committee – Non-Executive Director membership
Maxine James (Chair)
Prof Alan McGregor
Prof Sir George Alberti
Quality and Governance Committee
This Committee is responsible for
overseeing the three dimensions of quality:
patient safety, patient experience and
patient outcomes as well as organisational

Marc Meryon
Michael Parker (until Nov 2011)

safety, risk management and compliance
and information governance.
The Committee met 6 times this year.

Table 20: Quality and Governance Committee - Non-Executive Director membership
Prof Alan McGregor (Chair)
Robert Foster (until Mar 2012)
Michael Parker (until Dec 2011)
Strategy Committee
This Committee is responsible for
overseeing the development of the Trust’s
strategy, vision and values. It also reviews
progress against the Trust’s strategic

Prof Sir George Alberti
Graham Meek (from Dec 2012)
Faith Boardman (from Mar 2012)
objectives and discusses major strategic
issues.
The Committee met 4 times this year.

54

Table 21: Strategy Committee - Non-Executive Director membership
Prof Sir George Alberti - (Interim Chair from Prof Alan McGregor
Mar 2012)
Robert Foster (Chair until Mar 2012)
Marc Meryon
Graham Meek (from Dec 2011)
Faith Boardman (from Mar 2012)
Maxine James
Martin West (until Jun 2011)
Christopher Stooke (from Nov 2011)
Michael Parker (until Nov 2011)

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Affordability is also taken into account in
Remuneration Report
The remuneration and terms of service of
the Chair and Non-Executive Directors
(NEDs) are determined by the Council of
Governors, taking account of relevant
market data, including the Foundation
Trust Network’s NED remuneration survey.
Remuneration for the Trust’s most senior
managers (Directors accountable to the
Chief Executive) is determined by the
Trust’s Remuneration and Appointments
Committee, which comprises the Chair and
the Non-Executive Directors. Table 17 on
page 53 records the Committee
membership and meeting attendance.
The Remuneration and Appointments
Committee is informed by executive salary
surveys,
by
periodic
assessments
conducted by independent remuneration
consultants and by the salary awards and
terms and conditions applying to other
NHS staff groups. The report and data
available to the Remuneration and
Appointments Committee is provided by
the Executive Director of Workforce
Development who is not a member of the
committee. The Trust’s strategy and
annual planning processes set key business
objectives which, in turn, inform individual
and collective objectives for senior
managers.
Trust
and
individual
performance are closely monitored and
discussed throughout the year and form
part of the annual appraisal.

determining pay uplifts for Directors. For
the financial year 2011/12, there was no
uplift in basic pay for Executive Directors,
which has remained at 2010 rates for a
further year. This decision also recognises
the pay freeze for all Trust employees as
part of the public sector-wide restriction
on pay increases.

Accounting policies for pensions and other
retirement benefits are set out on note 1.6
(ii) on page 172 of the annual accounts and
details of senior employees’ remuneration
can be found on page 190. The only noncash element of the most senior managers’
remuneration packages is pension related
benefits accrued during membership of the
NHS Pension Scheme. Contributions into
the scheme are made by both the
employer and employee in accordance
with the statutory regulations.
The Executive Medical Director is a medical
consultant within the Trust, whose role is
undertaken on a fixed term, three-year
contract which may be renewed by
agreement. This contract is next due for
review/ renewal in February 2013.
Additional paid programmed activities are
provided in the Executive Medical
Director’s job plan to enable the
performance
of
these
additional
responsibilities. In addition the Executive
Medical Director receives a pay
supplement.
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Executive Director

Date in post

Unexpired Term Notice

Executive Medical Director

2 February 2010

1 year, 3 months

All of the other most senior managers are
substantive employees of the Trust
employed on open-ended contracts of
employment which can be terminated by
the Trust with up to twelve months’ notice.

Compensation in the event of early
termination would be in accordance with
contractual entitlements as set out in the
Agenda for Change national terms and
conditions of service.

Signed:

Timothy Smart
Chief Executive

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PART 5: COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS
The Council of Governors comprises 24
elected Governors and 9 appointed
stakeholder and partner Governors as
detailed on pages 58-61. The normal term
of office for Governors is three years. As
guardians of the community interest, the
Council of Governors ensures that the
needs of members are considered in the
planning of future services. The Council of
Governors is also responsible for the
appointment, remuneration and removal
of the Chair and other Non-Executive
Directors.
Governors are active within the
community,
helping
to
facilitate
communication between the Trust,
members and the local community.
Governors are pivotal to sharing the Trust
vision and performance with key
stakeholders

During the reporting period, amongst a
plethora of activity, the Council of
Governors:







Appointed on the recommendation of
the Nominations Committee, the new
Chair, Professor Sir George Alberti, and
Non-Executive Directors, Christopher
Stooke, Graham Meek, Faith Boardman
and Sue Slipman;
Appointed the Trust’s external auditors
Deloitte;
Received and considered the annual
report, annual accounts and auditor’s
report on the accounts; and
Received regular updates on the
Trust’s business planning process and
their
comments
were
duly
incorporated into the Trust’s annual
plan which was submitted to Monitor
in June 2011.

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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Governor Groups and
Committees
The Council also delegated some of its
work to five sub-committees or working
groups which provide the opportunity for
Governors to delve deeper into issues that
are of interest to members, the local
community and the Trust.

The sub-committee structure is illustrated
in the diagram below. All Governors are
eligible to sit on Governor sub-committees,
with the exception of the Nominations
Committee for which Governors are
nominated and elected.

Transport Group
This Group assesses local transport issues
and is developing a lobbying strategy to
influence key decision-makers and help
improve access to King’s. The group has
helped to speed up the redevelopment
project for Denmark Hill railway station
and to press for the continuation of rail
services for patients and staff. The Group
operated until 30 November 2011.

Membership and Community Engagement
Committee
This Committee reviews the membership
development strategy ensuring that
membership
continues
to
be
representative; identifies ways in which
the membership can be more actively
involved and facilitates communication
between Governors and the membership.

At the Council of Governors meeting on 14
February 2012 it was agreed that the work
of this group would in future be conducted
by a transport feeder group, which would
report to the Membership and Community
Engagement Committee.
Patient Experience and Safety Committee
This Committee acts as a reference group
for the Trust’s planned activity around
patient experience and safety and as a
focal point for the Governors’ commentary
to the Care Quality Commission.

The Council of Governors changed the
name of this Committee on 01 December
2011 and increased its remit to wider
community
engagement
and
local
transport issues supported by a feeder
group.
Strategy Committee
This Committee reviews the Trust’s
strategy and annual plan, and feeds back
to the Council of Governors.
Sub-committees have been very active
during the reporting period. Some of their
activities include: helping to review and
design the new Trust website, becoming
involved in nutritional and quality ward
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rounds, successfully campaigned for the
redevelopment of Denmark Hill station to
increase accessibility for passengers and
providing feedback on the Trust’s strategic
priorities, contributing to the development
of its annual plan.

information on, attend Community Events
and participate Trust initiatives such as
Ward 20:20 and collecting patient stories.
Governors were well represented at these
events and initiatives providing the
opportunity for Governors, members and
Directors to come together and
communicate King’s vision and future
plans.

Development and Governor input
The Trust organised a number of
opportunities for the Governors to hear
more about the Trust and to influence how
the Trust operates. In addition, as King’s
Health Partners develops as an Academic
Health Sciences Centre, King’s is engaging
actively with Governors in key discussions.

There is also, a ‘Governors-only’ area on
the Trust’s website for sharing information
electronically. Many Governors have also
attended external events hosted by the
Foundation Trust Governor’s Association
and the Foundation Trust Network during
the reporting period.

As part of on-going support and
development, Governors were given the
opportunity
to
participate
in
a
comprehensive induction programme for
new Governors, attend a joint Board of
Directors and Council of Governors
meeting, participate in Directors’ Surgeries
for which Governors set the agenda,
choose topical issues they want further

Company Directorships and other
significant interests and commitments
The Trust maintains a Register of Interests
for its Governors, which is open to the
public. You can make arrangements to
view the register by contacting the Trust
Secretary on 020 3299 1680.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Composition of Council
Elections were held in accordance with the
of Governors
Trust’s constitution and election rules for
those constituencies. Nominations were
invited for all eligible vacancies and
elections were held where the number of
nominations exceeded the number of
vacancies. The results of the election are
shown in the table below:

It has been a seminal year for the Trust,
not only did it to say goodbye to its Chair
Michael Parker, welcoming Professor Sir
George Alberti in his place but it also
welcomed its new Council of Governors
who were elected during the reporting
year.
Table 22: Election statistics
Date of
Election
Public

Constituencies

Eligible
Voters

Seats
Contested

Contestants

Election
Turnout

22 July 2011
22 July 2011
22 July 2011
22 July 2011
22 July 2011

Lambeth Central
Lambeth North
Southwark Central
Southwark North
Southwark South

618
403
854
857
866

2
2
2
2
2

3
3
7
5
9

22.3%
25.3%
25.3%
21.2%
29.7%

58

Patient
22 July 2011
Staff
22 July 2011
22 July 2011
22 July 2011

Patient

3873

6

18

28.6%

Nursing and Midwifery
Medical and Dental
Allied Health
Professionals
22 July 2011 Admin, Clerical and
Managerial
22 July 2011 Support Staff
Uncontested Seats

2854
734
1327

2
1
1

6
3
2

13.5%
21.5%
12.7%

1340

1

3

17.2%

115

1

2

17.4%

2

2

N/A

22 July 2011

Public - Lambeth South
*2

Council of Governors: 01 April 2011-30
November 2011
The composition of the Council of
Governors, the names of individual
Governors and their terms of office
between 01 March 2011 and 30 November
2011 are detailed in table 23.
During this period the Council of Governors
met three times and all these meetings
were held in public, including the Trust
Annual Public Meeting which was held in
September 2011. The attendances of
individual Governors are detailed in table
25.
Council of Governors: 01 December 201131 March 2012
The composition of the Council of
Governors, the names of individual
Governors and their terms of office

between 01 December 2011 - 31 March
2011 are detailed in table 24.
During this period the Council of Governors
met twice and both these meetings were
held in public. The attendances of
individual Governors are detailed in table
26.
Lead Governor
Patient Governor Andy Glyn served as Lead
Governor until he reached the end of his
term on 30 November 2011. Following a
settling in period for the new Council of
Governors, a ballot will shortly be held to
elect a new Lead Governor. Anyone
wishing to contact the Lead Governor, or
any of the Governors, can do so via the
Foundation Trust Office on 020 3299 4939
or via the website:
www.kch.nhs.uk/contact/governors
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Table 23: Composition of Council of Governors - 01 April 2011-30 November 2011
Elected
Patient
Thomas Duffy
Andy Glyn
Lisa Hayles
Jan Thomas
Pida Ripley
Paul Corben
Public
Hedi Argent
Andy Alatise
Michelle Pearce
Michael Mitchell
Tom Hoffman
Cherry Forster
Rashmi Agrawal
Saleha Jaffer
Timothy Mason
Ann Mullins
Christiana Okoli
Staff
Bruce Hendry
Anthony Agosu
Nicky Hayes
Rowenna Hughes
Mark Monaghan
Brady Pohle
Appointed
Richard Gibbs
Caroline Hewitt
Jane Edbrooke
Dora Dixon-Fyle
Anne Garvey
Chris Mottershead
Diane Summers
Stuart Bell
Frank Wood

Constituency

Term of
Office Began

Term of
Office Ends

Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient

01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008

30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011

Southwark Central
Southwark Central
Southwark South
Southwark South
Southwark North
Lambeth Central
Lambeth Central
Lambeth South
Lambeth South
Lambeth North
Lambeth North

01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008

30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011

Medical & Dentistry
Nursing and Midwifery
Nursing and Midwifery
Support Staff
Allied Health Professionals
Admin, Clerical & Management
Constituency

01/12/2008
01/12/2008
22/07/2010
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
01/12/2008
Term of
Office Began
09/05/2011
01/01/2010
22/07/2010
15/07/2010
22/06/2009
01/07/2009
06/10/2010
01/12/2008
01/12/2008

30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
30/11/2011
Term of
Office Ends
08/05/2014
31/12/2013
15/09/20114
15/09/20114
21/06/2012
30/06/2012
05/10/2013
30/11/2011
30/11/2011

Southwark Primary Care Trust
Lambeth PCT
Lambeth Council
Southwark Council
London South Bank University
King's College London
Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS FT
South London & Maudsley NHS FT
Joint Staff Committee

4

Governors passed a resolution to seek alternative representation from Lambeth and Southwark
Councils to ensure regular representation at Council of Governor meetings.
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Table 24: Composition of Council of Governors – 01 December - 31 March 2012
Elected

Constituency

Term of Office
Began

Term of
Office Ends

Patient
Thomas Duffy

Patient

01/12/2013

Derek Cookson
Patti Kachidza
Jan Thomas

Patient
Patient
Patient

Christine Klaassen
David Sullivan
Public
Barbara Pattinson
Andy Alatise

Patient
Patient

01/12/2011
Re-elected
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
Re-elected
01/12/2011
01/12/2011

01/12/2013
01/12/2013

Michelle Pearce

Southwark South

Stuart Owen
John Henley
Andrew McCall
Michael Robinson
Godwin Ubiaro
Nandakumar Ratnavel
Alam Zabit
Fiona Clark
Christopher North
Staff
Rachel Burman
Carolyn Campbell-Cole
Nicky Hayes

Southwark South
Southwark North
Southwark North
Lambeth Central
Lambeth Central
Lambeth South
Lambeth South
Lambeth North
Lambeth North

01/12/2011
01/12/2011
Re-elected
01/12/2011
Re-elected
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011

01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013

Ahmad Toumadj
Phyllis Barnett
Brady Pohle

Support Staff
Allied Health Professionals
Admin, Clerical & Management

Appointed

Constituency

Richard Gibbs
Caroline Hewitt
Cllr Jim Dickson
Anne Garvey
Chris Mottershead
Diane Summers
Madeliene Long

Southwark Primary Care Trust
Lambeth PCT
Lambeth Council
London South Bank University
King's College London
Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHSFT
South London & Maudsley NHSFT

01/12/2011
01/12/2011
22/07/2010
Re-elected
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
Re-elected
Term of Office
Began
09/05/2011
01/01/2010
01/03/2012
22/06/2009
01/07/2009
06/10/2010
01/12/2011

Southwark Central
Southwark Central

Medical & Dentistry
Nursing and Midwifery
Nursing and Midwifery
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01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013

01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013

01/12/2013
01/12/2013
01/12/2013
Term of
Office Ends
08/05/2014
31/12/2013
28/02/2015
21/06/2012
30/06/2012
05/10/2013
30/11/2014

Carol Bell
Vacant

Joint Staff Committee
Southwark Council

01/12/2011

30/11/2014

Table 25: Governor attendance at meetings – 01 April 2011 – 30 November 2011
Governors
Patient
Thomas Duffy
Andy Glyn
Lisa Hayles
Jan Thomas
Pida Ripley
Paul Corben
Public
Hedi Argent
Andy Alatise
Michelle Pearce
Michael Mitchell
Tom Hoffman
Cherry Forster
Rashmi Agrawal
Saleha Jaffer
Timothy Mason
Ann Mullins
Christiana Okoli
Staff
Bruce Hendry
Anthony Agosu
Nicky Hayes
Rowenna Hughes
Mark Monaghan
Brady Pohle
Appointed
Mee Ling Ng
Richard Gibbs
Caroline Hewitt
Jane Edbrooke
Dora Dixon-Fyle
Anne Garvey
Chris Mottershead

Constituency

Attendance at meetings
(Actual/Possible)

Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient

3/3
3/3
3/3
3/3
2/3
2/3

Southwark Central
Southwark Central
Southwark South
Southwark South
Southwark North
Lambeth Central
Lambeth Central
Lambeth South
Lambeth South
Lambeth North
Lambeth North

2/3
0/3
2/3
2/3
3/3
1/3
0/3
2/3
2/3
3/3
3/3

Medical & Dentistry
Nursing and Midwifery
Nursing and Midwifery
Support Staff
Allied Health Professionals
Admin, Clerical & Management

n/a
2/3
1/3
3/3
2/3
3/3

Southwark Primary Care Trust
Southwark Primary Care Trust
Lambeth PCT
Lambeth Council
Southwark Council
London South Bank University
King's College London

n/a
2/3
1/3
0/3
0/3
0/3
2/3
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Table 26: Governor attendance at meetings – 01 December - 31 March 2012
Governor
Patient
Thomas Duffy
Derek Cookson
Patti Kachidza
Jan Thomas
Christine Klaassen
David Sullivan
Public
Barbara Pattinson
Andy Alatise
Michelle Pearce
Stuart Owen
John Henley
Andrew McCall
Michael Robinson
Godwin Ubiaro
Nandakumar
Ratnavel
Alam Zabit
Fiona Clark
Christopher North
Staff
Rachel Burman
Carolyn CampbellCole
Nicky Hayes
Ahmad Toumadj
Phyllis Barnett
Brady Pohle
Appointed
Richard Gibbs
Caroline Hewitt
Cllr Jim Dickson
Vacant
Anne Garvey
Chris Mottershead
Diane Summers
Madeliene Long
Carol Bell

Constituency

Attendance at meetings
(Actual/Possible)

Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

Southwark Central
Southwark Central
Southwark South
Southwark South
Southwark North
Southwark North
Lambeth Central
Lambeth Central
Lambeth South

2/2
1/2
2/2
1/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

Lambeth South
Lambeth North
Lambeth North

2/2
2/2
2/2

Medical & Dentistry
Nursing and Midwifery

2/2
1/2

Nursing and Midwifery
Support Staff
Allied Health Professionals
Admin, Clerical & Management

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

Southwark Primary Care Trust
Lambeth PCT
Lambeth Council
Southwark Council
London South Bank University
King's College London
Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS FT
South London & Maudsley NHS FT
Joint Staff Committee

2/2
1/2
2/2
n/a
2/2
0/2
2/2
1/2
2/2
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Nominations Committee
This Committee is responsible for
determining and administering the
selection process for the appointment and
remuneration of the Chair and NonExecutive Directors of the Trust and to
recommend the preferred candidates to
the Council of Governors for appointment.
It is also monitors their performance and
makes recommendations to the Council of
Governors on reappointment or removal.

The members of the Committee are
detailed in table 27 below and the
Committee met 6 times, including two
occasions where they conducted candidate
interviews.
During the reporting period the Committee
made recommendations to the Council of
Governors to appoint George Alberti as
Chair and Christopher Stooke, Graham
Meek, Faith Boardman and Sue Slipman as
Non-Executive Directors.

Table 27: Membership of the Nominations Committee
Members
Prof George Alberti, Chair (from Dec 2011)
Michael Parker (Chair until Nov 2011)
Ann Mullins, Vice Chair (until Nov 2011)
Prof Mark Monaghan (until Nov 2011)
Tom Hoffman (until Nov 2011)
Tom Duffy (re-elected Dec 2011)
Brady Pohle (re-elected Dec 2011)
Nanda Ratnaval (from Dec 2011)
Fiona Clark (from Dec 2011)
Rachel Burman (from Dec 2011)

Public Governor
Staff Governor
Public Governor
Patient Governor
Staff Governor
Public Governor
Public Governor
Staff Governor

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

Quality Account 2011/12
Presented as part of the “Annual Report and Accounts 2011-2012” to Parliament
pursuant to the Health Act 2009 and supporting regulations, e.g. the National Health
Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 and Amendments Regulations 2011.
This report has also been prepared in accordance with Monitor’s Annual Report
guidance: NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2011/12.
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Part 1. Statement on Quality from the Chief Executive
King’s Quality Account is our opportunity to feed back on our performance against a number
of specific quality goals, and it is also an opportunity for me to record my thanks to the staff of
King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for the care, compassion and professionalism
with which they treat our patients. I would like to assure the populations we serve that we try
very hard to be better every year, and to commit to treating our patients safely and with
kindness. We like to think that we treat everyone equally in line with our King’s Values, which
you can see set out at the end of this statement. These values have been created by our staff,
patients and their carers and help set our behavioural standards as well as underpinning
everything we do.
King’s is on a journey, and although I am confident that we are making progress, we still need
to keep moving forwards, learning from the past. I think that today we are a cleaner, safer,
and kinder hospital than we have ever been, but we can still improve in all those areas. We
will not be complacent, particularly with regard to healthcare acquired infections, where C.
Diff has been more resilient than we would have liked and more difficult to combat than
MRSA. We also need to invest further in Diabetes care, not least because 20% of our inpatients are diabetic. We certainly need to be more consistent; we have learned through our
Ward 2020 programme, piloted on five wards this year, how we can improve the environment
and patient pathways. Now we need to reproduce those improvements across the hospital.
This report describes in some detail how we have performed against the objectives we agreed
with our stakeholders last year, so I will concentrate instead on the challenges that we have
agreed with our stakeholders for this coming year. This is not an exhaustive list, and I certainly
would not wish to give the impression that those initiatives we began in 2011/12 have now
stopped. All our targets are part of a continuous process of improvement, and will continue.
Once again, our stakeholders have helped us define our Quality priorities for this year and I
would like to thank them all unreservedly for the time and wisdom they have shared with us.
Engagement with our local communities is a vital aspect of life here at King’s. There is
something about the boroughs we serve that gets under the skin. As King’s College Hospital
and as part of King’s Health Partners Academic Health Sciences centre, we are determined to
reduce health inequalities in the local area.
The priorities for this year reflect the needs of our patient population. Diabetes is prevalent,
and will be more so because of the level of obesity in the community, so we must be better at
caring for all diabetic patients. The local population is also getting older - which increases the
number of acutely unwell, confused and vulnerable patients we are seeing. So, we need to
reduce the number of falls, pressure sores, incidence of poor catheterisation and so on. We
are also determined to be better at end of life care, ensuring patients are cared for in a place
they want to be at this most critical time. One of our values is ‘Understanding You’, so it is
right that one of our priorities is about treating patients as individuals, and trying hard to meet
their needs and desires for their care.
I am confident that we will make progress on all these fronts - and not just because there is
income attached to them, through the CQUINs process. We haven’t set ourselves goals that
are easy to meet. We need to keep our targets just out of reach.
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I am impressed by the caring nature of many of our nurses and healthcare assistants, who
often go without praise and recognition. Many of them are working collaboratively with
colleagues in other healthcare and social care settings, and with our increasing number of
volunteers, to all of whom I want to say a huge ‘thank you’.
I hope you find this report an interesting and informative document. I think it presents a fair
and balanced view of what we have achieved and what we hope to achieve this coming year.
To the best of my knowledge, the information contained in the following Quality Account is
accurate.

Signed:

Timothy Smart
Chief Executive
Living King's Values:
Understanding You, Inspiring Confidence in our Care, Working Together, Always Aiming Higher,
Making a Difference in our Community
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A guide to the structure of this report
The following report summarises our performance and improvements against the quality
priorities and objectives we set ourselves for 2011/12. It also outlines those we have agreed
for the coming year (2012/13).5
First, we have detailed the priorities we set ourselves for patient safety, clinical effectiveness
and patient experience in 2011/12, and how we performed against them. Where we have only
partially achieved objectives, we have explained why and outlined our plans to ensure
improvements are made in the future.
As well as evaluating our work against last year’s priorities, we have worked with our
stakeholders to establish priorities for the year ahead. Consequently, in this report, we follow
our review of 2011/12 by detailing our priorities and objectives for 2012/13 under the same
headings: patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience. We have explained how
we decided upon our priorities and objectives and how we will achieve, and measure our
performance against, them. The regulated Statements of Assurance are included in this part of
the report.
Finally, we have provided other information to review our overall quality performance against
key national priorities and standards. We have published the statements which Commissioning
Primary Care Trusts, Overview and Scrutiny Committees, and Local Involvement Networks
submitted in response to this Quality Account.

5

This structure adheres to guidance for Quality Accounts within the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual published by Monitor on 20 February 2012. We acknowledge that this differs to that
outlined in the Department of Health’s Quality Accounts 2010/11 Toolkit.
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Quality Accounts and CQUINs
This document is one way we report on the quality of care we provide. One other important
mechanism for this reporting is the Commissioning for Quality and Improvement (CQUIN)
framework. As CQUINs, and data gathered for CQUINs, are referred to a number of times in
our Quality Account, an explanation is given below of what they are, and how they relate to
our Quality Account.
The CQUIN framework was introduced in April 2009 as a national framework for locally agreed
quality improvement schemes. CQUINs are designed to make a proportion of provider income
conditional on the achievement of ambitious quality improvement goals and innovations. In
2011/12, CQUIN agreements were valued at 1.5% of provider income; in 12/13 this rose to
2.5%.
CQUINs are intended to reward excellence and encourage providers to drive a portfolio of
quality improvements on a continuous basis. Each year, providers and commissioners come
together to agree the detail of how national (e.g. VTE screening) and local priorities (e.g.
improving end of life care) will be achieved and measured. A series of milestones and targets
are agreed in advance and each provider is required to submit evidence to commissioners at
regular intervals in order to secure the funding associated with the quality improvement.
It is recognised that the CQUIN framework is important for implementing the National
Institute of Clinical Excellence (NICE) Quality Standards, for improving patient experience and
for improving outcomes. As a result, there is a natural overlap between the objectives
associated with Quality Account priorities and those contained in the Trust’s CQUIN
agreement. Where relevant, CQUIN evidence has been used throughout this document to
support the achievement of Quality Account priorities.
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Part 2. Priorities for Improvement and Statements of Assurance
Our Quality Priorities and Objectives for 2011/12
Each year, we work with our local stakeholders to designate a number of priorities as part of
our ongoing efforts to improve quality, and attach specific objectives to each priority. These
priorities form our focuses for quality improvement that year, and we review our progress
against them at the year’s end.

Summary
The table below summarises our priorities and objectives for 2011/12, and notes our progress
against them. We have fully achieved the objectives associated with five of our seven quality
priorities. Where objectives have been partially achieved, we will continue our focus on them
in 2012/13.

Patient experience

Clinical effectiveness

Patient safety

Priorities
1. Reduce hospitalacquired
infections
2. Reduce avoidable
death, disability
and chronic ill
health from
venous thromboembolism (VTE)
3. Improve
medication safety

4. Improve end of
life care
5. Improve diabetes
care

6. Improve the
consistency of
inpatient
experience
7. Achieve a clean
hospital
environment

Improvement objectives
• To further reduce MRSA bacteraemia and
Clostridium diff infection rates
• To maintain the standard that 90% of all adult
inpatients have a VTE risk assessment on admission
to hospital
• To achieve the locally agreed CQUIN target for the
provision of appropriate prophylaxis to patients
identified at risk by the VTE assessment
• To implement the Electronic Prescribing and
Medicines Administration (EPMA) system in target
wards and eliminate paper prescriptions - to reduce
further avoidable medication prescribing errors
• To improve the co-ordination of care we give to
patients as they approach end of life and achieve
the locally agreed target
• Improve insulin safety by reducing the incidence of
prescription and insulin management error for
patients currently on insulin therapy
• Develop the key frameworks for KCH to meet the
NICE Quality Standard for Diabetes (standards 11 –
13)
• To achieve the locally agreed target improvement*
for the “responsiveness to personal needs”
composite indicator, for the lowest scoring wards
• To improve the patient experience of cleanliness as
measured by the HRWD survey
• To improve the standard of cleanliness as measured
in the cleaning contract monitoring

Achieved?

Partially

YES

YES

YES

Partially

YES

YES

This report outlines how our performance will be sustained and monitored. Three of the above
priorities will continue as such for 2012/13; the rest will not feature in the next year’s quality
account, though will continue to work hard to make improvements in those areas.
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2011/12 Performance on our Safety Priorities

Priority 1. Reduce hospital acquired infections
Objective:
To further reduce Meticillin-Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus (MRSA) bacteraemia and
Clostridium Difficile (C. Diff) infection rates.

Headline performance
Key measures of performance, results through the year 2011/12
In 2011/12, targets for MRSA and C. Diff were set using the Department of Health’s national
median rate. We have continued to build on existing work to prevent and reduce the number
of hospital acquired infections at King’s. In 2011/12 we achieved a 69% reduction in rates of
Meticillin-resistant Staphylococcus Aureus (MRSA) bloodstream infections and a 9% reduction
in cases of Clostridium Difficile (C. Diff) infection at the Trust compared to 2010/11.
The table below provides a breakdown of the number of MRSA bloodstream and trustattributable cases of C. Diff at King’s during 2010/11 and 2011/12.
Indicator
MRSA bloodstream
infection
C. Diff infections

2011/12
5

Improvement

Department of Health target

2010/11
9

King’s performance

16

5

69%

Department of Health target

162

75

King’s performance

106

97

9%

MRSA
The Trust had been set an objective for 2011/12 of 5 cases of MRSA bacteraemia or fewer. The
Trust has had 5 cases compared with 16 trust-attributable cases in 2010/11, a 69% reduction.
In all of these cases, we have analysed the root cause in order to identify and close gaps in
practice. In 2010/11, this identified that 50% of cases were related to sub-optimal line care. In
2011/12, none of the 5 cases were related to sub-optimal line care; they were the result of
much more complex co-existing conditions.
The graph overleaf compares the number of MRSA bloodstream infections at the Trust in
2010/11 and 2011/12.
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Clostridium Difficile infections
Our target was to achieve fewer than 75 cases of C. Diff. The Trust has not achieved this
objective, but it has reduced the rate by 9% on top of last year’s 21% reduction.
The graph below compares the number of C. Diff cases at the Trust in 2010/11 and 2011/12.
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Other infection control and prevention improvements
Alongside these two specific targets, the Trust has improved other infection control processes
as described in the table below.
Performance measure
MRSA screening – elective
MRSA screening – emergency
Hand Hygiene
Care of IV lines
Antibiotic stewardship
Environmental cleaning
Cleaning of near patient equipment

March 2011
100%
91%
35%
75%
N/A
75%
77%

March 2012
100%
99%
73%
90%
87%
90%
94%

Improvement
Unchanged
+8%
+38%
+15%
+15%
+17%

Progress on improvement initiatives and next steps
Key initiatives to achieve this improvement included:
Continuing to learn from external reviews:
In November 2011, we invited a team from a peer Trust to review our policies and
assurance processes for antibiotics and C. Diff testing. The recommendations refined
our ideas and confirmed our plans for improvement.
Improved ownership and accountability:
o The appointment of an Assistant Medical Director with a remit to liaise with the
Infection Control team has been invaluable in ensuring ward-based staff feel
ownership of infection control.
o Expanding the group of medical consultant infection control ‘champions’ has
enabled a number of new initiatives focussed on local infection control concerns.
Introduction of a divisional turnaround process:
This is used to drive performance improvement.
Major training and competency training process:
Given to all clinical staff (around 3,500) to ensure they have the skills to safely insert and
access intravenous devices.
Robust investigation processes:
Root cause investigation and learning from each case of MRSA bloodstream and C. Diff
infection, including the Chief Executive meeting consultants to understand the issues
behind cases of MRSA.

Plans for 2012/13
To continue to use established performance management systems and processes to
drive reduction in HCAI rates.
To further strengthen the management of antibiotic usage.
To continue to use technology to improve safety, i.e. electronic monitoring processes
for intravenous lines and the use of electronic prescription order sets to reduce the
use of drugs that could increase the risk to patients of developing C. Diff infections.
To fully implement new national guidance on Clostridium Difficile Toxin testing.
To ensure consistency in cleaning standards.
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2011/12 Performance on our Safety Priorities

Priority 2. Reduce avoidable death, disability and chronic ill health from
venous thromboembolism (VTE)
Objectives:
To ensure 90% of all adult inpatients have had a VTE risk assessment on admission to
hospital;
To achieve the CQUIN target for providing appropriate thromboprophylaxis and
written information to patients identified at risk by the VTE assessment.

Headline performance
We have consistently exceeded the targets set in our locally agreed CQUIN framework for
compliance with:
VTE risk assessment
appropriate thromboprophylaxis (TP) and
provision on written VTE information
The chart below shows our compliance with standards for VTE risk assessment of adult
inpatients: sustained compliance over 2011/12 ensuring >90% VTE risk assessment of adult
inpatients since the introduction of this performance indicator in July 2010.
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The graph below shows our rates of provision of appropriate thromboprophylaxis (TP) to
patients identified at risk, compared to our quarterly targets. We achieved these, and
exceeded 90% compliance throughout the year.

Link nurse snapshot audits improved data collection and helped us identify training needs and
focused interventions.
We achieved all our quarterly targets for the provision of written VTE information to patients
and made significant improvement over 2011/12, though there has been monthly variation in
our performance.

The steady and significant improvement was attributable to large scale communication and
awareness campaigns launched in summer 2011. We believe that recent fluctuations reflect a
new process of electronic documentation through the Electronic Prescribing and Medicines
Administration (EPMA) system, which has been progressively implemented.
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Progress on improvement initiatives and next steps
Key initiatives to achieve this improvement included:
We have moved from paper based to electronic VTE risk assessment across most of the Trust.
This has enabled effective real-time monitoring of risk assessments, through which
outstanding risk assessments are identified and action taken. Each ward takes responsibility
for ensuring their patients are risk assessed.
A database has been created for comprehensive audit data not only around ‘appropriate
thromboprophylaxis (TP)’ but also all the National Institute for Clinical Excellence (NICE) VTE
Prevention Quality Standards (2010). VTE link nurses from each ward conducted monthly
audits.
Audit results were shared with ward managers and senior staff to identify areas for
improvement and develop and implement auditable action plans.

Plans for 2012/13
We have successfully maintained above-target compliance for risk assessment, and exceeded
our locally agreed CQUIN target for appropriate thromboprophylaxis and provision of written
information for patients; we would still like to aim higher.
Risk Assessment:
We will continue to ensure >90% assessment rates and to improve compliance as part
of an overall programme to minimise avoidable harm in the hospital.
Our focus will be to improve compliance in short stay admissions and high-activity
wards, and during periods of high staff turnover and introduction of new staff.
Appropriate TP:
We will aim to exceed our 90% target for appropriate TP.
We will continue to work with the VTE link nurse network to increase quality
assurance and audit of appropriate TP.
We will disseminate audit information to ensure that areas for improvement are
identified and action plans are implemented.
Patient information:
We will continue work to ensure that patients receive written information on VTE
prevention during their stay (as required by our commissioners in 2012/13) and
monitor this via monthly link nurse audits. By the fourth quarter of 2012/13, we aim to
provide written information to 75% of patients.
We will monitor this through the Safety Express programme and National CQUIN framework
(See Quality Priority for 2012/13: Minimise avoidable harm acquired in hospital, page 104).
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2011/12 Performance on our Safety Priorities

Priority 3. Improve medication safety
Objective:
Implement the Electronic Prescribing and Medicines Administration (EPMA) system in
target wards and eliminate paper prescriptions to reduce further avoidable
medication prescribing errors.

Headline performance
Successful EPMA implementation
During Phase One of the project, we have successfully implemented the Electronic Prescribing
and Medicines Administration (EPMA) system in 40 of 44 clinical areas. The system is up-andrunning in: General Medicine, Neurosciences, Cardiac, Renal, Haematology, Surgery and
Theatres. The remaining areas for Phase One (Liver and Private Patients) will be completed by
June 2012.
We monitor the proportion of patients with an EPMA chart, which will, by default, be 100%
compliant with the prescribing policy. The table below shows an early snapshot of recent
progress. Until March 2012, this was reported quarterly; thereafter, it has been reported
monthly.
% of patients with EPMA Chart
Month
Number of patients
Nov-11
569 (of 922)
Feb-12
634 (of 989)

% of patients
62%
64%

Improvement to medication safety –
Adverse incidents where penicillin is prescribed to a patient with a known penicillin allergy
We set out to monitor the impact the use of electronic prescribing had on medication safety. A
key example of this is the impact of decision support functions built in EPMA on the
prevention of adverse incidents where penicillin is prescribed to a patient with known
penicillin allergy. There is a declining trend since the roll-out of EPMA in May 2009, as detailed
in the chart below.
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In 2011/12 there were 8 incidents of penicillin prescription errors relating to allergy
contraindication - a 50% reduction compared to the 16 in 2010/11. Our next focus is a root
cause analysis to enable us to eliminate errors in future.

Progress on improvement initiatives and next steps
Key initiatives to achieve this improvement included:
Use of drug order sets to ensure consistency of drugs and doses prescribed
Mandatory completion of allergy documentation prior to prescribing
Alert when beta-lactams are prescribed to a patient with a penicillin allergy
When prescribing antimicrobials, mandatory recording of the indication for doing so
(antibiotic stewardship)
Mandatory completion of the indication for use of proton pump inhibitors
Inclusion of 'paravertebral' route for anaesthetists prescribing local anaesthetic nerve
blocks
Reduction in the default frequency for IV paracetamol from 4 to 3 times a day
Daily email alerts to highlight doses prescribed but not administered
We will continue to monitor the impact of the system roll-out, compliance and effects on
improving medication safety, through the Patient Safety Committee.
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Plans for 2012/13
Our focus now is on the next phase of EPMA implementation. Phase Two will consist of
extending EPMA to those areas not currently covered and developing/enhancing through a
system upgrade to further improve medication safety.
Wider coverage
We plan to implement EPMA in: Critical Care, Women’s (Maternity services), Paediatrics and
Outpatient clinics.
System Development and Enhancement
This next phase will enable development and enhancement of the existing system and an
upgrade to include:
Reminder to double-check high doses of insulin (25/50 rule)
Dose calculation tools for aminoglycosides and vancomycin
Expanded decision support to improve prescribing
Avoidance of duplicate prescribing
Alerts to avoid co-prescription of interacting drugs
Allergy cross checking for all drugs
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2011/12 Performance on our Clinical Effectiveness Priorities

Priority 4. Improve end of life care
Objective:
Improve the coordination of care we give to patients as they approach end of life and
achieve the locally agreed CQUIN targets.
End of Life Care (EoLC) encompasses holistic support for people who are approaching death
and their families or carers – helping patients to live as well as possible until they die, and to
die with dignity. There is a national focus on supporting patients to die in the place of their
choice – and for many this will be outside hospital. In practice, most people still die in hospital
and there is a need to improve the care these patients and their families receive.
The EoLC we provide must be clinically effective and responsive to the individual’s needs and
wishes. This is one of our key objectives and a core component of our locally agreed CQUIN
targets.

Headline performance
Our locally agreed CQUIN targets addressed four key aspects of coordinating effective EoLC
and improving patients’ care outcomes. All were achieved.
Goal
Improve
End of Life
Care

5a

5b

5c

National CQUIN Indicator
Name

Q4 Target

Q4 Actual

Specialist Palliative Care Discharge
Letters sent with 2 days of
palliative care discharge
Co-ordination of care – ‘Gold’
electronic registers (see p. 84)

80%

95%

To set up a system to
track patients with
‘Gold’ letters who are
in the electronic
register
Maintain AMBER on 3
wards

Complete

Provide Clinical support
for Pilot Evaluation
Study with King’s
College London

Research
proposal
completed and
submitted for
Ethics Committee
Approval

Improved coordination of care
and advance care planning via
implementation of AMBER care
bundle6

6

Maintained
AMBER on 5
wards.

The AMBER care bundle is a set of measures developed for patients with an uncertain prognosis to
provide standardised high-quality anticipatory care, integrated with the patient’s treatment.
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Progress on improvement initiatives and next steps
Key initiatives to achieve this improvement included:
EoLC ‘Gold’ Register
The multidisciplinary Palliative Care Team all have all access to, and training on, the electronic
‘Gold’ Register owned by primary care. This electronic register of patients who may be
approaching the end of life was developed in the Modernisation Initiative End of Life
Programme to facilitate the sharing of information. This system enables smoother handovers
of care for patients approaching the end of life and ensures effective care that is responsive to
individual preferences.
As part of our CQUIN target, we have established a system to monitor patients discharged
with a ‘Gold’ letter and placed on the electronic register.
Prompt discharge letters to enable effective handover of end of life care
We have exceeded our target to send 80% of Specialist Palliative Care discharge letters within
2 days of palliative care discharge by 15% (95%, March 2012). This facilitates effective and
timely communication with other care providers and clear information for discharged patients.
Feedback shows that this enables smoother continuity of care, ensuring that identification and
management of treatment needs and wishes are effectively handed over at the interface of
inpatient and community care. The content of the ‘Gold’ letters has been updated to more
accurately reflect any discussions relating to patient preferences and wishes for future care.
Stronger working relationships with community partners
With the increased organisational profile of, and attention to, improving end of life care, we
strengthened our working relationships with both St Christopher's Hospice and our Academic
Health Sciences Centre partner, Guy's and St Thomas' NHS Foundation Trust. Collaboration
(e.g. sharing of death notifications, regular clinical meetings) and sharing best practice has
helped us coordinate our patients’ care better.
AMBER care bundle
The AMBER care bundle is a set of steps and methods which provides a systematic approach
to manage the care of hospital patients who are facing an uncertain prognosis; it aims to
provide standardised, high-quality anticipatory care.
Since January 2011, we have been working to implement the bundle, and have done so across
five key wards. The project was developed by the Modernisation Initiative End of Life
Programme, which finished in December 2011. Nonetheless, we have continued our focus
here. We plan to recruit a part-time specialist nurse and a part-time data manager to further
implement the bundle, and to ensure accurate performance information is collected.
A formal evaluation of the effectiveness of the AMBER care bundle is underway across King's
Health Partners. Led by the Academic Department of Palliative Care and Policy, this work will
review the impact of this care bundle for patients and carers between March 2012 and May
2013. Lessons learned will be integrated into future implementation and development of the
AMBER care bundle.
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The Liverpool Care Pathway
The Liverpool Care Pathway (LCP) is used to improve care towards the end of a patient’s life.
An action plan was developed and implemented in 2011 to enhance the use of the LCP in the
Trust. Improvements are reflected in our results from the recent National Audit for End of Life
Care 2011, especially in relation to anticipatory prescription and the completion of the LCP
document, which helps with continuity and handover of care.
Ensuring patients receive EoLC in a place of their choosing.
Through prompt communication with primary care and the use of structured discharge letters,
patient preferences regarding future place of care will be highlighted and communicated. The
AMBER care bundle also identifies patient preferences regarding end of life care, including
their preferred place of care, and so will facilitate more patients to have choice regarding
place of care. Thorough both of these initiatives and ongoing collaborative working with our
community colleagues, we aim to increase the number of patients who are able to be cared
for and die in a place of their choosing.
Results of our investigations and other data highlight areas for further development - we
recognise significant effort is still required to improve end of life care.

Plans for 2012/13
Improving End of Life Care remains a quality priority in 2012/12. Please see page 108 for
details of our plans for continued improvement.
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2011/12 Performance on our Clinical Effectiveness Priorities

Priority 5. Improve diabetes care
Objectives:
Develop the key frameworks to enable King’s to meet the relevant NICE Quality
Standards for Diabetes (Standards 11 – 13), and thereby deliver better outcomes for
our patients.
Improve insulin safety – by reducing the incidence of insulin prescription and
management error for those currently on insulin therapy.7

Headline performance
NICE Quality Standards
The improvement of diabetes care is especially pertinent to King’s – approximately one in five
of our adult inpatients is diabetic, and the majority are admitted to King’s for reasons other
than their diabetes. We acknowledged that early and effective treatment of diabetes improves
clinical outcomes, reduces the time patients spend in hospital and improves their experiences.
This is reflected in the core of the NICE Quality Standards for inpatient diabetes care.
The relevant quality statements include:
(11) Inpatient: People with diabetes admitted to hospital are cared for by
appropriately trained staff, provided with access to a specialist diabetes team and
given the choice of self-monitoring and managing their own insulin.
(12) Diabetic Ketoacidosis: People admitted to hospital with diabetic ketoacidosis
receive educational and psychological support prior to discharge and are followed up
by a specialist diabetes team.
(13) Hypoglycaemia: People with diabetes who have experienced hypoglycaemia
requiring medical attention are referred to a specialist diabetes team.
In setting out to meet these NICE Quality Standards (March 2011) across King’s, we have learnt
that it requires more than a year to make all the changes we need to. The NICE quality
standards outline excellence in structure, process and outcome, and we have therefore
organised our ideas and phased the improvements in this way:
Improvement Domain

Phase 1 (2011/12)

Phase 2 (starting 2012)

Systems and processes:
Technology-enabled
care
Cultural shift: Mindsets,
capabilities and
behaviours

Developing the solutions
required to enhance current
processes.
Piloting a hierarchy of expertise
to ensure patients with
diabetes have timely access to
appropriate diabetes care.
Using existing information (e.g.
National Diabetes Inpatient
Audit results) to monitor
improvements at a high level.

Piloting and implementing new processes and
technological solutions.

Performance
framework: Information
and data analytics

7

Embedding effective training and role
development for excellent care coordination.
Promoting effective self-management of
diabetes care with our patients.
Developing a suite of meaningful process and
outcome metrics that can be used to monitor
and manage diabetes care.

As the baseline performance was only published on 1 April 2011, precise improvement targets have
not yet been established.
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Given this phased approach, we have not yet met all of the NICE Quality Standards for
inpatient diabetes care (Standards 11-13) in full. Key progress to date is detailed below.
Improvement in insulin safety
This year we piloted the additional input of a Diabetes Specialist Nurse to the Liver, Renal and
Surgical (LRS) wards as part of the overall effort to improve insulin safety. This resulted in an
increase from 73% to 93% in the proportion of patients experiencing ‘error-free’ insulin
management care. Insulin prescription safety also increased from 90% to 93%.

There are improvements across the Trust in insulin safety, with an 8.2 percentage point
improvement in insulin prescription safety, and one of 5.2 points in error-free insulin
management, compared to 2010.
2011
(LRS)
93%

Improvement

Insulin prescription safety*

2010
(LRS)
90%

2011
(Trust)
86.2%

% improvement

3 points

2010
(Trust)
78%

Insulin management safety*

73%

93%

20 points

74.1%

79.8%

5.7 points

8.2 points

* Safety, here, is expressed as the percentage of diabetes patients who did not experience an
insulin prescription or insulin management error.
NB. LRS = Liver, renal, surgery division, where the pilot of Diabetes Specialist Nurse was
conducted.
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Progress on improvement initiatives and next steps

Performance framework: Information and
data analytics

Cultural shift:
Mindsets, capabilities and behaviours

Systems and processes:
Technology-enabled care

The table below shows our progress against our key deliverables so far, and the main
initiatives planned for 2012/13:
Key deliverable

Completion?

NICE

Next steps:

EPR referral form to
the specialist
diabetes team

YES:
‘Live’ January
2012

11
12

Electronic
Prescription
Management and
Administration
(EPMA) system einsulin sheet
Electronic blood
glucose monitoring
system

IN PROGRESS
Solution
drafted, yet to
implement.

11

Ensure use of new referral form to refer
inpatients for specialist diabetes team review.
Monitor referral data regularly to understand
diabetic patient needs.
Agree implementation plan. Ensure this is used
accurately and updated to help flag patients with
high diabetes needs. This could also reduce
incidents relating to insulin causing harm.

NO
Yet to be
approved,
acquired and
implemented.

11

Clinical training (elearning modules)

YES
‘Live’

11

Revised Insulin
Safety Group

YES, ongoing
group

11

Embedded
Diabetes Specialist
Nurse (DSN) role
and development

IN PROGRESS
Pilot evaluated

11
12
13

Diabetes LINK
practitioner
network

IN PROGRESS
Competencies
established

11
12
13

Review National
Diabetes Inpatient
Audit 2010; identify
improvement
opportunities.
Electronic patient
experience
feedback
Outcome metric
suite/ scorecard

YES
Opportunities
outlined here

Information
technology
development/
analytical support

IN PROGRESS –
Survey drafted

11

NO – Further
scoping on
electronic data
capture
NO – Builds on
improvement
above

11
12
13

Obtain approval of business case by IT Strategy
Group. Ensure blood glucose monitoring is
performed under robust electronic system.
Ensure links to Electronic Patient Record
(EPR)/EPMA to support prompt medical
management decisions, and optimise outcomes.
Ensure compliance with the two mandatory elearning modules for all relevant clinical staff - to
be repeated at agreed frequency.
Share best practice across the Trust RE insulin
safety and ensure compliance with National
Patient Safety Association recommendations.
Roll-out plan to be agreed – e.g. division-specific
DSN role to cardiac sciences.
Provide a continuing professional development
programme to enhance effectiveness of the
specialist nurses.
Promote the competency-based role descriptions
established for Diabetes LINK practitioner.
Applying a proactive model of interventional care
combining virtual & direct care to maximise
effectiveness.
Completing the initiatives listed here as ‘in
progress’ and ensuring timely decisions for those
solutions proposed, but that are not yet
approved/acquired.
Pilot and implement - obtain feedback specific to
this patient cohort's experience.
Act on feedback to increase patient satisfaction.
Establish set of clear indicators to track
improvements in outcomes for patients, along
with balance of measures to indicate valueadd/efficiency gains from the interventions.
Ensure skilled data manager to analyse
information for the scorecard and highlight
improvement opportunities for better care.

11
12
13
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Plans for 2012/13
Improving diabetes care remains a quality priority in 2012/13. Please see page 110 for details
of our plans for continued improvement.
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2011/12 Performance on our Patient Experience Priorities

Priority 6. Improve the consistency of inpatient experience at King’s
Objective:
To achieve the agreed CQUIN target improvement for the ‘responsiveness to personal
needs’ composite indicator, for the three lowest scoring wards identified at two points
during the year.8

Headline performance
For 2011/12 we committed to improving our performance against the five national CQUIN
questions relating to ‘responsiveness to personal needs’.
Six wards were tasked with putting action plans in place to achieve an improvement in these
five key areas. Performance against target was as follows:
Period

April 2011 –
Sept 2011

Ward

Donne
David Marsden
Marjorie Warren

Sept 2011 –
March 2012

Lister
Kinnier Wilson
Acute Surgery Unit

Division

Average
Improvement
for all wards

Target met

Trauma and
Emergency Medicine
Neurosciences
Trauma and
Emergency Medicine

10%

Fully met

Surgery
Neurosciences
Surgery

4%

Fully met

Three of our CQUIN wards performed particularly well. David Marsden and Marjorie Warren
improved by 11% and 13% at the end of Quarter 2; Lister improved 12% over the year.
It is important that improvements within individual wards are replicated across the
organisation. The National Inpatient Survey measures this overall performance. The table
below compares our overall performances in 2010 and (July) 2011. We recognise further work
is needed in 2012/13 to ensure that the progress made in focus areas is translated to wider
improvements across the Trust.
Question
Were you involved as much as you wanted to be in decisions about
your care and treatment?
Did you find someone on the hospital staff to talk to about your
worries and fears?
Were you given enough privacy when discussing your condition or
treatment?
Did a member of staff tell you about medication side effects to
watch for when you went home?
Did hospital staff tell you who to contact if you were worried
about your condition or treatment after you left hospital?
8

2010
performance
70

2011
performance
67

62

54

92

81

53

48

77

74

The scope of this work could therefore range between three to six wards.
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Performance in King’s’ internal ‘How are we doing?’ (HRWD) survey for the year was variable.
How are we doing? Average overall score for CQUIN
'responsiveness to personal needs' questions
85
84
83
82
81
80
79
78

Average score
Linear (Average
score)

March

Feb

Jan

Dec

Nov

Oct

Sept

Aug

July

June

May

April

Performance for giving patients privacy when discussing their treatment was very good with
scores consistently reaching or exceeding our target score of 90. For patients having someone
to talk to about worries and fears, although there was some variation, the target score of 77
was met in seven out of the twelve months. Scores for patients being given information on
medication side effect on discharge remained static through the year achieving the target
score of 72 in August. Patients’ rating for feeling involved in their care and for being given
someone to contact after they were discharged were disappointing. Results improved over
the summer months but dipped for the remainder of the year.
In addition to improvement work tied to the CQUIN framework, King’s continued to work on
improvements through the patient experience transformation programme initiatives.

Progress on improvement initiatives and next steps
Key initiatives to achieve more consistent inpatient satisfaction are listed below:
Focused ward-level transformation
As part of our locally-agreed CQUIN framework, six wards were tasked with improving the
performance as measured by the ‘responsiveness to personal needs’ composite indicator
(components listed above).
The following key actions were implemented:
Use of a core discharge checklist, designed to prompt consistent discharge
coordination including providing information to patients about medication side effects
and who to contact after discharge home with any worries and fears.
Pilot and roll-out of intentional/‘hourly’ rounds to ensure that patients have regular
attention to core care needs and can raise any concerns that they might have
Increase in volunteer input on the wards for befriending care.
Roll-out of Sage and Thyme communication training for staff to enable them to better
address the emotional needs of patients.
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Work with staff to reinforce King’s Values and King’s Behaviour Standards. King’s
Values have formed the basis of a large-scale training programme targeted towards
improving patient experience, which has been attended by over 1,000 staff. They have
also been built into staff induction and other elements of training, both for staff and
for volunteers.
To provide staff with timely and balanced feedback from the HRWD inpatient survey,
patient compliments and complaints to ensure that patients’ needs drive decisions
within ward teams and reinforce the necessity to involve patients in their care.
The next phase of this work will be to spread those interventions which have been
demonstrated to be successful in addressing patients’ needs to other wards, aiming for
consistently high patient satisfaction and to lift overall Trust-wide performance.
Trust-wide initiative to create a culture of care:
We have continued to sustain focus through the Patient Experience project within the
Transformation Programme and are beginning to see the benefits. The project aims to deepen
the engagement of all staff with putting patients at the centre of everything we do. We have
invested in three key initiatives:
‘In Your Shoes‘ listening events
’YOU can make a difference: Improving patient experience‘ drama-based training
Energising and Expanding Volunteering at King’s
Work will continue through the coming year, including by conducting modified ‘In Your Shoes’
events run for individual teams, alongside other projects which will be identified based on the
2011 National Inpatient Survey results.
Our ‘In your shoes’ events focused on helping staff to listen to what’s most important for
patients. These patient stories prompted empathetic reflection and inspired personal
commitment to continuous improvement. This is what one staff member told us after their
participation:
‘I felt how he must have felt being a patient on a very busy ward, where nurses
are always running around and how he thought he was a burden. Yet this is
not how we perceive it as nurses. It made me understand how the little things
matter more to the patient; connecting and listening to them, rather than just
the medical side of things’
These listening events are expected to be embedded within divisional teams for ongoing
opportunities to better understand patients’ expectations and how we can better meet these.
A bespoke drama-based training programme was designed in 2011, with a focus on improving
customer care within the hospital context and to mobilise staff commitment to deliver
consistently positive experiences for patients and their families.
Developed in partnership with the Garnett Foundation, the workshops aimed to encourage
staff to reflect on their role in improving the experience of patients and to consider what
action they could take both as individuals and as part of a team to make improvements.
A total of 1,101 staff members attended this half-day training across all professional groups
and levels of experience. The training was very well received: 95% of staff rated the
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programme as good or excellent, and 93% of staff would recommend the programme to a
colleague.
Moving forward, we will embed the learning outcomes from the training in frontline work
contexts. The next phase of training will be more focused and team-based so that core
contents can be more responsive to different areas’ varying needs.

Energising and expanding volunteering at King’s
Our programme to re-energise and grow our volunteering force to support improvement in
patient experience has been very successful. During 2011/12, the Trust’s volunteer numbers
rose to 515 volunteers recruited, with 315 already in active service.
This programme’s success has been enabled by:
A more robust recruitment system, which has been well evaluated by volunteers
A volunteer cohort that reflects the diversity of our local community
Comprehensive training for volunteers, including a communication skills module
delivered by specially-trained volunteers
Increasing coverage and growing desire from staff to host volunteers
Vibrant support and recognition offers for our volunteer community including long
service awards, volunteer newsletters, coffee mornings, an empowered Volunteer
Forum and other events
As part of King’s ongoing commitment to volunteering, the scheme will receive sustained
support, raising volunteer numbers to 1,000 over the course of 2012/13.

Plans for 2012/13
Improving patient experience remains a quality priority in 2012/13. Please see page 113 for
details of our plans for continued improvement.
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2011/12 Performance on our Patient Experience Priorities

Priority 7. Achieve a clean hospital environment
Objectives:
•
•

To improve the patient experience of cleanliness as measured by the HRWD survey
To improve the standard of cleanliness as measured in the cleaning contract
monitoring

Headline performance
We have been working hard to make improvements to the cleanliness of the hospital and
patients are really beginning to see a difference. Since 2009, patient satisfaction with
cleanliness has improved by 12%; improvements over the past 12 months continue to build on
earlier success. However, we know that we can still improve: we remain short of the
benchmarks we have set ourselves, as the graphs below show.
Based on responses to the ‘How are we doing?’ (HRWD) inpatient survey, patients have
reported that cleanliness of rooms, wards, toilets and bathrooms has improved. This is very
encouraging, particularly as cleanliness of hospitals is a key priority for patients.9
Here are some comments collected recently in our HRWD inpatient survey:
‘My experience overall was far better than I expected. The hospital was so
spotless, so clean! The staff were so caring and understanding. If I hadn’t known,
I would have thought I was in private care.’
‘I was impressed by the general care and attention of the nurses and the
cleanliness of the wards.’
Patients’ rating for cleanliness overall improved over the year from a score of 82 at the start of
the year to 84 at the end and with a high in of 85.
Patient comments about cleanliness on the public NHS Choices website also improved over
the year with patients rating King’s as ‘clean’ in Quarter 1 to ‘very clean’ in Quarters 2 – 4.

How are we doing
Cleanliness scores April 11 - March 12
85
84
83
82
81
80
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Cleanliness of rooms and wards is displayed in the graph below:
Cleanliness of Room or Ward April 11 - March 12
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Cleanliness of toilets and bathrooms began the year on 78, reached a high of 81 showing an
overall upward trend for the year.

Cleanliness of Toilets and Bathrooms
April 11 - March 12
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Apr- May June July - Aug Sept
11
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11
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Our cleaning scores in 2011/12, which are collected using the NHS National Cleanliness
Monitoring tool, show a steady improvement in the latter part of 2011, as shown in the graph
below.
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Progress on improvement initiatives and next steps
Goal

Initiative

Progress

Next steps

Improve
assurance
Cleaning
Improvement
Programme

Roll-out a standard environmental auditing process

95%

Implement a cleaning improvement programme in 2011
- New cleaning schedules for all areas, and priority given
based on risk assessment
- New rolling deep-clean programme
- New monitoring regime involving both nursing and cleaning
staff. Clear improvement action plans are owned and
driven by wards.
- Resourcing review and additional input for inpatient areas
- Use of patient experience feedback to drive contract
monitoring and improvement goals
- Rigorous performance management system for all cleaning
staff and overall delivery of cleaning services
- Contracted Services to review staff training and improve
their awareness/understanding of the impact of cleaning to
the confidence and care of our patients
- Test and implement new systems and products to improve
the efficiency of our cleaning services

100%

Review results plus
additional training
Completed

Training and
performance
management

Innovations

90%

Ongoing training plan to be
rolled out in 2012.

Ongoing

New systems to be trialled
following approval from our
infection control team

Plans for 2012/13
We will grow and sustain these improvements, as well as:
Establishing a Cleaning Forum for staff and patients, where current standards,
initiatives and developments can be raised and discussed.
Continuing to review new systems and processes of cleaning that can deliver improved
results.
Subject to further evaluation of feasibility and cost effectiveness, increasing the
number of areas deep cleaned by the vaporisation method (Bioquell).
Driving improvement through the Trust’s Environment Strategy
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Our Quality Priorities and Objectives for 2012/13
As well as the maintenance and development of existing work, 2012/13 will see us focus on six
quality priorities which will help us continue to improve the care we offer to our patients. This
section summarises how we developed these patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient
experience objectives for 2012/13, what they are, and how we will achieve and measure them.

Summary

Patient Experience

Clinical Effectiveness

Patient Safety

Our safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience objectives and priorities are
summarised below:

Priority

Key Objectives (Outline)

CQ*

Measure

1. Improve
identification and
escalation of acutely ill
patients

To establish a consistent performance framework
for identification and escalation of acutely ill
patients.

-

Process

2. Minimise harm
acquired in the
hospital

To reduce injurious falls and pressure sores, as
well as reduce catheterisation and ensure greater
compliance with appropriate VTE risk
assessment, as set out in our locally agreed
CQUIN target.

CQ

Process/
Outcome

3. Improve end of life
care

To build on the work in 2011/12 to improve the
co-ordination of care we give to patients as they
approach end of life and achieve the locally
agreed CQUIN target

CQ

Process/

4. Improve diabetes
care

To build on the work in 2011/12 to meet the NICE
Quality Standard for diabetes inpatient care
(Standards 11 – 13).

-

Process/
Outcome

5. Improve our
responsiveness to
personal needs for
inpatients

To use similar framework of 2011/12 to achieve
the locally agreed CQUIN target for the
‘responsiveness to personal needs’ composite
indicator.

CQ

Outcome

6. Improve outpatient
experience

To roll-out of the in-house outpatient experience
feedback survey to key clinics.

-

Process

To make focused clinic improvement in specific
aspects of outpatient experience

CQ

Outcome

*CQ=Part of our CQUIN framework of national and locally agreed targets
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Outcome

Developing our forward looking quality priorities 2012/13
In a busy acute hospital like King’s, there are always many quality improvements going on at
any given time. They are central to what we are trying to achieve as an organisation. Here, we
identify our priorities for 2012/13; these will be the real focus of the organisation throughout
the year.
The wider range of improvements to patient care happening across the Trust will not stop or
slow down, but we have honed a clear set of priority objectives. These act like a set of
promises that everyone at King’s commits to fulfil or exceed this year. From our various
consultations, we know they are clear and meaningful to you as our key stakeholders. We
would like you to support our agenda for continuously improving our high quality patient care,
and to hold us to account.
As a starting point, we analysed the experience of all Trusts – reflected in the Department of
Health’s Quality Account Toolkit 2010/11 and the King’s Fund evaluation: ‘How do quality
accounts measure up?’. There were two important lessons reflected in our approach:
Keep the set of quality priorities to a manageable number to ensure focus and clarity,
and
Engage and involve key stakeholders in the development and prioritisation of the
quality priorities. Effective engagement ensures our quality objectives and priorities
reflect those areas which are important to the community we serve. It also builds a
platform for ongoing discussion and public accountability.

Learning from the past
We have also learnt that organisation-wide quality improvements may warrant the profile and
attention over a period longer than 12 months. We have therefore reflected on how we build
on our success to sustain and grow improvements. The diagram below summarises our quality
objectives and priorities over the last four years:
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Patient Experience

Patient Outcomes

Patient Safety

2008/09
(NB. Quality
Highlights reported
in this first Quality
Report, not
priorities):

2009/10

2010/11

Reduce infections

Reduce hospital
acquired infection

2011/12
Reduce hospital acquired
infection

Reduce avoidable death,
disability, and chronic ill
health from venous
thromboembolism (VTE)

2012/13
Improve identification
and escalation of
acutely ill patients

Minimise avoidable
harm acquired in
hospital

Theatre staff commit
to safer surgery

Achieve zero
Never Events

Reduce number of
incidents with high
degree of harm

Saving more lives in
the emergency
department

Enhance mortality
performance

Demonstrate best
20% mortality
benchmark
performance

Improve end of life care

Improve end of life
care

Ensure at least 90%
of all inpatients are
VTE risk assessed
before discharge

Improve diabetes care

Improve diabetes care

Improve patient
experience by using
inpatient feedback
results

Improve the consistency
of positive inpatient
experience

Improve the
consistency of positive
inpatient experience

Eliminate mixed sex
accommodation

Improve cleanliness of
the hospital environment

Improve outpatient
experience

Providing excellent
stroke care

Leading edge
cardiac services

Improve patient
experience

Providing better
access and more
choice in maternity
services

Improve medication
safety

How the priorities for quality improvement have been developed:
1. Reflected on our progress in current year’s quality priorities (Apr-Oct 2011). For
example, we reviewed this at the Quality and Governance Committee, as well as the
Stakeholder Engagement Event of the 7th of December.
2. Identified a longlist of priorities with the executive chairs and leads of each of the key
committees:
Patient Safety
Patient Outcomes
Patient Experience
3. Collected external stakeholders’ perspectives in prioritising the long list of potential
areas for improving patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience (2
events on the 7th of December and the 6th of February. We also listened to the parallel
discussions at our Academic Health Sciences Centre partners: Guy’s and St Thomas’
Hospital).
4. Consulted frontline teams and subject matter experts about the planned work ahead
to meet these quality improvements, to shape feasible improvement objectives. We
also liaised with the Performance Directorate to understand our priorities’ alignment
to the emergent CQUIN framework. All this took place through the key committees
and forums below:
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Groups

Engagement Events

Commissioners,
governors, LINks,
OSCs

External Stakeholder Event 1 – Review of last 6 months
progress, and early discussion about 2012/13 priorities (7 Dec)
GSTT External Stakeholder Events (13 Dec, 23 Jan)
External Stakeholder Event – 2012/13 priorities (6 Feb)

Commissioner

NHS SEL Clinical Quality Meeting (17 Jan)

Governors

Patient Experience & Safety Committee (24 Jan)
Council of Governors (14 Feb)

Staff

Nov 2011 – March 2012:
Frontline teams and subject matter experts
Quality & Governance Committee
Patient Safety Committee
Patient Outcomes Committee
Patient Experience Committee
Performance Directorate
Quality Account Editorial Panel

5. The Board of Directors provided final ratification on the recommended six priorities
for quality improvement over 2012/13 in their meeting of the 28th of February, 2012.
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Improving Patient Safety in 2012/13:

Priority 1. Improving the identification and escalation of acutely ill
patients.
Objective:
To improve the identification and escalation of acutely ill patients by establishing a consistent
performance framework across the organisation.

Why is this one of our quality priorities?
Promptly identifying those patients who become acutely ill is important to appropriate care
and treatment. Timely intervention can prevent:
prolonged delay to recovery
deterioration that leads to permanent disability, or even
death
At the same time, we recognise that identifying deteriorating patients across a large acute
hospital is not straightforward. For example, an unplanned admission to Critical Care can
reflect proactive and appropriate clinical management or a failure in preventative care earlier
in the patient’s journey. Consequently, measures for monitoring and managing performance in
identifying acutely ill patients have to be interpreted intelligently in order to quantify the
problem. This complexity has made it difficult to identify specific hotspots or trends in order to
focus our improvement work.
The National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcomes and Death (NCEPOD) 2005, NCEPOD
2007, the National Institute for Clinical Excellence (NICE) Clinical Guideline 50 (2007) and the
Preventable Incidents, Survival and Mortality study (2011) have identified themes relating to
deficits in the care of the acutely ill patient. Many of the recommendations in these reports
have been adopted over the past few years into improvement initiatives and embedded into
clinical care practices at King’s.
While the performance at King’s appears in line with the national picture, we feel it is
necessary to prioritise this issue in order to better understand this complex aspect of inpatient
safety. We aim to establish a consistent performance framework, so that we have a structure
and baseline understanding to apply evidenced best practice and tested improvement
methods. We have a strong organisational desire to improve, even though this is not currently
part of the National CQUIN or key regulatory frameworks.

How are we performing now?
Last year, our Patient Safety and Risk Department analysed incidents reported during a sixmonth period between January and June 2011. This identified 40 acutely ill or deteriorating
patient incidents across the Trust with one identified as a serious untoward incident and 15
rated as medium risk situations. Additionally, five cases reported to the Coroner in 2011
identified avoidable deterioration as an issue.
As a result, a need for a more systematic and rigorous approach to improving the
identification and escalation of acutely ill patients was identified. This requires an overall
framework for collating data to help us understand the pattern of patients becoming acutely ill
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in our care so that we can routinely monitor them and act promptly. We will establish a
consistent Root Cause Analysis (RCA) approach, agree clear interventions and enable
reinforcement of key lessons learned within wards and departments and across King’s.

What are our planned improvement initiatives?
We want to test ways of better identifying and escalating our response to acutely ill patients.
This can reduce harm to patients and ensure we have a better way to monitor our
identification and escalation systems and practices. Over 2012/13, we plan to implement
these solutions:
Development of an information ‘cockpit’ scorecard to display all relevant information
in one location
Modification of the incident reporting system (Datix) to include a patient deterioration
flag to streamline analysis
Clearly identify which governance structures will use the scorecard information and
drive improvements through
We will implement and test interventions, monitoring the positive changes and feeding back
to teams to encourage continuous improvement.

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Performance Framework
Launch cockpit scorecard of
deteriorating patient data at Trust
level

Interventional improvements
Promote S-BAR (Situation,
Background, Assessment,
Recommendation) communication
tool for consistent escalation
Implementation of electronic
observations tool (Wardware) –
scope yet to be determined

Consolidate Trust initiatives and
committees concerned with
deterioration
Pilot RCA process to standardise
investigations into deterioration
incidents and better identify
corrective actions required
Refine management system for
monitoring cockpit and RCAs along
with associated action plans
Launch division-level scorecards and
embed system within performance
management process

Evaluate implementation of
electronic observations tool
(Wardware) and refine clinical
specifications

Other improvements
In 2009, we started to introduce a consistent Early Warning Score (EWS) through Physiological
Observations Track and Trigger (POTTS) charts for most inpatient care areas. This was
successfully implemented by 2010, and we have subsequently undertaken two annual audits
to review compliance (June 2010 and June 2011). The audits have identified strong usage of
the tool (100% in 2011 audit), but also that there was scope to improve the completeness,
accuracy and escalation of charts.
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Further technology-enabled monitoring has been developed to enable better identification
and monitoring of acutely ill patients: An electronic POTTS tool, Wardware, has been piloted
and the IT specifications developed. Further implementation decisions are yet to be made
about wider roll-out.

Diagram: Patient Safety First Campaign (2008) Reducing Harm from Deterioration. Circled numbers refer
to recommended performance measures. Detail available at
www.patientsafetyfirst.nhs.uk/Content.aspx?path=interventions/Deterioration.

How will we measure our performance, and where do we report it?
Key indicators that will feature on the cockpit scorecard include:
Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator (SHMI)
Mortality
Unplanned Critical Care admissions
Number of cardiac arrests
Deteriorating Patient Incidents
Other proxy process measures are proposed e.g. training compliance
By monitoring the balance of these indicators, we can tailor our improvement efforts, and
direct them to either the identification or the escalation of acutely ill patients.
The active and streamlined governance structure for this work will be reviewed, defined and
launched in the second quarter of 2012/13. The new monitoring process is expected to report
to the Patient Safety Committee through the Deteriorating Patient Committee.
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Improving Patient Safety in 2012/13:

Priority 2. Minimise avoidable harm acquired in hospital
Objectives:
We aim to minimise avoidable harm acquired in hospital. We will focus on falls, pressure
ulcers, and venous thromboembolism (VTE), by extending the Safety Express programme as
set out in our locally agreed CQUIN targets. Safety Express provides a concerted approach to
minimising patient harm and specific tools and techniques to assist ward-level staff in doing
so. In so doing, it aims to ensure safer, more reliable care with better outcomes, at
significantly lower costs.
We have implemented Safety Express in partnership with other initiatives (e.g. Energise for
Excellence, High Impact Actions, Patient Safety First, the NHS Institute for Innovation and
Improvement Productive series). This programme aims to work collaboratively, breaking
down traditional organisational and geographical boundaries to learn together about reducing
harm from pressure ulcers, falls, catheter-acquired urinary tract infections (CA-UTI) and VTE.
We have piloted the application of the Safety Express programme in four specific wards in
2011/12, successfully achieved the target reduction in falls and pressure ulcers, extended the
programme to a further four wards, and are now looking at sustainability workstreams. We
therefore propose to ensure the further roll-out of this programme to a targeted set of wards
in 2012/13.
Over the next year, we will improve collection of data regarding pressure ulcers, falls and VTE.
Aligned to our locally-agreed CQUIN target, our objectives include:
To consistently use the NHS Safety Thermometer to track and record the prevalence of
pressure ulcers, falls, urinary tract infection in those with a catheter, and VTE in
identified high risks areas.
To broaden use of the Safety Thermometer tool and the Safety Express programme to
new wards across the Trust. This will ensure that the training, leadership and cultural
change needed to effectively reduce avoidable harm to patients is sustained and that
nationally comparable data is gathered.

Why is this one of our quality priorities?
As we emphasise in our ‘Quality Philosophy’, the safety of our patients is always our number
one priority. Over recent years, we have substantially improved infection prevention and
control, and VTE prevention. Now, we want to reemphasise essential care processes and
focus on further reduction in falls and pressure ulcers. In our discussion with stakeholders,
they highlighted that these were important headline measures that could act as proxy
indicators to reflect wider improvements in safety and reliability of clinical care.
As well as ensuring that we minimise harm in the care we provide, we also believe that
preventing VTE, falls, ulcers and the spread of infection will minimise the time our patients
spend in hospital, improving their experience of recovery. This will enable other patients to be
admitted for inpatient treatment more promptly. Meeting the dual objectives of quality and
efficiency, this improvement is more important than ever in the current NHS context.
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How are we performing now?
King’s current performance on total number of falls:

King’s performance on pressure ulcers (Grades 2 – 4):
The table below demonstrates that there has been a significant reduction in hospital acquired
stage 2, 3 and 4 pressure ulcers in the last 5 years.
Year
07/08
08/09
09/10
10/11
11/12

Stage 2
241
153
160
95
111

Stage 3
25
24
25
8
6

Stage 4
13
20
4
3
0

Performance in a ‘Safety Express’ ward
This is an example drawn from the four pilot wards where improvement objectives were met
over 2011/12, following focused team effort and ward-level support. There is significant
reduction in falls and catheter insertions and sustained high compliance with VTE risk
assessment, as shown in the graphs below. There were no pressure ulcers whatsoever.
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What are our planned improvement initiatives?
Our Director of Nursing and Midwifery strongly advocates for greater consistency in safety and
care standards. Alongside this executive support, we shall extend the use of specific tools and
changes from Safety Express.
Key pieces of work:
Use of metrics raises awareness and knowledge about best practice and instils confidence in
staff to ‘do the right things’. This will be implemented in phases, coupled with tools already
known to be effective in preventing harm, such as:
Falls prevention equipment, e.g. falls sensors, hip protectors, falls prevention teaching
Pocket guides for pressure staging and catheter care
Leadership development with ward managers and
Enhanced communication tools and training such as Sage and Thyme, an evidencebased communication tool particularly suited to challenging conversations.
Using these and other measures, we aim to achieve the following during 2012/13:
Maintain improvements on falls and pressure ulcers.
VTE: Across King’s, at least 90% of our inpatient population have VTE assessments; at
least 90% of these have appropriate prophylaxis prescribed, and (by the first three
months of 2013) 75% have written information given to them. We will also set targets
to improve the proportion of staff receiving VTE training.

How will we measure our performance, and where do we report it?
We will focus on this suite of key indicators:
Injurious falls reduction or explanation, i.e. single patient with multiple unavoidable
falls (Datix)
Pressure ulcer acquisition in hospital rate (etrace)
VTE admission assessment for all patients (target 95% for all inpatients) (EPR)
Catheter insertion rate reduction (EPR)
All the above are monitored divisionally and Trust-wide as part of the six-week rolling Nursing
and Midwifery Accountability Scorecard, which is presented to the Director of Nursing and
Midwifery. Senior nurses from each specialty report their performance against the four
metrics together with other key performance indicators.
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Improving Clinical Effectiveness in 2012/13:

Priority 3. Improve end of life care
Objective:
To build on the work in 2011/12 to improve the coordination of care we give to patients as
they approach end of life and achieve the locally agreed CQUIN target.
Quality Aspect

Outcome measures
(n.b. to be confirmed, as part of CQUIN
framework with our commissioners)

Specialist Palliative Care Discharge Letters sent within 2
days of palliative care discharge
Training and education to deliver EoLC

% sent within 2 days

Improved coordination of care and advance care
planning via implementation of AMBER care bundle

Implementation of phased training plan;
training reach within identified key groups
Establish plan for quality sampling of
AMBER care bundles. Obtain baseline and
achieve agreed improvement target.

Why is this one of our quality priorities?
At King’s we are committed to making improvements to the experience of patients – as well as
their friends and family – as they reach the end of their lives. We have made some notable
progress in the past year (see page 84), but there is an organisational desire to continue to
improve.

What are our planned improvement initiatives?
We are committed to continued focus on enabling effective and responsive
coordination of care for our patients as they approach the end of life. We recognise
that to achieve the EoLC excellence we aspire to, the improvement success in the past
year can be built on with sustaining our systemic focus and capacity-building across
the whole organisation.
In our 2012/13 CQUIN framework, we plan to build on the success of this year with
emphasis on these key areas; the detail is yet to be agreed with our commissioners:
o Prompt discharge letters to enable effective handover of end of life care
 Maintaining the coordination of care by ensuring specialist palliative care
letters are sent in a timely manner, and aiming to improve further the
proportion sent within two days.
o Education and Training
 In order to ensure the Liverpool Care Pathway is used consistently well to
provide patients with dignified symptom-/pain-free death, we will undertake
an awareness and training campaign (‘LCP Roadshow’) to all wards in 2012.
We will re-energise our network of EoLC ‘champions’ to update and
implement a further cycle of interventions to raise awareness and provide
training.
 We will identify specific areas and staff groups for which completion of
mandatory e-learning modules is particularly pertinent, and set phased
improvement targets for this for 2012/13. This is particularly important as it is
staff’s engagement with the importance of these interventions and their
confidence in applying the approaches and tools that will ultimately bring
about better care.
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o

AMBER care bundle
 We will continue to improve the use of the AMBER care bundle in the five pilot
wards over 2012/13, and support the formal evaluation process across King’s
Health Partners to improve the care bundle and its implementation.
 We will establish a way to review the quality of implementation in the pilot
wards. By doing so, we will be able to identify improvement opportunities
and set goals to ensure the use of the AMBER care bundle is as effective as it
can be. We have suggested monitoring a sample of five patients each month
and using what we learn to make improvements across the five wards.
In addition to the above targets, we are keen to focus on two more areas of
improvement in 2012/13:
o Revising governance structures around the delivery of end of life care to support
and direct the improvements described above.
o Scoping the development of an electronic Liverpool Care Pathway tool which
aligns with our vision of a paperless hospital, and would enable robustly recorded
care coordination. Electronic recording will also enable better tracking of EoLC
provision, providing insights to identify further improvement opportunities.

How will we measure our performance, and where do we report it?
We will measure performance in the following ways:
Analyse current baseline performance (i.e. how we are currently performing)
Report against the CQUIN targets monthly as part of a revised divisional performance
management framework
Report through the revised End of Life Care Strategy Group and Patient Outcomes
Committee to the Board’s Quality and Governance Committee
Bi-monthly quality meetings are scheduled throughout the year with our
commissioners where we report on performance in key metrics, as well as our
progress against the quality priorities we have set ourselves
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Improving Clinical Effectiveness in 2012/13:

Priority 4. Improve diabetes care
Objective:
To build on the work in 2011/12 to meet NICE Quality Standards for diabetes inpatient
care (Standards 11 – 13).
Quality Statement

Outcome measures *

(11) Inpatient: People with diabetes admitted to hospital
are cared for by appropriately trained staff, provided
with access to a specialist diabetes team, and given the
choice of self-monitoring and managing their own
insulin.
(12) Diabetic Ketoacidosis: People admitted to hospital
with diabetic ketoacidosis receive educational and
psychological support prior to discharge and are
followed up by a specialist diabetes team.
(13) Hypoglycaemia: People with diabetes who have
experienced hypoglycaemia requiring medical attention
are referred to a specialist diabetes team.

Reduction in incidents relating to insulin
causing harm.
Increase in patient satisfaction with their
care in hospital.
Reduction in readmission rates within 12
months for people admitted with diabetic
ketoacidosis.

Identification and intervention for patients
with severe hypoglycaemia who attend the
emergency department or are admitted into
KCH.
*NB. Targets to be confirmed in Q1, based upon IT solutions available to capture and report data.

It is important to note that in meeting both Quality Statements 12 and 13, our inpatient
diabetes care team will be developing improvements alongside those incorporated in the
Diabetes Modernisation Initiative (within the boroughs of Lambeth and Southwark). Spanning
the period from 2010-2013, this has a system wide focus on achieving the shared vision of:
‘Living well with diabetes – patients, carers and clinicians create a system of
excellence which is consistent and co-ordinated, has the right balance between
support and independence, is reliable and accessible, uses state of the art
treatment approaches to deliver the best health outcomes and is sustainable.’
Together, we are aiming to reduce diabetes emergencies, and enabling effective selfmanagement of the condition.

Why is this one of our quality improvement priorities?
Approximately one in five of King’s adult inpatients is diabetic, and the majority are admitted
to King’s for reasons other than their diabetes. Some may be discharged from hospital without
being referred for appropriate specialist input from the diabetes team. If diabetes is identified
early and treated effectively, clinical outcomes for patients improve and they may have a
shorter stay in hospital.
We have participated in the 2010 and 2011 National Diabetes Inpatient Audit, the results of
which reflect the early improvements made. We are, however, committed to raising the bar
higher and ensuring we meet the Quality Standard for Diabetes published by NICE in March
2011 as a benchmark for delivering excellent care for diabetic patients.
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What are our planned improvement initiatives?
Improving diabetes care will remain a quality priority at King’s in 2012/13. We are committed
to ensuring the organisation remains focused on enabling effective and responsive
coordination of care for our patients with diabetes.
Based on the key improvement areas we have scoped this year, we in 2012/13 we will further
focus on:
Technology-enabled care:
o Implementing the EPMA e-insulin sheet
o Scope, procure, and implement an electronic blood glucose monitoring system
that will interface with EPR and EPMA.
Cultural shift and increasing capabilities:
o Embedding the Diabetes Specialist Nurse role in key areas and providing them
ongoing development support
o Launching the Diabetes LINK practitioner network and supporting a proactive
model of interventional care
Performance framework, information and data analytics:
o Pilot and implement a bespoke patient experience feedback survey – to
understand the experience specifically of our patients with diabetes, and what
can be done to increase their satisfaction with their care
o Develop clear set of indicators to track improvements in outcomes for patients
with diabetes
o Enlist the support of a skilled data manager to analyse information for the
scorecard and highlight improvement opportunities for better diabetes care
quality and efficacy
In addition to the outstanding initiatives that we have scoped this year to take forward during
2012/13, we hope to also improve clinical effectiveness by:
Developing diabetes management decision support tools for non-specialists to
improve insulin safety
o Redesign of diabetes pages on the King’s wiki, including multimedia training
materials, case studies – to reach multidisciplinary teams
o Develop opportunistic teaching models and content
Promoting self-management of diabetes care
o Pilot patient self-management for insulin administration tool
o Identify improvement opportunities in light of new guidelines and focus on an
ethos of teaching patients to self-manage the condition and treatment
We recognise that it will be challenging to complete the above within the next year. However,
to achieve the diabetes care excellence that we aspire to, we will need to continue to grow
and sustain our systemic focus across the whole organisation.

How will we measure our performance, and where do we report it?
We will measure performance in the following ways:
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Report against the suite of indicators and targets we will confirm in the first quarter of
2012/13 on a monthly basis as part of the service’s performance management
framework
Report through the project steering group and Patient Outcomes Committee to the
Board Quality and Governance Committee
Bi-monthly quality meetings are scheduled throughout the year with our
commissioners.
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Improving Patient Experience in 2012/13:

Priority 5. Improve our responsiveness to inpatients’ personal needs
Objective:
To use a similar framework to 2011/12 to achieve the locally agreed CQUIN target for
the ‘responsiveness to personal needs’ composite indicator.

Why is this one of our quality improvement priorities?
A key lesson from reflecting on feedback on patients’ experiences at King’s (through our
annual National Inpatient Survey results and in-house ‘How Are We Doing’ survey) is that,
while some of our patients have a very positive experience and report high satisfaction, this is
not always consistent across areas.
The National CQUIN targets for patient experience remain based around the same basket of
five questions relating to ‘Responsiveness to personal needs’. These have been found to be
the most important aspects to patients, and we are still yet to achieve the level of consistency
and high standards that we would aspire to. We know that, when we tailor and focus our
support to specific ward areas, we are able to achieved significant and sustained improvement
to patient experience. We are therefore continuing this approach, spreading improvement
more widely through the hospital.

What are our planned improvement initiatives?
We will continue to focus on ward-level transformation as described above. This has been
successful in the past, so we plan to structure our local 2012/13 CQUIN targets similarly.
However, we recognise that more work is needed to ensure that the learning and progress
made in one area translates to sustainable Trust-wide improvement. We will be looking for
new ways to communicate and influence performance as we strive to achieve the 2012/13
National CQUIN target based on our performance on the National Inpatient Survey in 2011/12.
This is yet to be established following the Care Quality Commission’s publication of results
which will post-date this report.
We will continue to undertake improvement initiatives within areas identified for targeted
support. These will include:
Implementation of discharge coordination using a core discharge checklist
Rolling out intentional rounds every two hours
Increasing volunteer input for befriending care
Rolling out training using ‘Sage and Thyme’, an evidence-based communication tool to
assist supportive conversations
Reinforcing the involvement of patients in their care
Working with staff to reinforce King’s Values and behavioural standards
Providing staff with timely and balanced feedback from the HRWD inpatient survey,
patient compliments and complaints, to ensure that patients’ needs drive decisions
within ward teams
In addition, there will be further focus on:
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Re-energising patient and public involvement – mobilising their energy to drive review
of current care standards and identify improvement opportunities, working alongside
staff teams to develop rapid, focused improvements.
Exploring creative opportunities to engage staff better in key forums such as the
Patient Experience Committee.
Spreading best practice across the hospital for greater consistency of care – e.g. there
may be opportunities to implement intentional rounds across the Trust.

How will we measure our performance, and where do we report it?
We will measure performance in the following ways:
Continue to monitor the experiences of patients on the five aspects in the composite
‘How Are We Doing’ survey indicator, which is included in the monthly, Trust-wide
Patient Experience Report.
Report against the CQUIN targets on a monthly basis as part of the revised divisional
performance management framework; all divisional teams will be prompted to review
their performance and to identify local improvement opportunities.
The lessons ward teams learn will be shared at the Trust’s Patient Experience
Committee to spread best-practice, and will feed into the Board Quality and
Governance Committee.
Bi-monthly quality meetings are scheduled throughout the year with our
commissioners where we report on performance against the quality priorities we have
set ourselves and other key measures of patient experience.
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Improving Patient Experience in 2012/13:

Priority 6. Improve Outpatient Experience
Objective:
To roll out an Outpatient feedback survey and achieve focused improvement on key
issues identified from our National Outpatient Survey results.

Why is this one of our quality improvement priorities?
King’s has over 700,000 outpatient attendances each year. National surveys, Patient Advice
and Liaison Service and complaints data provide strong evidence that outpatient services need
to improve. In order to serve patients better, we need data to tell us what we are doing
wrong so that we can act to improve services.
The Trust is going through a period of change, with proposed moves for outpatient services
and the redevelopment of the Emergency Department. Particularly in times of change, it is
crucial to involve patients and to keep them updated with the developments as well as any
disruption to services. Outpatient feedback would enable us to respond quickly to issues of
concern for patients.
We have already implemented a standardised outpatient survey in a number of clinics; it is
providing useful information on patients’ experiences of outpatient services. However, we
acknowledge the need to refocus and re-energise the survey and to expand it across the Trust
as a means of driving continuous improvement. We are committed to improving the
consistency of care and service standards along the entire patient pathway.

How are we performing now?
In 2011, King’s took part in the Care Quality Commission’s National Outpatient Survey, a postal
questionnaire covering aspects of the outpatient experience such as:
• Before the appointment
• Waiting in the hospital
• Environment and facilities
• Tests and treatment
• Seeing a doctor
• Seeing another health professional
• Overall about the appointment
• Leaving Outpatients
• Overall impressions
• Demographics

115

Before 2011, the last national outpatient survey was conducted in 2009, when King’s was
rated by patients as the highest performing acute Trust in London for outpatient services. The
results from the 2011 survey are slightly less good than in 2009, with King’s achieving amber
ratings in 7 of 9 sections. A green rating, meaning that King's performed better than average,
was awarded in the 'Leaving the Outpatient Department' category, which covers things like
the quality of the information given to patients about medication or someone to contact if
they have any queries once they get home. We received a red rating for the section on 'Seeing
another health professional'.
Compared to 2009, results show:
Improvement in patient experience before the appointment
Similar scores for waiting, environment and facilities, leaving outpatients
Slightly lower scores for tests and treatments, seeing a doctor/another health
professional and overall experience of the appointment
King’s is rated third among its London peers, below Imperial Healthcare and Guy’s and St
Thomas’s.

What are our planned improvement initiatives?
There are two key approaches to outpatient experience improvement proposed:
Development and implementation of Outpatient ‘How are we doing?’ (HRWD) Survey
trust-wide. This will help clinic teams to better understand their patient’s expectations
and to identify improvement opportunities.
The following measures will enable this to succeed:
o Development of the survey, learning from current HRWD survey and National
Outpatient Survey, as well as pre-appointment questionnaire and two In Your
Shoes listening events
o Volunteer input to encourage greater response rates
o Exploration and testing of a range of options to administer the survey, such as
using tablet PCs and touch-screen kiosks
o Leads in each clinic, who share information about how patient feedback has
shaped changes
We will also engage in:
Focused clinic improvement: We will develop key performance baselines, and develop
a set of benchmark targets through the CQUIN framework, agreed with our
commissioners. We will then work with clinic teams, and co-create action plans for
focused transformation.
Interventions may include:
o Focused support in facilitating planning of improvement actions
o In Your Shoes listening events, patient stories and other bespoke customer care
training
o Sharing best practice such as patient education materials or standardised
communication tools
Importantly, we will develop action plans in conjunction within the transformation
programme to redesign outpatient services. Increasing patient and public
involvement as part of this will also help us ensure that service redesign will better
serve their needs.
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The work will be led by a new, dedicated, Patient Experience workstream as part of the wider
Outpatient Transformation programme.

How will we measure our performance, and where do we report it?
We will measure performance in the following ways:
Include key aspects of the ‘How are we doing? – Outpatient’ survey in the monthly
Trust-wide Patient Experience Report and trust and divisional scorecards
Report against CQUIN targets monthly, prompting all divisional teams to review their
performance and to identify local improvement opportunities
Lessons learned by ward teams will be shared at the monthly Patient Experience
Group, and fed into the Trust’s Transformation Board and the Trust’s Patient
Experience Committee in order to extend best practice
Bi-monthly quality meetings with commissioners, which are scheduled throughout the
year.
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Statements of Assurance from the Board:
2a: Information on the review of services:
During the 2011/12 reporting period, King’s College Hospital provided and/or sub-contracted
seven NHS services. They were:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Acute services
Hospice services
Rehabilitation services
Community healthcare services
Diagnostic & screening services
Long-term conditions services
Blood and transplant services

King’s has reviewed all the data available on the quality of care in all of the above seven types
of services.
The income generated by the NHS services reviewed in 2011/12 represents 100 per cent of the
total income generated from the provision of NHS services by King’s for 2011/12.
Indicators covering the three quality dimensions – patient safety, clinical effectiveness and
patient experience – were identified and built into King’s monthly performance scorecards at
Trust, divisional and team levels in June 2009. These are actively used to drive overall quality
improvement, and the divisional scorecards have adjusted to the new arrangement since July
2010.
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Quality and Governance Frameworks
It is also important to recap that during 2010/11, King’s has revised the Board Governance
structure. A number of significant changes both within the Trust and in the external
regulatory and quality environment made it a timely point to review arrangements. The aim of
the revision was to ensure the Board, its committees and the structures which report into
them remain relevant and effective, and facilitate both effective management of the
organisation, and Board assurance.
Drawing upon the wealth of best practice guidance published in recent years, key changes
were made including:
Establishing a combined Finance and Performance Committee,
Establishing a new Strategy Committee and
Creating a new Quality and Governance Committee.
The establishment of the Quality and Governance Committee is supported by new
subcommittees that will focus on the key dimensions of quality: patient safety, patient
outcomes (clinical effectiveness) and patient experience. It will also review and provide
assurance on: organisational safety, information governance and compliance with a range of
external regulatory bodies.
Quality & Governance
Committee

Information Governance
Steering Group

Patient
Outcomes
Committee

Patient
Experience
Committee

Subcommittees:
Public Health Committee
Clinical Effectiveness Committee
Evidence-Based Practice Committee
Mortality Monitoring Committee
Organ Donation Committee

Subcommittees:
Healthcare for all Group
Maternity Services Liaison Committee
Older Peoples Committee
End of Life Care Group
Links to Governor
- Patient Experience &
Safety Committee
- Membership Committee

Patient
Safety
Committee

Subcommittees:
Serious Incident Committee
Deteriorating Patients Group
Infection Control Committee
Medicines Management Committee
Resuscitation Committee
Transfusion Committee
New Clinical Procedures Committee
Falls Strategy Group
Nutrition Group

Organisational
Safety
Committee

Subcommittees:
Environment Committee
Safer Hospital Panel
Health and Safety Committee
Ops Health and Safety Committee
BBV Committee
Records Management Committee
Emergency Preparedness &
Business Continuity
Safeguarding Committee

By building upon the strengths of our governance structures, we are able now to strengthen
the focus on quality and deliver greater Board Assurance. The Board receives regular reports
on patient experience, outcomes and safety.
Over 2011/12, we have seen these committees effectively monitoring and driving progress in
our quality improvement priorities. They will continue to be our main structures for steering
improvements in the priorities identified here for 2012/13.
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2b: Participation in Clinical Audits and National Confidential Enquiries:
During 2011/12, 45 national clinical audits and one national confidential enquiry covered NHS
services that King’s provides.
During that period, King’s participated in 96% (43/45) of national clinical audits and 100% (1/1)
of national confidential enquiries in which it was eligible to participate.
The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries in which King’s was eligible to
participate during 2011/12 and those in which we actually participated (with data collection
completed during 2011/12), are listed below alongside the number or registered cases
required by the terms of that audit or enquiry.
The following list of national audits is based on that produced by the Department of Health:
National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
1. Peri- and Neonatal
Perinatal mortality (MBRACE-UK)
National Neonatal Audit Programme (NNAP)
2. Children
Paediatric Pneumonia (British Thoracic
Society)
Paediatric Asthma (British Thoracic Society)
Pain Management (College of Emergency
Medicine)

Childhood Epilepsy (RCPH National Childhood
Epilepsy Audit)

Paediatric Intensive Care Audit Network (PICA
Net)

King’s
participation

Reporting period

Participation rates10

Yes
Yes

N/A
01/01/11 –
31/12/11

100%
100%

Yes

01/11/11 –
31/01/12
N/A
50 consecutives
cases
01/08/11 –
31/01/12

Data collection in
progress.
N/A
100% (50/50 cases
submitted).

Organisational
Audit:
31/07/11 –
30/06/11

Organisational audit:
100%

No
Yes

Yes partial

Yes

01/08 – 12/10

Yes
Paediatric cardiac surgery (NICOR Congenital
Heart Disease Audit
Diabetes (RCPH National Paediatric Diabetes
Audit)

Clinical Audit: 0%

N/A
Yes

10

100% (1559 cases
submitted in total:
392 admissions in
2008, 572 admissions
in 2009 and 595
admissions in 2010.
01/09 – 12/11
Data collection in
progress.
Paediatric cardiac surgery not undertaken
at King’s.
01/01/10 –
100% (159/159 cases
31/03/11
submitted).

Data collection occurs through different channels (from staff groups, directly from patients, or returns
through our IT system) and it is therefore not always possible to track participation rates centrally. In
some instances, the rates are confirmed only in the final publication of results. In other instances, the
report may not specify King’s participation rate.
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National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
3. Acute Care
Emergency use of oxygen (British Thoracic
Society)

Adult community acquired pneumonia (British
Thoracic Society)
Non-invasive ventilation (British Thoracic
Society)
Pleural procedures (British Thoracic Society)

King’s
participation

Reporting period

Participation rates10

Yes partial

Organisational
Audit:
15/08/11 –
15/11/11

Organisational audit:
100%

01/12/11 –
31/01/12
01/02/12 –
31/03/12
01/06/11 –
31/07/11

Data collection in
progress.
Data collection in
progress.
Organisational audit:
100%

Yes
Yes
Yes

Cardiac arrest (National Cardiac Arrest Audit)

Yes

Severe sepsis & septic shock (College of
Emergency Medicine)

Yes

Adult critical care (Case Mix Programme)

Yes

Potential donor audit (NHS Blood &
Transplant)
Seizure management (National Audit of
Seizure Management)

Yes

4. Long-term conditions
Diabetes (National Adult Diabetes Audit)
Heavy menstrual bleeding (RCOG National
Audit of HMB)

Chronic pain (National Pain Audit)
Ulcerative colitis & Crohn’s disease (National
IBD Audit)

Continuous data
collection.
King’s
participating in
audit since
August 2010.
30 consecutives
cases
01/08/11 –
31/01/12
01/04/11 –
31/03/12
01/04/11 –
31/03/12
30 consecutive
cases presenting
after 1st October
2010.

Yes

Yes
Yes

No
Yes

Clinical audit:
maximum number of
procedures
submitted 15.
Data collection in
progress.

100% (30/30 cases
submitted).

Data collection in
progress.
Data collection in
progress.
70% (21/30 cases
submitted).

01/01/10 –
31/03/11
Organisational
Audit:
05/11 – 09/11

52% (1932/3685
cases submitted).
Organisational audit:
100%

Patient
Recruitment:
01/02/11 –
31/01/12

Recruitment rate:
approx 20% (96
questionnaires over
a 10 month period to
date)
N/A
100% (20/20
ulcerative colitis
cases & 20/20
Crohn’s disease
cases submitted).

N/A
01/09/10 –
31/08/11
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Clinical Audit: 0%

National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
Parkinson’s disease (National Parkinson’s
Audit)
Adult asthma (British Thoracic Society)
Bronchiectasis (British Thoracic Society)

King’s
participation
Yes

Reporting period

Participation rates10

01/11 – 31/12/11

Yes

01/09/11 –
31/10/11
01/10/11 –
30/11/11

100% (20/20 cases
submitted).
23 cases submitted.

Yes

Organisational audit:
100%
Clinical audit: 50
cases submitted.

5. Elective Procedures
Hip, knee and ankle replacements (National
Joint Registry)
Elective surgery (National PROMs
Programme)

Yes

01/01/11 –
31/12/11
01/04/10 –
31/03/11

Yes

Yes

Intra-thoracic transplantation (NHSBT UK
Transplant Registry
Liver transplantation (NHSBT UK Transplant
Registry)
Coronary angioplasty (NICOR Adult cardiac
interventions audit)

N/A
Yes
Yes
Yes

Peripheral vascular surgery (VSGBI Vascular
Surgery Database)

Yes
Yes

Carotid interventions (Carotid Intervention
Audit)
CABG and valvular surgery (Adult cardiac
surgery audit)
6. Cardiovascular Disease
Acute myocardial infarction and other ACS
(MINAP)
Heart failure (Heart Failure Audit)

Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes

01/04/11 –
31/03/12
01/04/10 –
31/03/11
04/11 – 03/12

Yes
Yes

Acute Stroke (SINAP)
Cardiac arrhythmia (Cardiac Rhythm
Management Audit)

Data collection in
progress.
Pre op questionnaire
return rate: 58.4%
Post op
questionnaire return
rate: 70.8%
01/04/11 –
Pre op questionnaire
30/09/11
return rate: 68.2%
Post op
questionnaire return
rate: Number not
published.
Intra-thoracic transplantation not
undertaken at King’s.
01/03/94 –
Awaiting report
31/03/11
publication.
01/01/10 –
1225 cases
31/12/10
submitted.
01/01/11 –
Data collection in
31/12/11
progress.
01/10/08125 elective cases
30/09/10
submitted.
01/10/10Data collection in
30/09/11
progress.
01/10/10 –
100% (64/64 cases
30/09/11
submitted).
04/10 – 03/11
751 cases submitted.
04/11 – 03/12
Data collection in
progress.

Yes
Yes

04/10 – 09/11
01/01/10 –
31/12/10
01/01/11 –
31/12/11

Yes
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460 cases submitted.
393 cases submitted.
Data collection in
progress.
776 cases submitted.
314 cases submitted.
Data collection in
progress.

National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
7. Renal Disease
Renal replacement therapy (Renal Registry)

King’s
participation

Reporting period

Yes

01/10 – 12/10

Participation rates10

Renal Transplantation (NHSBT UK Transplant
Registry)
8. Cancer
Lung cancer (National Lung Cancer Audit)

N/A

Data collection in
progress.
01/11 – 12/11
Data collection in
progress.
Not undertaken at King’s.

Yes
Yes

01/10 – 12/10
01/11 – 12/11

Bowel cancer (National Bowel Cancer Project)

Yes

01/08/09 –
31/07/10
01/08/10 –
31/07/11

Yes

Yes

141 cases submitted.
Data collection in
progress.
118 cases submitted.
Data collection in
progress.

Head & Neck Cancer (DAHNO)

N/A

Not undertaken at King’s.

Oesophago-gastric cancer (National O-G
Cancer Audit

Yes

01/10/07 –
30/06/09

8 cases submitted.

Yes

01/04/11 –
01/04/12

Data collection in
progress.

Yes
Yes

01/04/11 –
31/03/12
2008 - 2011

Data collection in
progress.
1,337 cases
submitted.

N/A
N/A

Not relevant to King’s, for Mental Health
Not relevant to King’s, for Mental Health

Yes

01/04/11 –
31/06/11
05/09/11 –
30/11/11

71 cases submitted.

Yes

03/11

100% (100/100 cases
submitted).

Yes

01/04/11 –
31/06/11

67 cases submitted.

9. Trauma
Hip fracture (National Hip Fracture Database)
Severe trauma (Trauma and Audit Research
Network)
10. Psychological conditions
Prescribing in mental health services (POMH)
Schizophrenia (National Schizophrenia Audit)
11. Blood Transfusion
Bedside transfusion (National Comparative
Audit of Blood Transfusion)
Medical use of blood (National Comparative
Audit of Blood Transfusion)
12. Health promotion
Risk factors (National Health Promotion in
Hospitals Audit)
13. End of life
Care of dying in hospital (NCDAH)

Yes
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105 cases submitted
(Interim report
published).

In addition, King’s participated in the following National Confidential Enquiry into Patient
Outcome and Death (NCEPOD) studies:
National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry

King’s
participation

Reporting period

Participation rates

Acute Care
NCEPOD: Surgery in Children

Yes

01/04/08 –
31/03/10

NCEPOD: Peri-operative Care

Yes

01/03/10 –
07/03/10

NCEPOD: Cardiac Arrest Study

Yes

01/11/10 –
14/11/10

NCEPOD: Bariatric Study

Yes

01/06/10 –
31/08/10

Number of cases
submitted:
Surgical
questionnaires 7/13
(54%)
Anaesthetic
questionnaires = 9/13
(69%)
Case notes = 12/13
(92%)
Organisational
questionnaire = 1/1
(100%)
Organisational
questionnaire = 1/1
(100%)
Number of cases
submitted:
Clinical
questionnaires = 8/11
(73%)
Case notes = 11/11
(100%)
Organisational
questionnaire = 1/1
(100%)
Number of cases
submitted:
Clinical
questionnaires = 5/5
(100%)
Case notes = 5/5
(100%)
Organisational
questionnaire = 1/1
(100%)
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The reports of 15 national clinical audits listed in the Quality Account for 2011/12 were
reviewed by King’s in 2011/12. The actions King’s intends to take to improve the quality of
healthcare are provided below:
National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
2. Children
Paediatric Intensive Care Audit Network (PICA
Net)
Audit data: January 2010 to December 2010
3. Acute Care
Potential donor audit (NHS Blood & Transplant)
Report published: April 2011
Audit data: October 2009 to March 2011

Headline results and/ or actions taken

The audit shows that the Paediatric Intensive Care
Unit (PICU) at King’s has one of the lowest
Standardised Mortality Ratios (SMRs), amongst
specialist PICUs, in the UK. The SMR for King’s in 2011
was below 1.0 (0.73).
578 deaths at King’s were audited and 83 families
were approached for donors after brain death (DBD)
and donors after cardiac death (DCD). Areas for
improvement identified at King’s included Brain Stem
Testing rate and DBD consent rate.
A second audit collected data between April and
September 2011 and a comparison of the data
obtained by the first and second audit demonstrates
that King’s improved significantly in the Brain Stem
Testing (BST) rate, which increased from 60% to 90%,
and the DCD consent rate, which increased from 36%
to 60%. Small improvements were also made in DBD
and DCD referral rate, DBD consent rate and DCD
conversion rate.
To ensure further improvement King’s will develop a
hospital-wide organ donation policy which
incorporates tissue donation; increase collaboration
between the Specialist Nurses for Organ Donation
and the clinical areas; and to continue to promote a
culture whereby donation is seen as a normal end of
life decision, whilst maintaining excellent end of life
care.

4. Long-term conditions
Heavy menstrual bleeding (RCOG National
Audit of HMB)
Report published: June 2011
Audit data: February 2011 to May 2011.

King’s participation rate in the audit was low, largely
due to the audit not being made available in
languages other than English and patients not being
allowed to seek help with completing the
questionnaire. This led to the exclusion of a large
proportion of King’s patients from this audit.
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National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
Parkinson’s disease (National Parkinson’s
Audit)

Headline results and/ or actions taken

Report published: June 2011
Audit data: July 2010 to November 2010

King’s performed better than the national average in
the following areas:
Patients with diagnosed or suspected Parkinson’s
disease (PD) seen by a specialist within 6 weeks
(King’s 94% vs. national average 66%).
King’s is fully compliant with standards relating to
providing contact information for PD nurse
specialist, reviewing patients every 6-12 months
and providing drop-in clinic for patients and
carers.

King’s ranked 23rd out of the 53 organisations which
took part in the audit nationally.

The one area for improvement is the recording of the
assessment of patients for activities of daily living,
speech and/or swallowing. Actions will be
implemented by King’s to improve integration with
Elderly Services and to improve adherence to the best
practice care pathway, as described by NICE.

National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
5. Elective Procedures
Hip, knee and ankle replacements (National
Joint Registry)
Report published: September 2010
Annual audit data: April 2009 to March 2010
Joint replacement activity: January 2009 to
December 2009
Survivorship analysis of hip and knee joint
replacement surgery: April 2003 to December
2009
Liver transplantation (NHSBT UK Transplant
Registry)
Interim report published: May 2011
Audit data: 1st October 2009 to 30th September
2010

Coronary angioplasty (NICOR Adult cardiac
interventions audit)
Report published: June 2011
Audit data: 1st January to 31st December 2009
6. Cardiovascular Disease

Headline results and/ or actions taken

Action has been taken at King’s to improve
participation rates and subsequently the submission
rate for cases with consent has improved from 60% to
96-100% and the number of cases submitted with
NHS number and address has increased from 60% to
80%. This information allows the NJR to link records
for outcomes analysis. Overall data quality has
improved in relation to both accuracy and legibility.

The audit shows that:
King’s undertook more transplants than any
other centre.
The 90-day risk-adjusted mortality rate for adults
receiving a first liver transplant as elective is one
of the lowest in the UK.
The 90-day risk-adjusted mortality rate for adults
receiving a first liver transplant as super-urgent is
the lowest in the UK.
King’s ranked 34th out of the 88 centres which took
part in the audit nationally for data completeness.
Door-to-balloon time is within the 90 minute target,
in line with national guidance.
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National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
Acute myocardial infarction and other ACS
(MINAP)
Report published: September 2011
Data: April 2010 to March 2011

Headline results and/ or actions taken
The Trust considers the ‘door to balloon times’
recorded in the MINAP 2011 report to be inaccurate,
due to a number of data quality issues with the
current database. The information recorded in the
British Cardiac Intervention Society’s Cardiac Clinical
Audit Database demonstrates that King’s
performance is well within national targets.
King’s is examining the data submission for the
2011/12 period and expects there to be a significant
improvement in the quality of our submission.

Acute Stroke (SINAP)
Audit Data: April – June 2011
7. Renal Disease
Renal replacement therapy (Renal Registry)

King’s was in line with national average for the
prescribing of secondary prevention medication.
King’s received the highest score nationally across the
12 indicators of high quality care.

The audit indicates that King’s survival rate is
comparable to national and international results.

Audit data: 1996 to 2010

National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
8. Cancer
Lung cancer (National Lung Cancer Audit)
Report published: December 2011
Data: January 2010 to December 2010.

Oesophago-gastric cancer (National O-G
Cancer Audit
Report published: November 2010
Audit data: 1st October 2007 to 30th June 2009

Headline results and/ or actions taken

The audit indicates that whilst the number of
suspected lung cancer cases seen at King’s has
increased, the number of confirmed lung cancer cases
has remained consistent.
Actions are in place to improve data completeness
and King’s is reviewing capacity issues for the
pathway coordinators (specialist nurses) in order to
improve to patient outcome.
King’s is a diagnostic upper gastrointestinal (UGI) tract
cancer site. Patients are then referred to Guy’s and St
Thomas’ Hospital for treatment and follow up as part
of the South East London Cancer Network (SELCN).
SELCN performed significantly better than the
national average for inpatient mortality.
SELCN performed similarly to the national average for
CT-scanning and endoscopic ultrasound (EUS)
investigations.
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National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
9. Trauma
Hip fracture (National Hip Fracture Database)
Report published: September 2010
Audit data: 1st April 2010 to 31st March 2011

Headline results and/ or actions taken

King’s performed better than the national average for
the percentage of patients who:
Had surgery within 48 hours.
Were assessed preoperatively by a falls nurse or
a geriatrician.
Were assessed by a specialist nurse.
Were on bone health medication at admission.
Developed pressure ulcers.
Were discharged to own home.
An area identified for improvement is the transfer of
patients from the Accident and Emergency
Department to an orthopaedic ward. The Emergency
and Orthopaedics Departments are liaising to
improve the patient pathway for hip fracture
patients.
In addition, the results showed that the length of stay
at King’s was longer than national average. Two
contributors to this have been identified. Firstly,
King’s provides rehabilitation in-house, rather than
transferring patients into community services.
Secondly, residential care is often not available,
resulting in delayed discharges. King’s will take action
to ensure that the date at which a patient is fit for
discharge from hospital care is recorded in patient
notes, so that delayed discharge for social reasons
can be measured.

Severe trauma (Trauma and Audit Research
Network)
Audit data: January 2008 - December 2011

National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
10. Blood Transfusion
Bedside transfusion (National Comparative
Audit of Blood Transfusion)
Interim report published: September 2011
Audit data: 1st April 2011 to 30th June 2011

The audit data indicates that the number of
additional survivors out of every 100 patients at
King’s (4.3) is better than the national average (2.9).
This an improvement at King’s from 0.8 reported in
2008/09.

Headline results and/ or actions taken

King’s performed well against 5 of the 6 standards
relating to the documentation of bedside transfusion
practice and in line with the national average. No
blood transfusion adverse incidents have been
reported at King’s.
A new electronic tracking system is due to be
launched across King’s in 2012 which will improve
documentation and improve adherence to the audit
standards.

The reports of 7 national clinical audits listed in the Quality Account for 2010/11 were
published in 2011 and reviewed by King’s in 2011/12. The actions King’s intends to take to
improve the quality of healthcare are provided below:
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National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
2. Children
Paediatric Fever (College of Emergency
Medicine)
Report published: April 2011
Audit data: April 2009 to December 2010

3. Acute Care
Vital signs in majors (College of Emergency
Medicine)
Report published: April 2011
Audit data: October 2010 to January 2011

6. Cardiovascular Disease
Stroke care (National Sentinel Stroke Audit)
Report published: February 2011
Data: April 2010 to June 2010

7. Renal Disease
Renal Colic
Report published: April 2011
Audit data: October 2010 to January 2011

9.

Headline results and/ or actions taken

King’s had mixed results in this audit. Actions to
drive improvement include information embedded
into weekly team meetings and handover; a
paediatric sister allocated to lead on education of
junior staff; e-learning implemented; and a discharge
advice sheet produced. A local audit is scheduled to
ensure changes have led to significant improvement.
King’s had mixed results in this audit. Actions
implemented to drive improvement include
development of a new Emergency Department card
that includes vital signs; regular audit of patient
observation track and trigger system (POTTS);
improved process of escalation; and improved
training to Foundation Year 2 and middle grade
doctors. A local audit has identified significant
improvement.
King’s results are in the top quartile nationally and
the highest for all London Trusts. King’s performed
better than national average in all indicators,
including:
King’s patients were treated for 90% of their stay
in a Stroke Unit in 95% of cases (national average
= 62%).
Brain scan was undertaken within 24 hours of
stroke in 95% of cases (national average = 71).
Swallowing assessment was undertaken in 100%
of cases by a speech and language therapist
(national average = 89).
Rehabilitation goals were agreed by the multidisciplinary team in 100% of cases within 5 days of
admission (national average = 82).
King’s performed above or in line with national
average against most standards.
One improvement area was identified – recording of
re-evaluation of pain in the Emergency Department.
The Emergency Medicine team is making a number of
changes and will undertake a local audit in 2012-13 to
ensure significant improvement has been achieved.

Trauma
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National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
Falls and non-hip fractures (National Falls and
Bone Health Audit
Report published: May 2011
Data: January 2010 to June 2010

Headline results and/ or actions taken
King’s had mixed results in this audit. Actions
implemented to drive improvement include the
recruitment of a fracture liaison nurse and a
dedicated falls pharmacist, a direct referral pathway
from the London Ambulance Service to the falls clinic,
a psychological assessment at the falls clinic,
provision of written advice for patients with hip
fractures and a local protocol for prescribing calcium
and vitamin D.
Additional actions being implemented include routine
falls screening for older people presenting in the
Emergency Department and the development of an
orthopaedic hip fracture proforma/pathway.

10. Blood Transfusion
O negative blood use (National Comparative
Audit of Blood Transfusion)
Report published: April 2010
Audit data: First 40 transfusion episodes from
1st June 2010
Platelet use (National Comparative Audit of
Blood Transfusion)
Report published: April 2011
Data: September 2010 to December 2010

King’s is compliant with all key recommendations and
performance is in line with, or slightly better than,
national average.

King’s performance is better than the national
average in the following areas:
Recent pre-transfusion count check prior to
platelet transfusion.
A documented reason for why patients were
given platelet transfusion.
Pre-procedure platelet transfusion given in the 6
hours that immediately preceded a procedure.

In addition, the reports of five local Trust-wide clinical audits were reviewed by King’s in
2011/12 and King’s intends to take the following actions to improve the quality of healthcare
provided:
Local Clinical Audit
Hand hygiene and infection
control audit programme

Risk assessment model for
venous thromboembolism in
hospitalised medical patients
Audit of Consent Policy

Audit of NICE Policy
Audit of Confidential Enquiry
Policy

Actions to improve quality of care
Routine audit is in place to assess King’s compliance with its infection control
standards. A hand hygiene tool recommended by the Department of Health
is fully operational and a new audit management system is in place to
facilitate data entry, analysis and dissemination at all levels of the
organisation.
This audit is a CQUIN requirement and reported elsewhere in the Quality
Account.
Routine audit of consent has led to a review of the Trust consent form and
clear messaging throughout the organisation of Trust Policy for consent for
specific procedures.
Policy being rewritten and disseminated to improve process relating to
implementation of NICE guidance at King’s.
Minor changes to processes to ensure confidential enquiries disseminated
and implemented at King’s

130

2c: Information on participation in clinical research
The number of patients receiving NHS services provided or sub-contracted by King’s that were
recruited (but may not necessarily have completed the study) to participate in research
approved by a Research Ethics Committee, during the period 1 October 2010 – 31 September
2011 was 4662. They were recruited to 203 National Institute for Health Research (NIHR)
adopted studies.
This is a 14% increase in recruitment from 2010/11. Additionally, King’s was involved in
approximately 450 non-NIHR studies, and 150 commercial clinical research studies during
2010/11, to which an estimated 4,500 patients were recruited.
Commitment to research as a driver for improving the quality of care and patient experience
As a world renowned research institution, King’s strives to integrate clinical research into the
daily care our patients receive, demonstrating our commitment to improving the quality of
care we offer, and to making our contribution to wider health improvement. Our clinical staff
stay abreast of the latest possible treatment possibilities and active participation in research
leads to successful patient outcomes.
There were over 250 staff across 24 different medical specialties participating in research
during 2010/11, a mix of researchers, clinical staff and support staff, demonstrating how Kings
is actively integrating research into clinical practice. These staff participated in research
covering 24 different medical specialties
In addition, over the last year, in excess of 800 publications have resulted from our
involvement in research, which shows our commitment to driving research that will lead to
improvement in patient outcomes and experience across the NHS.
Kings has supported 2 rounds of competitive bids for funding, the Research Initiative grant
awards, with a total investment of £2,250,000. These 37 projects have been successful, with
over 20 publications in journals, 50 presentations of findings at meetings and conferences, 3
Young Investigator awards, 5 charitable grant awards, and an NIHR Fellowship. A number of
the projects have influenced national policy and standards of care, again reflecting the high
quality, patient focused research that is supported and conducted at King’s.
Below are some examples of the research being conducted within the Trust, to give a flavour
of the how it has impacts and benefits both nationally and for our local community.
Fetal Medicine
Professor Nicolaides and his team continue their world-leading studies on fetal monitoring and
scanning. They are also looking into maternal hypertension, including a study investigating the
use of aspirin to reduce blood pressure during pregnancy.
Cardiology
Our cardiology research is focused around innovative techniques and new technologies that
will have a direct impact on quality of treatment and care. The results of a project funded by
R&D at Kings have provided data that are changing the way patients with heart attacks are
treated across London, improving outcomes and delivering the best possible care in
emergency situations.
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Haematology
The White Cell group continue their clinical trials into medicines for the treatment of
myeloma, lymphoma and leukaemia. Kings now provides the largest bone marrow transplant
unit in Europe. The Red Cell group continue their important work into sickle cell disease,
collaborating with cardiology and renal research, to address better prediction of disease
severity and early intervention to minimise complications.
Palliative Care
Professor Irene Higginson and her research group within the Cicely Saunders Institute lead an
international standard for translational research in the field of palliation and chronic disease
management. The development of a patient- and family-based scoring system, and the
outreach of palliative care into other chronic disease areas, has resulted in the creation of
national and international guidance.
Sexual Health
The HIV research group is internationally recognised for its work on HIV-associated kidney and
bone disease. King’s is the lead centre for several observational, interventional and
translational studies of the effects of HIV therapy on the kidney and bone, and our work has
been included in national HIV monitoring and treatment guidelines. The research of the Sexual
Health Research Group is focused on service delivery and diagnostics, and accounts for
approximately 25% of all recruitment into CLRN portfolio studies within the Trust.
Renal Disease
The renal team are addressing various conditions that impact on renal disease, working closely
with haematology to investigate sickle cell disease, with palliative care to support end of life,
and with the HIV team. They also have research interests in obesity, exercise and nutrition.
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2d: Goals Agreed with Commissioners: The Commissioning for Quality
and Innovation (CQUIN) framework
1.5% of King’s contract income in 2011/12 was conditional upon achieving quality
improvement and innovation goals agreed with the South East London Commissioning leads as
part of the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) payment framework. This
equates to a total of £6,064,657 in 2011/12
Please see the table below for the detailed report of performance as measured by our King’s
CQUIN indicators in 2011/12. King’s has delivered significant quality improvements under the
CQUIN scheme as shown. The Trust has submitted evidence to commissioners to support the
achievement of 93% of the total CQUIN income in 2011/12 (£5,640,131).
Goal
Number

National CQUIN Indicator Name

Q4 Target

Q4 Actual

1-

1a

VTE Assessment

90

99.4

VTE
Prevention

1b
1c

Appropriate Prophylaxis
VTE Patient Information

70
40

94.9
76.0

2a

Nat Survey Results - Responsiveness to Personal Needs

68.8

64.5

3%

4

95

100

2 - Inpatient
Experience Personal
Needs

2b

3-

3a

Inpatient Experience: %improvement across Lister Ward, ASU
and Kinnier Wilson wards during Q4
Reporting on the national ERP database - Hip

Enhanced
Recovery
Programme

3a

Reporting on the national ERP database - Knee

95

100

3a

Reporting on the national ERP database - Colorectal

95

100

3a
3b
3c

Reporting on the national ERP database - Gynae
Achieve 80% of the relevant enhanced recovery elements
% Patients w Goal directed fluid therapy for colo-rectal surgery

95
80
80

100
100
83

3d

Reduction in median length of stay - Hip

6

5

3d

Reduction in median length of stay - Knee

5.5

6

3d
3d

7
3.7

7.5
3

15

6

4-

4.1a

Reduction in median length of stay - Colorectal
Reduction in average length of stay - Gynae
Agree target reduction in grade 2 pressure ulcers for Safety
Express Wards only

4.1a

Agree target reduction in grade 3 pressure ulcers

7

6

Reducing
Pressure
Ulcers &
Falls
5-

4.1b

No avoidable grade 4 pressure ulcers

0

0

4.2a

Agree target reduction in the number of falls (Moderate and
Major) within the Trust

27

23

5a

‘Gold’ Letters sent with 2 days of palliative care discharge

80

97

End of Life
Care

5a
5b

Standard Letters sent with 2 days of palliative care discharge
End of Life Care - Co-ordination of care - electronic registers

80
100

93
100

5c

End of Life Care - Improved coordination of care and advance
care planning via implementation of AMBER care bundle

3

5

6-

1

Q1: % women responding that t they had a named midwife
they could contact in the ante-natal and post-natal period

65

60

Maternity

2

Q2: % of women who reported having the majority (3 or more)
ante-natal appointments with the same midwife over the
course of their pregnancy

75

74
(partial
payment
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received)
6b

Women's Experience of Midwifery Care during birth Q1: Were
you (and/or your partner or a companion) left alone by
midwives or doctors at a time when it worried you?

83

83

79

78

7-

7a

Improving Patient Experience of Maternity Services: Overall,
how would you rate the care received during your pregnancy'
Women’s Experience of Postnatal Care in hospital: ‘Thinking
about the care you have received after the birth of your baby,
have you been treated with kindness and understanding?
Data Quality Audit Completed

100

97

Discharge

7a

IP Discharge summaries sent within 48 hrs.

95

95

7b

Data Quality Audit Completed

100

100

7b

OP Appointment Letters sent to GP within 5 days

95

89.9

8-

7c
7c
8a

Data Quality Audit Completed
A&E Discharge letters sent within 5 days
HIV Testing Non-GUM Settings - Hep B & C

100
90
100

100
97
100

HIV
Prevention

8b
8c

HIV Testing Non-GUM Settings - Lymphoma
HIV Testing Non-GUM Settings - TB

100
100

100
100

6c
6d

89

96

King’s is currently in discussion with NHS SE London to develop the CQUIN scheme for
2012/13. 2.5% of King’s contract income in 2012/13 is allocated to this CQUIN payment
framework. This is estimated to be a value of £10m across 10 Quality improvement areas.
Four areas have been recognised nationally. These are, preventing Venous-thromboembolism
in hospital, improving Inpatient Experience, data collection through the NHS Safety
Thermometer and the improving the diagnosis of dementia.
The list below outlines some of the proposed goals and descriptions to date for 2012/13.
Further details of the targets agreed with commissioners for the following 12 month period
are available on request from our website.
Goal Name

Description of Goal

1

VTE Prevention (National CQUIN)

Reduce avoidable death, disability and chronic ill health from Venousthromboembolism (VTE)

2

Inpatient Experience - Personal
Needs (National CQUIN)

Improve responsiveness to personal needs of patients

3

NHS Safety Thermometer (National
CQUIN)
Dementia: Diagnosis (National
CQUIN)

Improve collection of data in relation to pressure ulcers, falls, urinary tract
infection in those with a catheter, and VTE
Improve awareness and diagnosis of dementia, using risk assessment, in an
acute hospital setting.

5

End of Life Care

6

Cancer Staging

Improve the care and co-ordination of services to EOLC patients. To build
on 2011/12 and will also include regular Quality Audits of the AMBER care
bundle.
Cancer - The collection of Cancer staging data in all treatment centres.

7

COPD Planning

Improving the care of people with Chronic conditions including the use of
the CLAHRC COPD discharge bundle.

8
9

Dementia: Training
Outpatients Experience

Increase Dementia staff training in Acute and Surgical care settings
Improve Outpatient Experience: based on the 2011/12 National Outpatient
Survey results. Roll out an internal "How Are We Doing?" Patient
experience survey across Outpatient areas.

Alcohol intervention

Identification of increasing and higher risk drinkers with intervention (2 year
project plan to be developed)

4

10
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2e: Statements from the Care Quality Commission (CQC):
King’s is required to register with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and its current
registration status is fully compliant without any conditions as of 31 March 2011.
The Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against King’s during 2011/12.
The Care Quality Commission made an unannounced annual inspection on February 9th 2012.
The report of the visit has been received and this confirms that the Trust is meeting all of the
seven essential standards of quality and safety that were inspected. Following the inspection,
the CQC team commented that:
They identified a number of areas of good practice including the Emergency
Department, Paediatrics and Marjory Warren ward, an environment for patients with
dementia;
Patient feedback was very positive;
Hygiene was very good and infection control was good and improving;
They noted the high acuity of our patients and felt that staffing numbers were
appropriate;
One minor improvement action was identified in relation to locking of medicine
cupboards.

135

2f: Information on the quality of data
King’s submitted records during 2011/12 to the Secondary Users Service (SUS) for inclusion in
the Hospital Episode Statistics (HES); they are included in the latest published data.
At Quarter 4, the percentage of records in the published data which included the patient's
valid NHS Number was: 96.5% for admitted patient care; 97.7% for outpatient care; and 77.7%
for accident and emergency care.
The percentage of records in the published data which included the patient's valid General
Medical Practice Code was: 100.0% for admitted patient care; 99.8% for outpatient care; and
100% for accident and emergency care.
King’s will be taking the following actions to improve data quality:
Review the Information Assurance Strategy to ensure all externally viewable data
items are reviewed and covered within the Data Quality Improvement programme and
that all externally monitored targets for Data Quality are reviewed and internal
reporting reconciled with external reporting
Information Security Assurance: Continue to implement the proposed plan for
pseudonymisation and anonymisation processes.
Continue to improve NHS number usage across the organisation through an
organisation-wide programme of training and communication linked to the overall
Data Quality Improvement programme.
Develop an improved programme of audit and review of data quality to monitor the
effectiveness of data collection and validation.
Corporate Records Management: Improving the management/monitoring of
Corporate Records Management across the organisation, ensuring staff are aware of
the standards expected and therefore comply with Trust Policy to achieve Level 2.
Ensure continuous improvement in audit and monitoring procedures to achieve Level
3 compliance in all Key Standards.
Implement recommendations and action plan agreed as an outcome of the Audit
Commission’s Payment by Results Report of 2011/12.
Push for the Information Governance mandatory training to be completed from the
top down.
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2g: Information Governance Toolkit attainment levels:
The King’s Information Governance Assessment Report overall score for 2011/12 was 74%,
compared to 72% in 2010/11. This improvement is due to plans in place to implement a Trust
wide document management system (SharePoint) from mid-2012.
Overall, the Trust was graded as pink (unsatisfactory) from the Information Governance
Toolkit (IGT) grading scheme. However, we scored at least Level 2 for all key elements. This
has been confirmed by the SIRO and published on the IGT. The pink rating was as a result of
two elements being scored as Level 1.11 These were: that 95% of staff have carried out
mandatory training, and that we protect service user information through pseudonymisation.
In order to improve training, we have produced leaflets which will be distributed to all staff via
payslips in May 2012, and increased access to training material through a new comprehensive
PowerPoint presentation. In addition, new reporting systems in the Education and
Development Team will be used to track progress and improve performance over the course
of 2012/13. With regards to pseudonymisation, we have developed new policy in line with
recently published national guidance. This is waiting to be formalised.

2h: Clinical coding error rate
Clinical coding is the translation of medical terminology, as written by clinicians to describe a
patient’s complaint, diagnosis, treatment or reason for seeking medical attention, into a
nationally-recognised code. Coding is important because it generates information that can aid
service improvement and clinical research, and because it determines how much the Trust is
paid for an episode of care through a national set of rules called ‘Payment by Results’.
King’s was subject to the Payment by Results clinical coding audit during the reporting period
by the Audit Commission and the error rates reported in the latest published audit for that
period for diagnoses and treatment coding (clinical coding) were 14.6%. This represents an
improvement on last year. The results of this audit should not be extrapolated further than the
actual sample audited. A total of 201 finished consultant episodes (FCE’s) were audited, of
which 100 were selected from Accident and Emergency, and 100 randomly across all
specialties; one episode was considered unfit to audit.
Of the 137 errors highlighted by the audit, 115 were classified as coder error. The underlying
reason for many of the coding errors was the source documentation provided for coding;
inconsistencies between paper and electronic systems contributed to coding errors.
A robust action plan has been agreed jointly between King’s and our commissioners to
improve the standard and coverage of electronic clinical documentation provided for the
coding team. The action plan is being monitored at bi-monthly quality meetings with our
commissioners, at the Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham Alliance.

11

Standard 9-601 relating to Corporate Records Management; Standard 9-324 Information Security
Assurance.
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SUMMARY
From the above statements, assurance can be offered to the public that King’s has in 2011/12:
- Performed to essential standards (e.g. meeting CQC registration), as well as excelling
beyond these to provide high quality care;
- Measured clinical processes and performance to inform and monitor continuous
quality improvement;
- Participated in national cross-cutting project and initiatives for quality improvement
e.g. strong and growing recruitment to clinical trials.
These statements are included in accordance to both Monitor’s NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual (20 February 2012) for the quality report, as well as the Department of
Health’s Quality Accounts Regulations (2011, 2010).
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Part 3. An Overview of the quality of care offered by King’s
based on performance in 2011/12 against selected national
priorities and national key standards
King’s has continued to engage extensively with staff, Governors, Foundation Trust members
and the Board of Directors in reviewing agreed quality indicators in 2011/12. As outlined in
previous Quality Accounts, our performance on safety, patient experience and clinical
effectiveness has been monitored monthly as part of the Trust, divisional and team scorecard
reviews since June 2009.

Clinical Effectiveness

These metrics have been further refined in 2012/12 in light of new national and local
priorities, as well as discussions with stakeholders. The table below out lines key changes
across each of the key scorecard domains.
Old Indicators
(removed/ replaced)
BADS Trolley day case rate

New Indicators

Cancer Waiting List
2WW/31d/62d
Readmissions within 14 days

Consolidated into a Cancer Waiting Times index with full
cancer indicator details reported in the Heat map report
Report on emergency readmissions within 30 days based
on 2011/12 PbR guidance: number of readmission
following an elective discharge and readmission rate (%)
following a non-elective discharge
Consolidated ED Clinical Indicators index based on the 5
national clinical indicators which are reported individually
in the Heat map report

Emergency Care Performance &
ED Conversion rate

Discharge Date compliance (measures % of discharges
with an expected date of discharge)
Bed utilisation (measures wards not achieving their
low/high bed occupancy targets)
Outliers (measures monthly average beds LRS/TEAM
occupy outside of their bed pool)
Diagnostics IP Turnaround pre 09.30
Delayed discharges to
primary/social care

Finance & Operation
Efficiency

Ethnic Coding

Staf
f

Voluntary Turnover rate

New Data Quality composite index which reports on
national contract Section 5 data quality requirements for
New NHS number and Ethnic origin - reported individually
in the Heat map report
Pre- 11 am discharges (measures the % of discharges prior
to 11am)
Weekend discharges (measures the % of discharges that
take place at the weekend)
Staff Employed
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As previously published in the Quality Account for 2010/11, we have included a core set of key
indicators across the three quality domains below.
These are indicators that relate to the issues that were felt to be most important for our
stakeholders, when we have involved them in developing quality priorities. The definitions
and targets for these indicators are defined in line with national guidance where available, and
through local discussions with clinical teams and managers.
PATIENT SAFETY
Infection control - MRSA bacteraemia
infection rates
2010/11: 16 post-48h incidents (YTD Mar
2011)
2011/12: 5 incidents (YTD Mar 2012)
We have reduced our MRSA bacteraemia
levels by 69%.

Infection control - C. diff infection rates
2010/11: 106 cases (YTD Mar 2011)
2011/12: 97 cases (YTD Feb 2012
We have reduced our C Diff. levels by 9%

VTE risk assessment compliance rates
2011/12: 12 of 12 months exceeded
target of 90% compliance
Over 2010/11, we had steadily increased
our compliance rate for VTE risk
assessment of adult inpatients. In
2011/12, we have now sustained our
excellent performance of above 90%
compliance for the full year.
*NB. This measure was introduced in 2010, and
our dataset here therefore commencing only from
Nov 2010.
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CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS
Risk Adjusted Mortality
2010/11 RAMI (YTD) = 61
2011/12 RAMI (YTD) = 53
As demonstrated in the chart, our
mortality rate has significantly improved.
RAMI=53 indicates that outcomes are
47% better than expected.

Non-admitted patients treated within 18
weeks
2010/11 average = 97%
2011/12 average =97%
As demonstrated we have consistently
performed above our target of 95%

Emergency Care Performance
2011/12: 95% (average YTD, Mar 2012)
We have consistently performed above
the target of 95%.
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PATIENT EXPERIENCE
How are we doing? Overall
2010/11: average 84.2
2011/12: average 84.8
The overall HRWD score has improved
marginally over 2011/12. Initiatives to
further improve patient experience can be
found in Part 2 of this report.

How are we doing? Care Perceptions
2010/11 average: 85.8
2011/12 average: 86.3
Care perception has improved marginally
from 2010/11 results.

How are we doing? Patient Engagement
2010/11 average: 86.1
2011/12 average: 86.4
Patient engagement also improved
marginally in 2011/12.

How are we doing? Environment
2010/11 average: 73.5
2011/12 average: 76.6
With focused improvement effort, this has
improved to enable performance to
almost reach the internal target. We aim
to sustain and grow this effort over
2012/13.
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With timely and accurate information provided to divisional teams through the use of
scorecards, quality performance is reviewed on a monthly basis across the Trust. Both the
Medical Director and the Director of Nursing and Midwifery regularly attend monthly
divisional Performance meetings chaired by the Director of Operations to provide constructive
challenge and appropriate support on quality issues.

Performance against key national priorities
The Trust self-rated a score of 1.0 as the final Q4 position for 2011/12 against the Monitor
Compliance Framework. Due to the failure of the C. Diff target and being off trajectory for 4
consecutive quarters this has given the Trust a Governance risk rating of Red. Monitor will
review the Trusts position after submission (similar to Q3) and decide whether or not to deescalate the risk rating.
Monitor Scorecard

Mar-12

Enclosure 2
Metric

Units

Weighting

YTD Threshold

Qtr 1

Qtr 2

Qtr 3

Qtr 4

Clostridium difficile year on year reduction YTD (11/12 threshold 75)

Number

1.0

75

MRSA bacteraemia post 48hrs YTD (11/12 threshold 6)

Number

1.0

6

32
21
1
1

56
18
3
2

78
19
3
2

97
17
5
1

Acute targets - National requirements

31 day wait for second or subsequent treatment

1.0

Surgery

%

94

99

100

99

97

Anti cancer drug treatments

%

98

100

100

100

100

Radiotherapy

%

94

97

100

100

100

62 day wait for first treatment

1.0

from urgent GP referral to treatment: all cancers

%

85

92

94

94

90

consultant screening service referral: all cancers

%

90

100

96

94

94

96

99

100

100

99

%

93

99

96

98

97

%

93

100

100

99

100

Acute targets - minimum Standards
31 day wait from diagnosis to first treatment: all cancers

%

0.5

Two week wait from referral to date seen:
all cancers

for symptomatic breast patients (cancer not initially suspected)

0.5

Referral to Treatment waiting times - admitted (95th percentile)

Weeks

1.0

23

21.0

22.2

22.7

22.8

Referral to Treatment waiting times - non-admitted (95th percentile)

Weeks

1.0

18

16.4

16.8

17.1

17.1

Maximum waiting time of 4 hours in ED from arrival to admission,
transfer or discharge

%

0.5

95

96

97

96

95.2

Self-certification against compliance with requirements regarding access
to healthcare for people with a learning disability

%

0.5

N/A

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

A&E:

Total Score
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Appendix 1: Statements from Commissioning Primary Care Trusts,
Overview and Scrutiny Committees, and Local Involvement Networks
In accordance with the timeframes stipulated in the Regulations, we shared our draft Quality
Accounts formally with our key external stakeholder groups on 2 April 2012 to seek their
review and comments in response.
We received four statements in response to their review of the Quality Account, and have now
included these as listed:
Statement from NHS South East London (representing NHS Lambeth, NHS Southwark,
and NHS SE London)
Statement from LINk Southwark
Statement from Lambeth LINk
Statement from Lambeth Council’s Health and Adult Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee
These statements are included unaltered and in full. We have, however, added footnotes to
answer specific questions asked, or to cross-refer to points where feedback from stakeholders
has been used to improve this document.
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Statement from NHS SE London:
The draft King’s College Hospital (KCH) Quality Report 2012/13 was reviewed by a number of
local commissioning stakeholders, including representatives from NHS Lambeth, NHS
Southwark and NHS SE London. The coordination of feedback has been undertaken by NHS SE
London, which welcomes the opportunity to respond to this document.
Local commissioning organisations have excellent relationships with KCHFT and are committed
to working closely to ensure the ongoing delivery of high quality services. NHS SE London has
processes for regularly reviewing quality issues with KCH FT, via regular Quality Monitoring
Meetings, as well as a number of other joint quality review mechanisms (e.g. Southwark
attendance at KCH Governance Committee and more recently from Jan 2012, NHS Southwark
CCG attendance on the KCH SI Committee). KCH has also presented their excellent work on
pressure sore management at the NHS SEL Quality & Safety Committee in December 2011.
NHS SE London commends KCHFT on a well written draft document that is easy to follow in
plain language and sets out clearly the Trust’s achievements last year and plans for next year.
NHS SE London believes the content of this draft document is accurate. The document clearly
sets out how the Trust prioritised its key delivery areas and this includes good stakeholder
engagement.
Stakeholder meetings established quality priorities for 2112/13 and with a particular focus on
patient safety, clinical effectiveness & patient experience and the good work going forward on
a range of priorities, such as improving identification and escalation of acutely ill patients,
have been well received and supported.
Trust priorities agreed through stakeholder meetings include areas of concern to
commissioners and we would strongly support this plan.

Statement from LINk Southwark:
General
The LINk welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Kings Quality Accounts. Generally we
support the contents of the Quality Accounts with the priorities selected as most relevant.
However it would be more helpful if the QA contained some analysis from a Southwark
population point of view.
While the QA does contain much useful information, we would like King's also to publicise
areas where the Trust is not achieving outside of its designated priorities list, and so to provide
more information that could be relevant and of interest to Patients, (for example the
preparations for the Midwifery Led Unit (MLU) at King's. For the average lay member, if
unfamiliar with KCH services and information in this context, it would be hard to know the
areas where Kings are not performing as effectively as other Trusts or their current
developments outside of their priorities and objectives.
Also useful would be more explanation of certain initiatives and schemes, for example: the
Amber Care Programme and Gold register, Sage and Thyme, Schwartz Centre Rounds and
Safety Express.12

12

Explanations have been added: see pages 84 and 107.
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2012 – 2013 Priorities
1. Patient Safety
Noting the Chief Executive’s concern at King's not achieving its C. Difficile target of
under 75 cases, is this in line with hospital experience nationally or does KCH have a
particular problem in this area?13 On the other hand, Guy's and St Thomas FT have
done less well on MRSA but have achieved their C. Difficile target. We appreciate the
clear comparison graphs.
Has electronic prescribing been achieved for the Liver Unit as this was predicted for
March 2012?14
2. Clinical Effectiveness
We welcome the focus on end of life care. This is a very important issue locally and
needs close cross-service collaboration. While we applaud the established working
relationships with St. Christopher's Hospice Hospital and Guy's & St. Thomas FT, what
are the relationships with local care homes with nursing where terminally ill patients
may be discharged for palliative care near to the end of their lives and where it is
probable that standards of care vary?15
Some of our members have highlighted experiences of some patients dying very soon
after their discharge from hospital. Is there any link with this and the significant
improvement in risk-adjusted mortality rates near the end of the QA?16
We are concerned that the target of 2 days for specialist palliative care letters to be
sent is too long.
With reference to the Liverpool Care Pathway, we suggest educational and interactive
13

There are a number of factors which predispose patients to C. Diff. One of these is antibiotic usage.
The C. Diff target is therefore particularly challenging in those Trusts who treat a higher proportion of
patients with complex conditions, who need antibiotics for the treatment of their underlying condition,
as this unfortunately renders the patients more susceptible to C. Diff. In King’s these would include our
haematology, liver, diabetic foot and complex surgical patients. In addition, prior to 2012/13, there
were no national guidelines for the testing or reporting of C. Diff. Trusts were therefore using tests of
differing sensitivity, and some Trusts only reported cases that were deemed clinically significant,
whereas at King’s, we have always reported all cases, regardless of severity.
However, we fully acknowledge that we have improvements to make in our control of C. Diff, and have
been working very hard on issues such as environmental cleaning, handwashing, minimising the use of
antibiotics as much as possible, and the correct treatment of patients with diarrhoea. We are pleased
that these measures have now begun to have an impact and are confident that we will make further
improvements in the coming year. We also welcome new guidance on testing and reporting which will
enable us to compare our performance with other organisations with more confidence.
14

The roll-out of EPMA to Liver areas continues as is now described on page 80. Plans for Liver Critical
Care areas are being reviewed to see if a better solution is available to us.
15

Whenever a patient is discharged to a care home, a very detailed discharge letter is created. If that
patient is within Lambeth or Southwark, they will be placed (if appropriate) on the End of Life ‘Gold’
Register to further ensure continuity of care (see page 84). We also liaise with community palliative care
teams, who will have the continuing interface with care homes, and who support care homes by
upskilling staff and seeing those patients with the most complex needs. We are currently developing the
Proactive Elderly Advanced Care (PEACE) document for elderly patients discharged where there may be
a poor prognosis, which is designed to ensure continuity of care, including recording details of that
patient’s future care wishes.
16

As risk-adjusted mortality rates exclude palliative care, this group of patients would not be included,
regardless of when they were discharged from hospital.
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discussion with the local population would be useful to consider the underlying values
aims and constraints which are the drivers. We encourage discussion amongst the
King's Health Partners about this.
Diabetes
We are concerned that the % experiencing insulin management error (20%) and
insulin prescription error (14%) is very high.
We welcome the objective of appointing Diabetes Specialist Nurse roles in key areas
to reduce the proportion of errors and would encourage appointing such staff roles for
other departments such as the Orthopaedic ward where there is a high level of elderly
patients.
3. Patient Experience
We are concerned at the deterioration of Inpatient Experience in all measures during
2011 compared with 2010, in spite of appropriate action being taken such as the
recruitment of more volunteers and more staff training. This needs careful monitoring
from the Trust and from ourselves and our neighbouring LINks.
While ‘‘Hourly rounds" are encouraged in principle, we hope that these rounds in
practice means actual responses to needs as initiated either from technological
equipment (i.e. beeping) or human calls. It might be helpful if patients knew when the
rounds would take place.
The LINk welcomes the Trust exploring a variety of methods in improving patient care
and quality of services, but they must be cautious of trying ‘too many’ at once to avoid
‘novelty overload’.
The LINk encourages the objective relating to re-energising patient and public
involvement, and would where possible encourage our involvement in this area.
4. New Objectives
The LINk agrees with the aim of improving the identification of severely ill patients;
however we are concerned that the proposed electronic systems may be used to
compensate for less personal clinical continuity as patients are moved from ward to
ward.
Also too many electronic inputs being required from staff may affect the level of
personal human care that can be offered.
The outpatient redesign would be an opportunity to involve LINks.
5. Further priorities from LINk members.
• The building of the midwife led unit (MLU) in or around King's should be a priority, as well
as increasing the number of case-loading midwifery teams in Southwark. This model
could potentially raise the likelihood of a more straightforward or less ‘traumatic’ delivery.
King’s seems to be one of the only major hospitals in London that doesn’t offer a MLU
alternative in birth. While we are aware that King's is planning a MLU, this is not
mentioned in the Quality Accounts. It seems that there are now delays or obstacles to the
building of this, which is unfortunate as a lot of time and money has gone into getting the
MLU to this stage.
• While there is widespread agreement and support for the priority of End of Life Care,
there should also be more focus on dementia recognition and issues of consent where
’Mental Capacity’ may be impaired.17
17

King’s recognises the importance of this issue. Trust staff undergo mandatory safeguarding adults
training, which includes Mental Capacity, to enable them to apply the Mental Capacity Act (2005) when
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Statement from Lambeth LINk:
Lambeth LINk welcomes the opportunity to respond to the King’s College Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust Quality Accounts 2011/2012.
Stakeholder Involvement in Quality Accounts
The LINk has been involved in the two Quality Accounts stakeholder events in December 2011
and February 2012. These were useful events, where we were provided with an update on
progress against 2010/2011 priorities and were able to feedback on the priorities we would
like to see for 2011/12.
The Quality Priority Objectives for 2012/2013 which include “Improve our responsive to
inpatients’ personal needs” and “Improve Outpatient Experience” reflect the increased level of
stakeholder/patient involvement in setting this year’s priorities.
The LINk has set its 2012/2013 workplan priorities around the values of empowerment,
equality and integration. It is encouraging to see there is an ongoing commitment by King’s
College Hospital to improve quality, patient experience, engagement and inequalities through
exercises such as stakeholder involvement in the Quality Accounts. We would like this to
continue to build and welcome discussions on joint working to ensure this takes place.
Format of Quality Accounts
The language and format of the Quality Accounts has improved which makes it slightly more
accessible to the general public. The accounts are not statistic and acronym heavy which can
be off putting for people who are not accustomed to reading such reports. However, it would
have been helpful to have an explanation and importance of CQUIN at the beginning as it is
mentioned several times throughout the report.18 An explanation of Amber Care and Gold
Letters, Sage and Thyme, Schwartz Centre Rounds and Safety Express would have been
helpful.19
It would of also of been helpful to have a brief explanation of why certain targets were not
met, for example why you were unable to achieve your C. Difficle target of under 75 cases.20
Priority Areas
1. Patient Safety
Reduction of hospital acquired infections.
We share the concerns that this target has not been achieved, although
numbers are reducing. This remains a major worry for patients, and it would
be helpful for the QA to include more detail on the complex co-existing
conditions that contribute to the challenge in meeting the stated targets.21
2. Clinical Effectiveness
Improve end of life care
We welcome the focus on the End of Life Care and the number of initiatives
taking place to provide patients with a dignified symptom/pain-free death,
especially the staff education and training. It is encouraging to see that the
supporting patients who lack capacity to make decisions in their best interests. This includes the use of a
decision tool agreed with Lambeth and Southwark Social Services.
18
Explanation has been added: see page 72.
19
Explanations have been added: see pages 84 and 107.
20
Please see note 13, page 146.
21
Please see note 13, page 146.
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End of Life Modernisation Initiative which has now come to an end has left a
positive legacy such as the AMBER care bundle. We know through our
meetings with the End of Life Care Modernisation Initiative Team that
patient/carer engagement was at the heart of their project. We look forward
to seeing how end of life Care has improved in next year’s quality accounts.
Improve diabetes care
We would like to see the Diabetes Modernisation Initiative have the same
lasting legacy as the End of Life Care.
3. Patient Experience
Improve our responsiveness to personal needs for inpatients
The word “re-energising” is used in relation to patient and public involvement.
A brief explanation of why you need to “re-energise” would have been helpful
as effective citizen engagement is a LINk priority.22 Our Co-Chairs, Nicola
Kingston and Aisling Duffy are leading on Lambeth’s Health and Wellbeing
Board Citizen Engagement Workstream. There is an opportunity for the LINk
to share their engagement principles with the hospital.
There is a concern over the hospital not achieving a high score when it comes
to the “responsive to personal needs for inpatients” question on the National
Inpatient Survey and the in-house “How We Are Doing?” survey. Plans to roll
out the successful action plans you had in place on three wards in April 2011
to Sept 2011, to the wider hospital is a positive step.
Shocking news stories of older people being mistreated in hospital are a real
concern to LINk Members.23 The LINk Dignity and Respect Working Group will
be closely monitoring surveys such as the above and will want to see a real
improvement recorded in next year’s Quality Accounts and if not we would
like to know why.
Improve outpatient experience
There is a concern over the need to improve Outpatients services as reflected
in the Outpatient feedback survey.
The “In Your Shoes” outpatient listening events, which the LINk has helped to promote are a
good start. However, people who work in the day are unable to attend these day times events
and provide you with valuable feedback.

22

King’s new Engagement and Experience Strategy runs from April 2012-2015. Key stakeholders
including LINks, OSCs and Foundation Trust Governors, were involved from an early stage of the
Strategy’s development and have provided useful comment on the draft Strategy. The Strategy re-states
King’s commitment to putting patients and the heart of everything that we do, and is strongly
underpinned by King’s Values with particular emphasis on ‘Understanding You: We start by listening,
then act based on what we learn’. Over the lifetime of the Strategy, we will build on our already
significant patient feedback programme, complementing our survey feedback with a programme of
qualitative feedback from patients through events like ‘In Your Shoes’ and patient stories (see p. 92).
23

Patient dignity, with emphasis on the special needs of older people, is very important to us. We
promote this by having our annual dignity month in February, which involves senior staff and our
hospital governors assessing initiatives that staff have implemented to improve dignity in different areas
of the Trust. We routinely ask our patients about their experiences of being treated in our ‘How are we
doing?’ survey, which is given to all patients on discharge. This year, we also commissioned an external
review of our care of older people by NHS London to give us additional assurance. In these ways, we
keep patient dignity high on the agenda of our staff, and provide regular feedback on performance to
highlight areas for improvement.
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Statement from Lambeth Council’s Health and Adult Services Scrutiny
Sub-Committee:
Lambeth Council’s Health and Adult Services Scrutiny Sub Committee would like to thank
King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for the invitation to submit a statement on the
Trust’s draft Quality Account 2011/12. The committee would also wish to acknowledge the
earlier invitation to participate in the Quality Account Stakeholder Group discussions.
It has not been possible to formally consider the draft QA within the timeline requested and
the Committee is not therefore submitting a response. However the Committee would wish to
acknowledge the good working relationship that exists between the Scrutiny Committee and
the Foundation Trust

Statement from Southwark Council’s Health and Adult Services Scrutiny
Sub-Committee:
Southwark Council’s Health and Adult Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee were approached, but a
response was not received.
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Appendix 2: Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the
Quality Accounts
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality
Accounts) Regulations 2010 to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year.
Monitor has issued guidance to NHS Foundation Trust Boards on the form and content of
annual quality reports (which incorporate the above legal requirements) and on the
arrangements that Foundation Trust Boards should put in place to support the data quality for
the preparation of the quality report.
In preparing the quality report, Directors are required to take steps to satisfy themselves that:
The content of the quality report meets the requirements set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2011/12;
The content of the Quality Report is not inconsistent with internal and external
sources of information including:
o

Board minutes and papers for the period April 2011 to May 2012

o

Papers relating to quality reported to the Board over the period April 2011 to May
2012

o

Feedback from the commissioners received on the 2nd of May 2012

o

Feedback from governors at their meeting on the 9th of May 2012

o

Feedback from LINks received on the 1st and 3rd of May 2012

o

The Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local
Authority Social Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2010

o

The 2011 National Patient Survey published by the Care Quality Commission in
2012

o

The 2011 National Staff Survey published by the Department of Health in 2012

o

The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control environment
for the period 1st of April 2011 to 31st of March 2012

o

The CQC quality and risk profiles published over the period April 2011 to April
2012

The Quality Report presents a balanced picture of the NHS Foundation Trust’s
performance over the period covered;
The performance information reported in the Quality Report is reliable and accurate;
There are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures
of performance included in the Quality Report, and these controls are subject to
review to confirm that they are working effectively in practice;
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The data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the Quality Report is
robust and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed
definitions, is subject to appropriate scrutiny and review; and the Quality Report has
been prepared in accordance with Monitor’s annual reporting guidance (which
incorporates the Quality Accounts regulations, published at
www.monitornhsft.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual) as well as the standards to
support data quality for the preparation of the Quality Report (available at
www.monitornhsft.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual).
The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the
above requirements in preparing the Quality Report.
By order of the Board

Date:

29 May 2012

Chairman

Date:

29 May 2012

Chief Executive
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Independent Auditor’s Assurance Report to the Board of Governors of King's College
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust on the Annual Quality Report
We have been engaged by the Board of Governors of King's College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust to perform an independent assurance engagement in respect of King's College Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust’s Quality Report for the year ended 31 March 2012 (the “Quality
Report”) and certain performance indicators contained therein.
This report, including the conclusion, has been prepared solely for the Board of Governors of
King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust as a body, to assist the Board of Governors in
reporting King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust’s quality agenda, performance and
activities. We permit the disclosure of this report within the Annual Report for the year ended
31 March 2012, to enable the Board of Governors to demonstrate that is has discharged its
governance responsibilities by commissioning an independent assurance report in connection
with the indicators. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Board of Governors as a body and King's College
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for our work or this report save where terms are expressly
agreed and with our prior consent in writing.
Scope and subject matter
The indicators for the year ended 31 March 2012 subject to limited assurance consist of the
national priority indicators as mandated by Monitor:
• C. Difficile
• Cancer 62 day waits
We refer to these national priority indicators collectively as the “indicators”.
Respective responsibilities of the Directors and auditors
The Directors are responsible for the content and the preparation of the Quality Report in
accordance with the criteria set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual
issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts (“Monitor”).
Our responsibility is to form a conclusion, based on limited assurance procedures, on whether
anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe that:
• the Quality Report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria set
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual;
• the Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources specified
in the Detailed Guidance for External Assurance on Quality Reports 2011/12; and
• the indicators in the Quality Report identified as having been the subject of limited
assurance in the Quality Report are not reasonably stated in all material respects in
accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and the six
dimensions of data quality set out in the Detailed Guidance for External Assurance on
Quality Reports.
We read the Quality Report and considered whether it addresses the content requirements of
the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual, and considered the implications for our
report if we became aware of any material omissions.
We read the other information contained in the Quality Report and consider whether it is
materially inconsistent with the documents specified within the detailed guidance. We
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consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with those documents (collectively the “documents”). Our
responsibilities do not extend to any other information.
We are in compliance with the applicable independence and competency requirements of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) Code of Ethics. Our team
comprised assurance practitioners and relevant subject matter experts.
Assurance work performed
We conducted this limited assurance engagement in accordance with International Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) – “Assurance Engagements other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board (“ISAE 3000”).
Our limited assurance procedures included:
• Evaluating the design and implementation of the key processes and controls for
managing and reporting the indicators;
• Making enquiries of management;
• Testing key management controls;
• Limited testing, on a selective basis, of the data used to calculate the indicator back to
supporting documentation;
• Comparing the content requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting
Manual to the categories reported in the Quality Report; and
• reading the documents.
A limited assurance engagement is less in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement. The
nature, timing and extent of procedures for gathering sufficient appropriate evidence are
deliberately limited relative to a reasonable assurance engagement.
Limitations
Non-financial performance information is subject to more inherent limitations than financial
information, given the characteristics of the subject matter and the methods used for
determining such information.
The absence of a significant body of established practice on which to draw allows for the
selection of different but acceptable measurement techniques which can result in materially
different measurements and can impact comparability. The precision of different
measurement techniques may also vary. Furthermore, the nature and methods used to
determine such information, as well as the measurement criteria and the precision thereof,
may change over time. It is important to read the Quality Report in the context of the criteria
set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.
The nature, form and content required of Quality Reports are determined by DH/Monitor. This
may result in the omission of information relevant to other users, for example for the purpose
of comparing the results of different NHS Foundation Trusts. In addition, the scope of our
assurance work has not included governance over quality or non-mandated indicators which
have been determined locally by King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.
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Conclusion
Based on the results of our procedures, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that, for the year ended 31 March 2012:
the Quality Report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria set
•
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual;
the Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources
•
specified in the detailed guidance; and
the indicators in the Quality Report subject to limited assurance have not been
•
reasonably stated in all material respects in accordance with the NHS Foundation
Trust Annual Reporting Manual and the six dimensions of data quality set out in the
Detailed Guidance for External Assurance on Quality Reports.

Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants
St Albans
29 May 2012

155

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PART 7: Annual Accounts 2011/12
Trust name:
This year
Last year
This year ended
Last year ended
This year beginning

King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
2011/2012
2010/2011
31 March 2012
31 March 2011
1 April 2011

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2011/2012
FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS
King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

These accounts, for the year ending March 31 2012, have been prepared by King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust in
accordance with paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service Act 2006.

Signed:

Date: 29 May 2012
Timothy Smart
Chief Executive Officer
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King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2011/2012

Statement of Chief Executive's responsibilities as the accounting officer of King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

The NHS Act 2006 states that the chief executive is the accounting officer of the NHS foundation trust. The relevant responsibilities
of the accounting officer, including their responsibility for the propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are
answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum
issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts (“Monitor”).

Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust to prepare for each financial year a
statement of accounts in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals
basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and
expenditure, total recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual and in particular to:
• observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply
suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;
• make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

• state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual have been
followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements; and
• prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The accounting officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the NHS Foundation Trust and to enable him/her to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements
outlined in the above mentioned Act. The Accounting officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the NHS Foundation
Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in Monitor's NHS Foundation Trust
Accounting Officer Memorandum.

Signed:

Date: 29 May 2012
Timothy Smart
Chief Executive Officer

158

King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2011/2012
Annual Governance Statement
Scope of responsibility

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the
NHS foundation trust’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am
personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for ensuring that the NHS
foundation trust is administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also
acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.
The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of
internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims
and objectives of King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has
been in place in King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2012 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and accounts.
Capacity to handle risk

The Trust Board has overall accountability for the Trust’s Risk Management Strategy through the Trust’s Executive Directors. The
Trust’s Medical Director provides the lead, and is supported by a centralised Risk team. The Chief Financial Officer has accountability
for the development, implementation and testing of the Trust’s business continuity plan. The Trust operates a unified approach
covering both clinical and non-clinical risks which are recorded on a computerised risk register. The Trust is committed to providing a
learning environment for all levels of staff, to ensure that good practice is developed and disseminated to all areas of the
organisation. This is achieved by;
• A commitment to individual appraisal and personal development planning for all staff
• Policies to encourage the reporting and investigation of adverse incidents (inc. near misses)
• A commitment to root cause analysis of problems and incidents and the avoidance of blaming and ‘scape-goating’.
• A range of problem resolution policies and procedures, including capability, raising concerns, harassment and discipline, which are
designed to identify and remedy problems at an early stage.
• A range of individual support mechanisms to encourage individuals to raise concerns about the own performance in ways which
will not threaten their security or livelihood, e.g. appraisal, substance abuse policies, professional counselling and occupational
health services.
• A range of clinical and non-clinical audit mechanisms
All staff are trained in these policies as part of the corporate and local induction policies and updated via regular staff briefings and
the Trust intranet.
The risk and control framework

The Trust operates a cyclical mechanism for the identification, evaluation and control of risk, facilitated by means of a central risk
register. This is a dynamic document which reflects corporate and local risks and their movement within the register. Local Risk
Groups identify risks and potential hazards and formulate actions plans to deal with them. Each risk is scored on a common basis
across the Trust for likelihood and potential impact. If risks cannot be satisfactorily resolved at a local level, they are considered by
the relevant corporate risk management group.

159

King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2011/2012
Unresolved risks are passed to the Quality & Governance Committee to review the adequacy of, and progress against action plans
and to consider acceptance or further resolution. If additional resources are required to reduce the risk to an acceptable level, this is
considered by the Business Resource and Strategy Group and, if necessary by the Trust Finance and Performance Committee. Risks
that have an above average consequence and likelihood are given priority in the resource allocation process. It is the Trust’s policy
as defined within the Risk Management Strategy that its risk appetite is defined as all red risks are required to be reviewed by the
Board of Directors. The Board reviews the nature and assessment of these risks and the potential impact on delivery of the Trust’s
Strategic priorities and careful consideration is given to whether the level of risk should be accepted or further treatment plans put
in place.

The Board Assurance Framework provides a high level management assessment process and record which enables the Trust to
focus on the principal risks to delivering its strategic priorities and the robustness of internal controls to reduce or manage the risks
to acceptable levels. The Assurance Framework is updated by the Executive Directors and reviewed by the Board on a quarterly
basis. The sources of key controls and assurances, both internal and external, are reviewed for their adequacy and relevance and
action plans are agreed.

Information Governance is reviewed by the Quality & Governance Committee, which is advised by the Caldicott Guardian and the
Senior Information Risk Owner. The Trust completes the annual Information Governance toolkit. In the submission made in March
2012, the Trust achieved at least a Level 2 rating on all criteria previously defined as key requirements and scored a total of 73%
across all indicators. The Trust has made significant efforts to ensure the security of the information it holds and that is transmitted
to and from its systems. These include the enforcement of encryption for any portable devices used on Trust systems, encryption
for all Trust laptop computers and the implementation of ‘remote wipe’ functionality for smart phones in the effort of their loss or
theft. Key areas of risk remaining are to ensure the pseudonymisation of all data being transferred and implementing a
comprehensive records management system for all Trust records.

All Trust policies, procedures and business cases include an Equality Impact Assessment so that their implications can be considered
by the Board of Directors. Major policy or strategic decisions are taken only after consultation with the Board of Governors, Staff
Side representatives and public and patient stakeholders. The Trust holds regular community events, most recently in March 2012,
to receive the views of Trust Members and the Annual Public meeting in September 2011 was attended by over 200 people.
The foundation trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission.

Ongoing compliance with the registration requirements is monitored through the Trust’s Quality Governance Framework. The
underpinning management committees: Patient Outcome, Patient Safety, Patient Experience and Organisational Safety Committees
have specific responsibility within their terms of reference for reviewing and monitoring compliance against the Care Quality
Commission’s Essential Standards, the NHS Outcomes Framework and the NHS Litigation Authorities Acute Risk Management
Standards. To support this and to maintain a strong focus, the Trust has appointed Assurance and Regulatory Performance teams
and in addition, a quality governance Information technology support system, HealthAssure , has been purchased and is in the
process of being implemented.
The Care Quality Commission completed their most recent review of compliance on 27 March 2012. They found the Trust to be
meeting all essential standards and concluded:
“The trust has robust and effective systems in place for monitoring and improving the quality of services it provides. Ongoing
monitoring include checks on how well the essential standards of quality and safety are being met in each area. Reports arising from
these processes are considered by the Trust board on a regular basis and, where necessary, action plans drawn up to address any
shortfalls.”
The CQC’s review on Termination Services highlighted some shortcomings in the administration of documentation for the service.
Immediate changes were implemented to remedy this situation.
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As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are in place to ensure all employer
obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary,
employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme
records are accurately updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under equality, diversity and human rights legislation
are complied with.

The Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery Plans are in place in accordance with
emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements, as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure that this
organisation’s obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.
Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources

The Board of Directors ensures that resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively by means of monthly Finance and
Performance reports. These are considered in detail by the Finance and Performance Committee which are committees of the Board,
chaired by Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee receives regular reports from the Trust’s Internal Auditors, KPMG LLP.
Annual Quality Report
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as
amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. Monitor has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the
form and content of annual Quality Reports which incorporate the above legal requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual.

The Board’s clinical plans and core quality priorities have been developed in consultation with a wide range of internal and external
stakeholders including senior clinical teams, Commissioners, Overview and Scrutiny Committees, LINks and Governors and members.
The Board receives regular reports on all aspects of quality through monthly performance reports and scorecards, and quarterly
reports on patient safety, patient outcomes and patient experience and organisational safety. The Board also receives a separate
quarterly Quality and Governance Report which includes detailed analyses of all serious complaints and adverse incidents together
with actions taken and related service developments/improvements. The Board considers the Assurance Framework and the Trust
Risk Register on a quarterly basis and agrees actions as necessary to mitigate risks.

In 2010/11, the Trust strengthened the Board Assurance Framework and linked this explicitly to the Board Self Certification of the
Annual Plan. It also introduced a new Quality Governance Framework with the implementation of a new Board governance
structure. At the heart of this is the Quality & Governance Committee which, on behalf of the Board, monitors the three dimensions
of quality, Patient Safety, Patient Outcomes which addresses clinical audit and effectiveness, Patient Experience and Organisational
Safety through a series of management committees chaired by Executive Directors. This enables a strong Board focus on all aspects of
quality and is the vehicle through which the Trust’s quality priorities and Monitor’s Quality Governance Framework are monitored. In
order to further strengthen the Trust’s patient safety and risk management infrastructure, during 2011/12 a new centralised patient
safety team was created providing greater assurance to the Board that processes are robust, systematic and responsive to the
changes in the regulatory environment.

In 2011/12 the Trust made good progress against most of its quality priorities with the exception of C-Diff where the target was not
achieved. The Trust has a detailed action plan to secure improvement on an ongoing basis. This has led to a continuous reduction in
the incidence of C-Diff during the year. Reducing hospital acquired infection remains one of the Trust’s core quality priorities for
2012/13 and beyond. The King’s ‘Quality Philosophy’ outlined in the Quality Account makes it clear that the safety of patients is the
Trust’s number one priority and that there is zero tolerance of anything that puts patients in harm’s way. The Trust has implemented
an online performance system with particular reference to identifying ‘deteriorating patients’ and a ‘Ward View’ system which allows
clinicians to access the key information on patients for which they are responsible.

161

King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2011/2012
Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. My review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive
managers and clinical leads within the NHS foundation trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
internal control framework. I have drawn on the content of the quality report attached to this Annual report and other performance
information available to me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and
other reports. I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
by the Trust Board, the Audit Committee and the Quality and Governance Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in place.

As noted above, the Board has amended the Trust’s Committee structure within year to improve non-executive oversight and to allow
greater focus on the risks identified in the Board Assurance Framework. The Trust’s Board governance structure comprising Audit,
Quality & Governance, Finance & Performance, Strategy and Equality & Diversity together with the quality governance reporting
structure, provide the framework for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of control. These supporting processes have been
subject to Internal Audit during 2011/12 with no significant concerns identified and they will remain part of the comprehensive audit
programme going forward. Audit reports and findings are formally reviewed at the Audit Committee and recommendations requiring
management action are monitored and reported on by this committee.

The findings of CQC inspections during 2011/12 were reported to the Board direct and in detail through the quality governance
framework. The action plans are set out in the Board Assurance Framework, together with timescales for implementation and the
responsible Directors. The BAF is linked to the Risk Register, the Trust’s Strategic Objectives and maps the controls to the source of
assurance. It is directly linked to the Trust’s Internal Audit Plan.

The Board reviews the proceedings of all its committees at every meeting and considers and approves the arrangements for risk
management in the Trust including the risk framework incorporated in the Trust’s Risk Management Strategy which is reviewed
annually. Committee Chairs draw the Board’s attention to any matters arising from the proceedings of their committees which have
risk implications at each Board meeting. All Board committees produce an annual report and Committee Self Assessment which
covers establishment, composition, reporting structure, the work plan, resources and meeting arrangements which are reviewed by
the Board.
Conclusion
No significant internal control issues have been identified by either the Trust’s internal processes or by assurance reviews undertaken
by external bodies.

Signed:

Date: 29 May 2012
Timothy Smart
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent auditor's report to the Board of Governors and Board of Directors of King's College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust
We have audited the financial statements of King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2012
which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in
Taxpayers Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows, and the related notes 1 to 28. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the accounting policies directed by Monitor – Independent Regulator of
NHS Foundation Trusts.

This report is made solely to the Board of Governors and Board of Directors (“the Boards”) of King’s College Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust, as a body, in accordance with paragraph 4 of Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Boards those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the trust and the Boards as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of the accounting officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities Statement, the Accounting Officer is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit
and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law, the Audit Code of NHS Foundation Trusts
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the trust’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Accounting Officer; and the
overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual
report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the state of the trust’s affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of its income and expenditure for the year
then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the accounting policies directed by Monitor – Independent Regulator of NHS
Foundation Trusts; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health Service Act 2006.
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the National Health Service Act 2006
In our opinion:
• the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:
• the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual, is misleading or inconsistent with information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to
consider, nor have we considered, whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are
satisfactorily addressed by internal controls;
• proper practices have not been observed in the compilation of the financial statements; or
• the NHS foundation trust has not made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources.
Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 5 of Part 2 of the
National Health Service Act 2006 and the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts.

Date: 29 May 2012

Signed:
Craig Wisdom, ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
St Albans, UK

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
Trust's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial information differs
from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2012

note
OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
Operating Income from continuing operations
Operating Expenses of continuing operations
OPERATING SURPLUS
FINANCE COSTS
Finance income
Finance expense - financial liabilities
Finance expense - unwinding of discount on provisions
PDC Dividends payable
NET FINANCE COSTS
Share of loss of associate accounted for using the equity method
Corporation tax expense
Surplus from continuing operations

628,615
(607,594)
21,021

586,714
(567,265)
19,449

5
6.1
18

145
(10,040)
(188)
(8,038)
(18,121)

107
(9,611)
(178)
(8,195)
(17,877)

(816)
0
2,084

(217)
0
1,355

Surplus/(deficit) of discontinued operations and the gain/(loss) on disposal of
discontinued operations
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

Movements arising from classifying non current assets as Assets Held for Sale
Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Recycling gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes
Other reserve movements
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE) / INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
Prior period adjustments
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE) / INCOME FOR THE YEAR

2010/2011
£'000

2
3

7

Other comprehensive income
Impairments
Revaluations
Asset disposals
Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint ventures

2011/2012
£'000

19
19

0

0

2,084

1,355

(5,549)
2,956
0
0

(1,739)
8,698
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
(509)

0
0
0
0
0
0
8,314

0

0

(509)

8,314

0
2,084
2,084

0
1,355
1,355

0
(509)
(509)

0
8,314
8,314

Allocation of Profits/(Losses) for the period:
(a) Surplus for the period attributable to:
(i) minority interest, and
(ii) owners of the parent.
TOTAL
(b) total comprehensive (expense) / income for the period attributable to:
(i) minority interest, and
(ii) owners of the parent.
TOTAL
The notes on pages 170 to 207 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 March 2012

note
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment Property
Investments in associates (and joined controlled operations)
Other Investments
Trade and other receivables
Other Financial assets
Other assets
Total non-current assets

8
9

31 March 2012 31 March 2011
(Restated)
£'000
£'000

01 April
2010
(Restated)
£'000

1,276
346,894
0
78
0
3,528
0
0
351,776

1,471
344,231
0
894
0
7,582
0
0
354,178

1,620
337,246
0
0
0
4,774
0
0
343,640

10,963
41,645
0
0
27,607
80,215

11,181
37,746
0
0
22,696
71,623

11,243
38,339
0
0
12,838
62,420

(65,956)
(1,867)
0
(984)
(6,181)
0
(74,988)

(58,368)
(1,893)
0
(2,213)
(3,591)
0
(66,065)

(46,026)
(1,782)
0
(939)
(2,982)
0
(51,729)

357,003

359,736

354,331

0
(88,472)
0
(6,232)
0
(94,704)

0
(90,221)
0
(6,807)
0
(97,028)

0
(91,919)
0
(8,068)
0
(99,987)

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED

262,299

262,708

254,344

Financed by (taxpayers' equity)
Minority Interest
Public Dividend Capital
Revaluation reserve
Available for sale investments reserve
Other reserves
Merger reserve
Income and expenditure reserve

0
135,678
85,979
0
0
0
40,642

0
135,578
88,748
0
0
0
38,382

0
135,528
83,294
0
0
0
35,522

262,299

262,708

254,344

10
12

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal groups
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

11
12

20

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities
Liabilities in disposal groups
Total current liabilities

13
15
18
14

Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

13
15
18
14

19

TOTAL TAXPAYERS' EQUITY

The financial statements on pages 165 to 169 were approved by the Board on 29 May 2012 and signed on its behalf by:

Signed:

(Chief Executive)

Date: 29 May 2012
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY

note
Taxpayers' Equity at 1 April 2011 - restated

28

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2011-12
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Impairments
Revaluations - Property, plant and equipment
Asset disposals
Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint ventures

Public Dividend
Capital
£'000
135,578

0
0
0
0
0

Movements arising from classifying non current assets as Assets Held for Sale
Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Recycling gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Other recognised gains and losses
Public Dividend Capital received
Public Dividend Capital repaid
Public Dividend Capital written off
Movements on other reserves
Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2012
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Revaluation
Reserve
£'000

Donated Assets
Reserve
£'000

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve
£'000

88,748

0

38,382

0
(5,549)
2,956
(176)
0

0
0
0
0
0

2,084
0
0
176
0

Total
£'000
262,708

2,084
(5,549)
2,956
0
0

0
0
0
0
100
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
100
0
0
0

135,678

85,979

0

40,642

262,299
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY

note
Balance at 31 March 2010 - as previously stated
Prior period adjustment
Balance at 31 March 2010 - restated

28

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2010-11
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Impairments
Revaluations - Property, plant and equipment
Revaluations - Intangibles
Asset disposals
Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint ventures
Movements arising from classifying non current assets as Assets Held for Sale
Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Recycling gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Other recognised gains and losses
Public Dividend Capital received
Public Dividend Capital repaid
Public Dividend Capital written off
Movements on other reserves
Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2011
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Revaluation
Reserve
£'000

Donated Assets
Reserve
£'000

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve
£'000

135,528
0
135,528

81,114
2,180
83,294

17,378
(17,378)
0

20,120
15,402
35,522

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
50
0
0
0

0
(1,739)
8,694
4
(1,505)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,355
0
0
0
1,505
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

135,578

88,748

0

38,382

Public Dividend
Capital
£'000

Total
£'000
254,140
204
254,344

1,355
(1,739)
8,694
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
50
0
0
0
262,708
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2012
2011/2012
£'000

2010/2011
£'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations
Operating surplus/(deficit) of discontinued operations
Operating surplus/(deficit)

21,021
0
21,021

19,449
0
19,449

Non-cash income and expense:
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments
Reversals of impairments
Interest accrued and not paid
Dividends accrued and not paid or received
Amortisation of government grants
Amortisation of PFI credit
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions
Tax (paid) / received
Movements in operating cash flow of discontinued operations
Other movements in operating cash flows

14,043
1,574
0
171
257
0
0
155
0
218
7,417
2,590
(1,804)
0
0
0

13,797
1,858
0
180
64
0
0
(2,143)
0
62
12,092
552
13
0
0
(2,079)

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATIONS

45,642

43,845

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of financial assets
Sales of financial assets
Purchase of intangible assets
Sales of intangible assets
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment
Cash flows attributable to investing activities of discontinued operations
Cash from acquisitions of business units and subsidiaries
Cash from (disposals) of business units and subsidiaries
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities

144
0
0
(609)
0
(20,148)
30
0
0
0
(20,583)

67
(1,111)
0
(813)
(6)
(18,232)
5,414
0
0
0
(14,681)

Cash flows from financing activities
Public dividend capital received
Public dividend capital repaid
Loans received from the Department of Health
Other loans received
Loans repaid to the Department of Health
Other loans repaid
Capital element of finance lease rental payments
Capital element of Private Finance Initiative Obligations
Interest paid
Interest element of finance lease
Interest element of Private Finance Initiative obligations
PDC Dividend paid
Cash flows attributable to financing activities of discontinued operations
Cash flows from (used in) other financing activities
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities

100
0
0
135
(1,012)
(106)
(124)
(678)
(669)
(43)
(9,328)
(8,359)
0
(64)
(20,148)

50
0
0
201
(1,012)
(45)
(124)
(608)
(685)
(43)
(8,903)
(8,065)
0
(72)
(19,306)

4,911

9,858

Cash and Cash equivalents at 1 April

22,696

12,838

Cash and Cash equivalents at 31 March

27,607

22,696

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. Accounting Policies

Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS foundation trusts shall meet the accounting requirements of the
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2011/12
issued by Monitor. The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS foundation
trusts.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.
1.1 Going concern
After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the NHS Foundation Trust has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in the preparation of the accounts.
1.2 Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.
1.3 Acquisitions and discontinued operations
Activities are considered to be 'discontinued' where they meet all of the following conditions:
a) The sale (this may be at nil consideration for activities transferred to another public sector body) or termination is
completed either in the period or before the earlier of three months after the commencement of the subsequent period and
the date on which the financial statements are approved.
b) If a termination, the former activities have ceased permanently.
c) The sale or termination has a material effect on the nature and focus of the reporting NHS Foundation Trust's operations
and represents a material reduction in its operating facilities resulting either from its withdrawal from a particular activity or
from a material reduction in income in the NHS Foundation Trust's continuing operations.
d) The assets, liabilities, results of operations and activities are clearly distinguishable, physically, operationally and for
financial reporting purposes.
Operations not satisfying all these conditions are classified as continuing.
Activities are considered to be 'acquired' whether or not they are acquired from outside the public sector.

170

King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2011/2012
1.4 Consolidated Accounts
Subsidiaries

Subsidiary entities are those over which the Trust has the power to exercise control or a dominent influence so as to gain
economic or other benefits. The income, expenses, assets, liabilities, equity and reserves of subsidiaries are consolidated in
full into the appropriate financial statement lines. The capital and reserves attributable to minority interests are included as a
seperate item in the Statement of Financial Position.

The amounts consolidated are drawn from the published financial statements of the subsidiaries for the year.
Where subsidiaries' accounting policies are not aligned with those of the Trust then amounts are adjusted during
consolidation where the differences are material.

The Trust has a wholly owned subsidiary company, KCH Commercial Services Ltd, who wholly own Agnentis Ltd and KCH
Management Ltd . The accounts for this company have been consolidated into the Foundation Trust annual accounts. They
are not shown separately in the segmental analysis note to the accounts (note 1.22) as the figures were immaterial.
Associates
Associate entities are those over which the Trust has the power to exercise a significant influence.

Associate entities are recognised in the Trust’s financial statement using the equity method. The investment is initially
recognised at cost. It is increased or decreased subsequently to reflect the trust’s share of the entity’s profit or loss or other
gains and losses (e.g. revaluation gains on the entity’s property, plant and equipment) following acquisition. It is also reduced
when any distribution e.g. share dividends are received by the trust from the associate.
1.5 Income

Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs and is measured at the
fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of income for the Trust is from contracts with commissioners in
respect of healthcare services provided under the Department of Health's Payment by Results rules-based system and local
agreements for non-mandatory tariff activity.
Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the following financial year, that income is
deferred.
Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been met, and is
measured as the sums due under the sale contract.
The Foundation Trust accrues income for incomplete spells of patient activity as at 31st March. The work in progress is
derived from patients admitted before the year end but not discharged as at 31st March. The calculation is based on the
number of bed days and the average specialty bed day price. The value as at 31st March 2012 was £2.856m, an increase of
£6k from 31st March 2011.

The provision for irrecoverable debts is based on outstanding debts greater than 6 months which have not been agreed with
the respective debtor. Due to the complexities of Private Patient debt recovery the bad debt provision for Private Patients is
based on outstanding debts greater than 1 year which have not been agreed with the respective debtor. The irrecoverable
debt provision figure is disclosed in note 12 - Trade receivables and other receivables.
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The Trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured
individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an insurer. The Trust recognises the
income when it receives notification from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the
individual has lodged a compensation claim. The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the
injured individual, less a provision for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.
1.6 Expenditure on Employee Benefits
i Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from
employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in
the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.
ii Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The Scheme is an unfunded, defined
benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary
of State, in England and Wales. It is not possible for the NHS Foundation Trust to identify its share of the underlying scheme
liabilities. Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of
participating in the Scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the Scheme for the accounting period. The total
employer contribution payable in the year ended 31 March 2012 was £29,986,539 (31 March 2011: £29,082,355).
Employers pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is due
to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time the trust
commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

The NHS Pension Scheme is subject to a full valuation every four years by the Government Actuary. The latest published
valuation relates to the period 1 April 1999 to 31 March 2004 which was published in December 2007 and is available on the
NHS
Pensions
Agency
website
http://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/Pensions/Documents/Pensions/NHSPS_funding_valuation_report_at_31_3_04_-_final_.pdf
The national deficit of the scheme was £3.3billion as per the last scheme valuation by the Government Actuary for the period 1
April 1999 to 31 march 2004. The conclusion of the valuation was that the scheme continues to operate on a sound financial
basis.

Employer contribution rates are reviewed every four years following the scheme valuation, on advice from the actuary. At the
last valuation it was recommended that employer contribution rates should continue at 14% or pensionable pay. From 1 April
2008, employees' pay contributions will be on a tiered scale from 5% to 8.5% of their pensionable pay.
1.7 Expenditure on other goods and services

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is measured at the
fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where it results in the creation
of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.
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1.8 Property, Plant and Equipment
i Recognition
Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised where:
• it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust;
• it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably;
and
• individually have a cost of at least £5,000; or
• collectively have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are functionally
interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are
under single managerial control; or
• form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit irrespective of their individual or
collective cost.
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives e.g.
plant and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful
economic lives.
ii Measurement
Valuation
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to
acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management.
All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.
All land and buildings are restated to fair value using professional valuations in accordance with IAS16 every five years. A
three year interim revaluation is also carried out.
Valuations are carried out by professionally qualified valuers in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual. The last asset valuations were undertaken in 2012 as at the prospective valuation
date of 31 March 2012.

The valuations are carried out primarily on the basis of Depreciated Replacement Cost for specialised operational property
(e.g. NHS patient treatment facilities) and Existing Use Value for non-specialised operational property. The value of land for
existing use purposes is assessed at Existing Use Value. For non-operational properties including surplus land, the valuations
are carried out at Market Value.
The Department of Health has agreed it will now adopt the Modern Equivalent Asset approach (MEA) for its DRC valuations
rather than continuing with identical replacement.

The MEA approach used to value the property will normally be based on the cost of a modern equivalent asset that has the
same service potential as the existing asset and then adjusted to take account of obsolescence. In the past, functional
obsolescence has not been reflected in asset valuations for the NHS.

Functional obsolescence examines a building’s design or specification and whether it may no longer fulfil the function for
which it was originally designed or whether it may be much more basic than the MEA. The asset will still be capable of use
but at a lower level of efficiency than the modern equivalent asset, or may be capable of modification to bring it up to a
current specification. Other common causes of functional obsolescence include advances in technology or legislative
change. The obsolescence adjustment will reflect either the cost of upgrading, or if this is not possible, the financial
consequences of the reduced efficiency compared with the modern equivalent.

173

King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2011/2012
The MEA approach incorporates the Building Cost Information Service Index to determine an increase or decrease in building
costs which impact on the asset valuation.
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment in periods if events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. The costs arising from financing the construction of the
property, plant and equipment are not capitalised but are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year to
which they relate.
Additional alternative Open Market Value figures have only been supplied for operational assets scheduled for imminent
closure and subsequent disposal.
The revaluation resulted in an increase of £1.3m in the value of land owned by the Trust and an overall decrease to buildings
and dwellings net book value of £5.6m.
A decrease in value of certain buildings resulted in an impairment of £1.574m being charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income (see Note 6.2). These buildings included Waddington Ward in Cheyne Wing (£620k), the Energy
Centre (£482k), Binfield Court (£369k), Hambledon Wing (£41k), Golden Jubilee Wing (£29k) and other building impairments
totalling £35k.
All impairments resulting from price changes are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. If the balance on the
revaluation reserve is less than the impairment the difference is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Assets in the course of construction are valued at cost and are valued by professional valuers when brought into use.
The valuation included the Trusts PFI scheme (note 16)
Operational equipment other than IT equipment, which is considered to have nil inflation, is valued at net current
replacement cost through annual uplift by the change in the value of the GDP deflator. Equipment surplus to requirements is
valued at net recoverable amount.
Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the carrying
amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic benefits or service potential deriving from the cost
incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be determined reliably.

Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets the criteria for recognition
above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is derecognised. Other expenditure that does not generate additional future
economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the period in which it is incurred.
Depreciation
Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful economic lives in a manner consistent
with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not
depreciated. Depreciation is calculated from the start of the month following the month in which the asset first became
available for use.

Property, Plant and Equipment which has been reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ ceases to be depreciated upon the
reclassification. Assets in the course of construction and residual interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PFI contract
assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the trust, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment in the course of construction and residual interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PFI
contract assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the Trust, respectively.
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Buildings, installations and fittings are depreciated on their current value over the estimated remaining life of the asset as
advised by the District Valuer. Leaseholds are depreciated over the primary lease term.
Equipment is depreciated on current cost evenly over the useful economic life of the asset. Standard useful economic lives
are estimated for each major category of equipment and individual lives will only be applied where it is clear that the
standard lives are materially inappropriate. The major categories and their useful economic lives are:
• Short life engineering plant and equipment - 5 years
• Medium life engineering plant and equipment - 10 years
• Long life engineering plant and equipment - 15 years
• Vehicles - 7 years
• Furniture - 10 years
• Office and IT equipment - 5 years
• Soft furnishings - 7 years
• Short life medical and other equipment - 5 years
• Medium life medical equipment - 10 years
• Long life medical equipment - 15 years
• Mainframe-type IT installations - 8 years
Revaluation gains and losses

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a revaluation
decrease that has previously been recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating income.
Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset
concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses.
Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item
of ‘other comprehensive income’.
Impairments

In accordance with the FT ARM, impairments that are due to a loss of economic benefits or service potential in the asset are
charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve to the income and
expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the
balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment.

An impairment arising from a loss of economic benefit or service potential is reversed when, and to the extent that, the
circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating income to the extent that the
asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never been recognised. Any remaining
reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original impairment, a transfer was made from
the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is transferred back to the revaluation reserve
when the impairment reversal is recognised.

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are treated as revaluation gains.
iii De-recognition

Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ once all of the following criteria are met:
• the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms which are usual and customary for
such sales;
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• the sale must be highly probable i.e.:
• management are committed to a plan to sell the asset;
• an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale;
• the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price;
• the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of classification as ‘Held for Sale’; and
• the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will be dropped or significant changes made
Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their ‘fair value less costs
to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions have been
met.
Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘Held for Sale’ and
instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when scrapping
or demolition occurs.
iv Donated, government grant and other grant funded assets

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The
donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition that the future economic
benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the donation/grant is
deferred within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition has not yet been met.
The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items of property, plant
and equipment.
Change in accounting policy (note 28)
Government grants (IAS 20)
The NHS foundation trust is required to apply IAS 20 to the treatment of government and other grants. As from 2011/12 the
following interpretations are applied.

• The option in IAS 20 to deduct the grant from the carrying value of the asset is not permitted;

• Grant income relating to assets is recognised within income when the foundation trust becomes entitled to it, unless
the grantor has imposed a condition that the future economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed as
specified by the grantor and if it is not, the grant must be returned to the grantor.
Where such a condition exists, the grant is recognised as deferred within liabilities and carried forward to future financial
years to the extent that the condition has not yet been met.
The new interpretations represent a change in accounting policy and the foundation trust has therefore applied the new
policy retrospectively, through a prior period adjustment, in accordance with IAS 8.
Grants and similar types of receipts from any entity within the boundary of Whole of Government Accounts should be
accounted for as a Government grant.
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Donations
From 2011/12, the accounting treatment for donations changed. The NHS foundation trust is required to account for
donations by applying the same principles as for government grants above.
The new approach represents a change in accounting policy and the foundation trust has therefore applied the new policy
retrospectively, through a prior period adjustment, in accordance with IAS 8.

The balance on the donated asset reserve as at 1 April 2010 has been analysed between amounts representing the remaining
historic cost of the original donations/donated assets and amounts representing the cumulative net revaluation gains on
donated assets recognised in the donated asset reserve. The net revaluation gains have been transferred to the revaluation
reserve. The remaining amount is transferred to the income and expenditure reserve, except to the extent that there are
conditions on a donation that require it to be deferred, in which case the balance for that donation has been transferred to a
deferred income account within liabilities. (note 28)
v Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions

PFI transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury’s FReM, are
accounted for as ‘on-Statement of Financial Position’ by the Trust. The underlying assets are recognised as Property, Plant and
Equipment at their fair value. An equivalent financial liability is recognised in accordance with IAS 17.

The annual contract payments are apportioned between the repayment of the liability, a finance cost and the charges for the
services. The finance cost is calculated using the implicit interest rate for the scheme.
The service charge is recognised in operating expenses and the finance cost is charged to Finance Costs in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Phase 1 of the PFI scheme, the construction and management of a new clinical wing, was the 'Golden Jubilee Wing', and this
building was made available to the Trust in September 2002. Phase II of the PFI scheme was the refurbishment of the Ruskin
Wing, and this wing became operational on 1st May 2004.

The total PFI scheme is subject to a finance lease and is deemed to be 'on-Statement of Financial Position'. The capital
element of the lease has been recorded as a tangible fixed asset for which depreciation will be charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the life of the asset. A payable was raised for the capitalised amount representing the fair value
of the asset at inception of the lease. The finance charge element of the lease payments is charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the period of the lease.
Lifecycle replacement
Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where they
meet the Trust’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided by the operator and are
measured initially at their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each year of the contract
from the operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is provided earlier or later
than expected, a short-term finance lease liability or prepayment is recognised respectively.
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Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is
recognised as an expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount determined in the
contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance is recognised. The deferred income is
released to the operating income over the shorter of the remaining contract period or the useful economic life of the
replacement component.
Assets contributed by the Trust to the operator for use in the scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and equipment in the Trust’s
Statement of Financial Position.
Other assets contributed by the Trust to the operator
Assets contributed (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the trust to the operator before the asset is brought into use,
which are intended to defray the operator’s capital costs, are recognised initially as prepayments during the construction
phase of the contract. Subsequently, when the asset is made available to the Trust, the prepayment is treated as an initial
payment towards the finance lease liability and is set against the carrying value of the liability.
1.9 Intangible assets
i Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from the
rest of the Trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust and where the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably, and where the cost is at least £5,000.
Internally generated intangible assets
Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised as
intangible assets.
Expenditure on research is not capitalised.
Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the following can be demonstrated:
• the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an intangible asset for sale or use;
• the Trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it;
• the Trust has the ability to sell or use the asset;
• how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefits e.g. the presence of a market
for it or its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the usefulness of the asset;
• adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the Trust to complete the development and sell or use
the asset; and
• the Trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during development.
Software
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware e.g. an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item
of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware e.g. application software, is
capitalised as an intangible asset.
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ii Measurement

Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and
prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Subsequently intangible assets are measured at fair value. Revaluations gains and losses and impairments are treated in the
same manner as for Property, Plant and Equipment.
Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’.
iii Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of
economic or service delivery benefits.
1.10 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is measured using the First In
First Out (FIFO) method. This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to current cost due to the high turnover of
stocks.
1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24
hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. These balances exclude monies held in the
NHS Foundation Trust's bank account belonging to patients (see third party assets below). Account balances are only set off
where a formal agreement has been made with the bank to do so. In all other cases overdrafts are disclosed within
payables. Interest earned on bank accounts and interest charged on overdrafts is recorded as, respectively, interest
receivable and interest payable in the periods to which they relate. Bank charges are recorded as operating expenditure in
the periods to which they relate.
1.12 Financial Instruments and Financial Liabilities
i Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as
goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements, are
recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs i.e. when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is
made.

Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance leases are recognised and
measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described below.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.
ii De-recognition
All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cashflows from the assets have expired or the Trust has
transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.
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Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
iii Classification and Measurement
Financial assets are categorised as Loans and receivables or ‘Available-for-sale financial assets’.

Financial liabilities are classified as 'Fair Value through Income and Expenditure' or as 'Other Financial liabilities'.
iv Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments with are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets.

The Trust’s loans and receivables comprise: cash at bank and in hand, NHS debtors, accrued income and ‘other debtors’.
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are measured subsequently at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.
Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
v Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets which are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in long-term assets unless the Trust intends to dispose of them
within 12 months of the Statement of Financial Position date.

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, including transaction costs, and measured
subsequently at fair value, with gains or losses recognised in reserves and reported in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as an item of 'other comprehensive income'. When items classified as ‘available-for-sale’ are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised are transferred from reserves and recognised in 'Finance Costs' in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
vi Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount of the financial liability.
They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the Statement of Financial
Position date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.

Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and charged to
Finance Costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to finance property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is not
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
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vii Determination of fair value
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are determined using discounted cash
flow analysis.
viii Impairment of financial assets

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Trust assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair
value through income and expenditure’ is impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses are recognised if,
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cashflows of the asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of a bad debt provision.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced when the outstanding debt is greater than 6 months and payment has
not been agreed with the respective debtor. Due to the complexities of Private Patient debt recovery the reduction in these
debts is based on outstanding debts greater than 1 year where payment has not been agreed with the respective debtor.
1.13 Leases
i Finance Leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the NHS foundation trust, the asset is
recorded as property, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised
is the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease.
The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for an item of
property plant and equipment.

The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate of
finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to Finance Costs in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. The lease liability, is de-recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
ii Operating Leases
Other leases are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to operating expenses on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received are added to the lease rentals and charged to operating expenses
over the life of the lease.
iii Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the classification
for each is assessed separately.
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1.14 Provisions

The NHS foundation trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing
or amount; for which it is probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the resources
required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash
flows are discounted using HM Treasury’s discount rate of 2.2% in real terms, except for early retirement provisions and
injury benefit provisions which both use the HM Treasury’s pension discount rate of 2.8% (2010/11 : 2.9%) in real terms.
i Clinical negligence costs

The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the NHS Trust pays an annual
contribution to the NHSLA, which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although the NHSLA is administratively
responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the NHS Foundation Trust. The total value of
clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the NHS Foundation Trust is disclosed at note 18 but is not
recognised in the NHS foundation trust's accounts.
ii Non-clinical risk pooling

The NHS Foundation Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both
are risk pooling schemes under which the NHS Foundation Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority
and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any 'excesses'
payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and when the liability arises.
1.15 Contingencies
Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more future
events not wholly within the entity's control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed in Note 23 where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in Note 23, unless the probability of a transfer of economic
benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are defined as:
• possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the entity's control; or
• present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will arise
or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
1.16 Public Dividend Capital (PDC)
Public Dividend Capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the time of
establishment of the predecessor NHS Trust. HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial instrument within the
meaning of IAS 32.
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A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the NHS foundation trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend.
The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the NHS
foundation trust during the financial year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all
liabilities, except for (i) donated assets (including lottery funded assets), (ii) net cash balances held with the Government
Banking Services (GBS), excluding cash balances held in GBS accounts that relate to a short-term working capital facility, and
(iii) any PDC dividend balance receivable or payable. In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of
Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in
the ‘pre-audit’ version of the annual accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net
assets occur as a result the audit of the annual accounts.
1.17 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the NHS Foundation Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply
and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or
included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the
amounts are stated net of VAT.
1.18 Corporation Tax
The Finance Act 2004 amended S519A Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 provided power to the Treasury to make
certain non-core activities of Foundation Trusts potentially subject to corporation tax. This legislation is effective from
September 12 2005. Any outstanding payments of corporation tax as at the end of the financial year are provided for in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Foundation Trust did not incur Corporation Tax in 2011/12 as the Trust did not generate any taxable income.
1.19 Foreign Exchange
The Trust's functional currency and presentational currency is sterling.
A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate
on the date of the transaction.

Where the Trust has assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at the Statement of Financial Position date:
• monetary items (other than financial instruments measured at 'fair value through income and expenditure') are
translated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March;
• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of
the transaction; and
• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date the fair
value was determined.

Exchange gains or losses on monetary items (arising on settlement of the transaction or on re-translation at the Statement
of Financial Position date) are recognised in income or expense in the period in which they arise.
Exchange gains or losses on non-monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the same manner as other gains and losses
on these items.
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1.20 Third Party Assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the NHS
foundation trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, third party assets are disclosed in Note 26 to the accounts in
accordance with the requirements of the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual.
1.21 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and Special Payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health
service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special
control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the
way each individual case is handled. Losses and Special Payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in the
expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had NHS
Foundation Trusts not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue
expenditure).
However the losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which reports
on an accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future losses.
1.22 Segmental Analysis

King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has a number of business divisions which are aggregated under one reportable
segment being the provision of healthcare. The Trust provides Private Patient, Research and Development and Training and
Education services within this healthcare sector, but as they do not have a material impact they are aggregated under this one
reportable segment. Note 2 entitled "Other Operating Income" includes the relevant income figures for these services.
The Trust also generated income from its King's subsidiary commercial company of £705k, against expenditure of £777k, a net
deficit of £72k.
1.23 Future Changes in Accounting Policy
The following changes to standards issued by the IASB have not been implemented in these accounts. The Trust does not
expect these changes to have a significant impact in the period of initial application.
Change published
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - amendment
Transfers of financial assets
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Financial Assets:
Financial Liabilities:
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

Published by IASB

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

May 2011

Financial year for which the change first applies
Effective date of 2012/13 but not yet adopted by the
EU.

October 2010
November 2009
October 2010
May 2011

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities May 2011
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

May 2011

IAS 12 Income Taxes amendment

December 2010

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements, on
other comprehensive income (OCI)

June 2011

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

May 2011

IAS 28 Associates and joint ventures.

May 2011
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Uncertain. Not likely to be adopted by the EU until
the IASB has finished the rest of its financial
instruments project.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet adopted by the
EU.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet adopted by the
EU.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet adopted by the
EU.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet adopted by the
EU.
Effective date of 2012/13 but not yet adopted by the
EU.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet adopted by the
EU.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet adopted by the
EU.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet adopted by the
EU.
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2. OPERATING INCOME
2.1 Income from activities by classification

2011/2012
£'000

Elective income
Non elective income
Outpatient income
A & E income
Other NHS clinical income *
Private patient income
Total income from activities
Other operating income
Research and development
Education and training
Charitable and other contributions to expenditure
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Other **
Profit on disposal of land and buildings
Profit on disposal of other tangible fixed assets
Total other operating income

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

2010/2011
£'000

101,895
119,625
83,771
14,819
209,589
15,394
545,093

90,906
105,869
84,324
12,574
195,844
12,548
502,065

9,728
47,121
1,648
13,966
11,059
0
0
83,522

9,060
46,763
2,365
13,972
10,569
109
1,811
84,649

628,615

586,714

* Other NHS clinical income includes HIV/AIDS funding, NSCG funding for Liver services, Bone Marrow Transplant funding, Critical Care
funding from PCTs including consortia PCT leads, Off-tariff drugs and devices, Renal Dialysis, Direct Access, Community Midwifery,
Community Dental services, National Screening programmes, RTA funding and IVF services.
** Other income includes NHS Provider-to-provider Services, Clinical Excellence Awards, Staff Nursery, Car Parking, Accommodation
and Commercial Rents.

2.2 Private patient income

2011/2012
£'000
16,882
545,093

Private patient income
Total patient related income
Proportion (as percentage)

3.10%

2010/2011
£'000
13,268
502,065
2.64%

Section 44 of the 2006 Act requires that the proportion of private patient income to the total patient related income of the NHS
Foundation Trust should not exceed 3.5 per cent, its proportion when the organisation was an NHS Trust in 2002/03.

2.3 Income from activities arising from mandatory and non-mandatory services

2011/2012
£'000

2010/2011
£'000

Mandatory services
Non-mandatory services

575,332
53,283

535,560
51,154

Total income from activities

628,615

586,714
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2.4 Operating lease income

2011/2012
£'000

Operating Lease Income
Rents recognised as income in the period

Future minimum lease payments due on leases of building expiring
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

2.5 Income from activities by type

2010/2011
£'000

381

0

381

0

4
688
1,620

0
0
0

2,312

0

2011/2012
£'000

2010/2011
£'000

Income from activities
NHS Foundation Trusts
NHS Trusts
Strategic Health Authorities *
Primary Care Trusts **
NHS Other
Non NHS: Private patients
Non-NHS: Overseas patients (non-reciprocal)
NHS injury scheme ***
Non NHS: Other ****

956
842
32,419
486,793
1,993
15,394
1,488
3,263
1,945

423
848
29,693
451,682
2,924
12,548
720
1,654
1,573

Total income from activities

545,093

502,065

* Income from National Specialised Commissioning contracts of £23.698m is included in this line.
** Income from London Specialised Commissioning contracts of £49.634m is included in this line.
*** NHS Injury Scheme income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 10.5% to reflect expected rates of collection. The
total outstanding claims against this scheme at 31 March 2012 were £5.871m, and a provision of £616k was raised against this
amount.
**** Non-NHS other income includes patient care provided to devolved administrations, personal contributions for IVF treatment
and services to prisons.
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3. OPERATING EXPENSES
3.1 Operating Expenses comprise:

2011/2012
£'000

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts
Services from NHS Trusts
Services from PCTs
Services from other NHS Bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies
Employee Expenses - Executive directors
Employee Expenses - Non-executive directors
Employee Expenses - Staff
Drug costs
Supplies and services - clinical
Supplies and services - general
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Increase / (decrease) in bad debt provision
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation on intangible assets
Impairments of property, plant and equipment
Audit fees - Statutory audit
Audit fees - Regulatory reporting
Other auditors remuneration - other services
Clinical negligence
Loss on disposal of other property, plant and equiment
Redundancy costs
Other
TOTAL

3,201
1,095
12
66
1,575
1,370
134
349,695
66,908
76,918
2,435
3,946
5,353
20,085
(161)
13,260
783
1,574
100
2
0
8,936
49
437
49,821

1,197
1,275
22
2,473
548
1,527
131
337,995
61,754
63,082
2,028
4,159
4,606
19,636
1,060
12,879
860
1,858
103
0
1
6,779
89
1,164
42,039

607,594

567,265

* Other operating expenses includes expenditure on PFI service costs, leasing equipment, training and legal fees.
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3.2 Operating leases
3.2.1 Opreating expenses include:

2011/2012
£'000

2010/2011
£'000

Hire of plant and machinery
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings

5,193
2,609

5,635
2,007

TOTAL

7,802

7,642

3.2.2 Arrangements containing an operating lease:
Land and buildings
2011/2012
2010/2011
Future minimum lease payments due:
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.
TOTAL

Other Leases
2011/2012
2010/2011

£'000
1,830
6,635
1,699

£'000
1,970
7,880
3,344

£'000
3,684
8,149
2,002

£'000
1,838
3,686
69

10,164

13,194

13,835

5,593

The above disclosure for land and buildings has been amended to show total future minimum lease payments. Previously this disclosure showed the next
year's future minimum lease payments categorised by lease expiry date.
3.3 Better Payment Practice Code - measure of compliance
2011/2012
Number
£'000
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total Non NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target

2010/2011
Number
£'000

116,655
55,072
47%

273,708
200,380
73%

111,853
67,255
60%

235,489
185,436
79%

3,088
1,148
37%

72,684
55,475
76%

3,149
1,250
40%

62,602
49,762
79%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Foundation Trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of
goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.

3.4 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
2011/2012
£'000
Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation

2010/2011
£'000
8

10

8

10

3.5 Limitation on auditor's liability
2011/2012
£'000
Limitation on auditor's liability

2010/2011
£'000
0
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4. Employee expenses
4.1 Staff costs
Permanently
Employed
£'000

Other

2011/2012
Total

2010/2011
Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employers contributions to NHS Pensions
Pension Cost - other contributions
Agency and contract staff

288,317
23,891
30,413
786
0

0
0
0
0
12,081

288,317
23,891
30,413
786
12,081

Total gross staff costs

343,407

12,081

355,488

less income where netted off expenditure:
in respect of Salaries and wages
in respect of Social security costs
in respect of Employers contributions to NHS Pensions

(3,280)
(307)
(399)

Total staff costs

339,421

0
0
0
12,081

Other

2011/2012
Total

2010/2011
Total

Number

Number

Number

1,135
1,300
509
2,274
10
1,029
7
6

44
43
38
79
0
36
0
1

1,179
1,343
547
2,353
10
1,065
7
7

TOTAL

6,270

241

6,511

2011/2012
£'000

Management costs
Income
Management costs as a percentage

(2,781)
(293)
(366)
340,686

Medical and dental
Administration and estates
Healthcare assistants and other support staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Social care staff
Other

4.3 Management costs

344,126

351,502

4.2 Average number of persons employed
Permanently
Employed
Number

(3,280)
(307)
(399)

282,951
22,049
29,448
690
8,988

30,388
627,402
4.84%

1,141
1,400
541
2,155
10
1,168
7
6
6,428

2010/2011
£'000
28,680
585,967
4.89%

Management
costs
are
defined
as
those
on
the
management
costs
website
at
www.dh.gov.uk/PolicyAndGuidance/OrganisationPolicy/FinanceAndPlanning/NHSManagementCosts/fs/en.. The general rule is that if a post falls within the
Board or Corporate functions, the salary cost of all staff must be included. Only the most senior manager must be included within clinical and operational or
support functions. These costs are also applied to contracted out services and management consultancy services.

4.4 Early retirements due to ill health

During the year to 31 March 2012 there were 5 (2010/11 : 3) early retirements from the NHS Trust on the grounds of ill-health. The estimated additional
pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £305,497 (2010/11 : £227,302). The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by NHS Pensions.
4.5 Termination benefits

During the year to 31 March 2012 there were 17 (2010/11 : 26) cases where termination benefits were paid totalling £437k (2010/11 : £1,164k).
Number of
Number of
other
Total number of
compulsory
departures
exit packages by
Exit package cost band
redundancies
agreed
cost band
<£10,000
5 (2)
0 (0)
5 (2)
£10,001 - £25,000
6 (10)
0 (0)
6 (10)
£25,001 - 50,000
3 (8)
0 (0)
3 (8)
£50,001 - £100,000
3 (4)
0 (0)
3 (4)
£100,001 - £150,000
0 (1)
0 (0)
0 (1)
£150,001 - £200,000
0 (0)
0 (0)
0 (0)
>£200,001
0 (1)
0 (0)
0 (1)
Total number of exit packages by type
17 (26)
0 (0)
17 (26)
Total resource cost (£'000)
437 (1,164)
0 (0)
437 (1,164)
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4.6 Salary and pension entitlements of senior managers
A) Remuneration

Name

Title

Chariman and Non-Executive Directors
M. Parker
Chairman
G. Alberti
Chairman
G. Alberti
Non-Executive Director
R. Foster
Non-Executive Director
A. McGregor
Non-Executive Director
M. James
Non-Executive Director
M. West *
Non-Executive Director
M. Meryon **
Non-Executive Director
E. Meek
Non-Executive Director
C. Stooke
Non-Executive Director
F. Boardman
Non-Executive Director
Executive Directors
T. Smart
S. Taylor
A. Huxham
R. Sinker
G. Walters
M. Marrinan

Chief Executive
Chief Financial Officer
Executive Director of Workforce Development
Executive Director of Operations
Executive Director of Nursing & Midwifery
Executive Medical Director

Co-opted members of the Trust's Board
J. Walters
Director of Corporate Affairs
J. West
Director of Strategy
A. Toumadj
Director of Facilities

G. Alberti
G. Alberti
M. West
C. Stooke
E. Meek
F. Boardman
A. Toumadj

Non-Executive Director
Chairman
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Director of Facilities

Salary

2011/2012
Other
Remuneration

2010/2011
Benefits in Kind

Salary

Other Remuneration

Benefits in Kind

(bands of £5000)
£'000

(bands of £5000)
£'000

Rounded to the
nearest £100

(bands of £5000)
£'000

(bands of £5000)
£'000

Rounded to the
nearest £100

35 - 40
20 - 25
5 - 10
10 - 15
10 - 15
10 - 15
1-5
0
1-5
5 - 10
1-5

0
0
0
0
110 - 115
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

55 - 60
0
5 - 10
10 - 15
10 - 15
10 - 15
15 - 20
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
110 - 115
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

225 - 230
165 - 170
115 - 120
145 - 150
130 - 135
55 - 60

0
5 - 10
0
0
0
155 - 160

0
0
0
0
0
0

220 - 225
160 - 165
115 - 120
145 - 150
135 - 140
55 - 60

0
5 - 10
0
0
0
150 - 155

0
0
0
0
0
0

95 - 100
125 - 130
5 - 10

0
0
0

0
0
0

100 - 105
20 - 25
140 - 145

0
0
0

0
0
0

1 April 2011 - 30 November 2011
1 December 2011 - 31 March 2012
1 April 2011 - 31 July 2011
1 November 2011 - 31 March 2012
1 December 2011 - 31 March 2012
1 March 2012 - 31 March 2012
1 April 2011 - 30 April 2011

* M. West's role as Non-Executive Director was charged to the Trust through his employing organisation.
** M. Meryon has waived his fee.

Band of highest paid director's total remuneration (£'000)
Median total remuneration (£)
Ratio

225 - 230
37,298
6.1

The above note discloses the median remuneration of the Trust's staff and the ratio between this and the mid-point of the banded remuneration of the highest paid director. The calculation is based on full-time
equivalent staff of the reporting entity at the reporting period end date on an annualised basis.
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4.6 Salary and pension entitlements of senior managers
B) Pension Benefits
This pensions information is provided by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division on an annual basis.
Real Increase in
Total accrued pension
Real Increase in
pension lump sum at at age 60 at 31 March
pension at age 60
age 60 (bands of
2012 (bands of
Name
Title
(bands of £2,500)
£2,500)
£5,000)
£'000
£'000
£'000
Executive Directors
T. Smart
S. Taylor
A. Huxham
R. Sinker
G. Walters
M. Marrinan

Chief Executive
Chief Financial Officer
Executive Director of Workforce Development
Executive Director of Operations
Executive Director of Nursing & Midwifery
Executive Medical Director

Co-opted members of the Trusts Board
J. Walters
Director of Corporate Affairs
J. West
Director of Strategy
A. Toumadj
Director of Facilities

Lump sum at age 60
at 31 March 2012
(bands of £5,000)
£'000

Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value at 31
March 2012
£'000

Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value at 31
March 2011
£'000

Real increase in Cash
Equivalent Transfer
Value
£'000

0.0 - 2.5
0.0 - 2.5
0.0 - 2.5
0.0 - 2.5
457.5 - 460
5 - 7.5

0
0.0 - 2.5
2.5 - 5
0
10.0 - 12.5
20 - 22.5

10 - 15
50 -55
40 - 45
5 - 10
505 - 510
25 - 30

0
155 - 160
125 - 130
0
150 - 155
85 - 90

146
967
1,001
64
1,041
630

97
822
892
31
877
437

45
108
69
33
125
174

(0) - (2.5)
0 - 2.5
(0) - (2.5)

(0) - (2.5)
0
(2.5) - (5)

35 - 40
0-5
30 - 35

105 - 110
0
100 - 105

843
37
0

793
14
0

14
22
0

T. Smart, R. Sinker and J. West are new pension scheme members and have no accrued lump sum.
G. Walters' pensions figures reflect service credits received in the current year which related to prior years service not previously recorded by NHS Pensions.
During the year to 31 March 2012 the total value of employer contributions to the pension scheme in respect of directors was £147k (2010/11 : £168k)
As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s
pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits
accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure
applies. The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit
accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

The real increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from
another scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
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5. Finance income

2011/2012
£'000

Interest on loans and receivables
Interest received on cash deposits

2010/2011
£'000

76
69

36
71

145

107

6. Finance expense
6.1 Interest expense

2011/2012
£'000

Loans from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Overdrafts
Finance leases
Finance Costs in PFI obligations
Main Finance Costs
Contingent Finance Costs

6.2 Impairment of assets

623
46
43

665
0
43

7,578
1,750

7,637
1,266

10,040

9,611

2011/2012
£'000

Changes in market price

7. Share of operating loss in associate
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2010/2011
£'000

1,574

1,858

1,574

1,858

2011/2012
£'000

GSTS Pathology LLP

2010/2011
£'000

2010/2011
£'000

(816)

(217)

(816)

(217)
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8. Intangible assets
Software
licences
£'000

8.1 Intangible assets 2011/2012

Development
expenditure
£'000

Total
£'000

Gross cost at 1 April 2011
Additions - purchased
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Gross cost at 31 March 2012

3,351
609
(47)
8
3,921

687
0
0
0
687

4,038
609
(47)
8
4,608

Amortisation at 1 April 2011
Provided during the year
Reclassifications
Revaluation surpluses
Amortisation at 31 March 2012

1,882
783
(26)
8
2,647

685
0
0
0
685

2,567
783
(26)
8
3,332

Net book value
Purchased at 31 March 2012
Total at 31 March 2012

1,274
1,274

2
2

1,276
1,276

The implementation cost of the Activity Based Costing (ABC) project completed in 2006/07 was capitalised under SSAP 13 as
Research and Development costs. ABC was been introduced as a result of the implementation of Payments by Results using
the National Tariff.

Software
licences
£'000

8.2 Intangible assets 2010/2011

Development
expenditure
£'000

Total
£'000

Gross cost at 1 April 2010
Additions - purchased
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Disposals
Gross cost at 31 March 2011

3,040
813
(102)
0
(400)
3,351

670
0
0
17
0
687

3,710
813
(102)
17
(400)
4,038

Amortisation at 1 April 2010
Provided during the year
Reclassifications
Revaluation surpluses
Disposals
Amortisation at 31 March 2011

1,558
720
(2)
0
(394)
1,882

532
140
0
13
0
685

2,090
860
(2)
13
(394)
2,567

Net book value
Purchased at 31 March 2011
Total at 31 March 2011

1,469
1,469
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9. Property, plant and equipment
9.1 Property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2012 comprise the following elements:
Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£'000

Land
£'000
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2011
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Impairments charged to revaluation reserve
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Disposals
Cost or valuation at 31 March 2012

Assets under
Construction
£'000

Plant &
Machinery
£'000

Information
Technology
£'000

Furniture &
Fittings
£'000

Total
£'000

50,963
0
0
0
0
1,251
0
52,214

250,015
160
0
(5,542)
7,806
(7,044)
0
245,395

2,668
0
0
(7)
0
(157)
0
2,504

19,484
15,650
204
0
(7,806)
0
0
27,532

44,078
1,987
488
0
47
530
(855)
46,275

19,621
1,659
0
0
0
0
0
21,280

1,111
0
0
0
0
13
0
1,124

387,940
19,456
692
(5,549)
47
(5,407)
(855)
396,324

70
0
0
0
0
0
70

2,283
8,949
1,474
0
(8,473)
0
4,233

0
98
100
0
(185)
0
13

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

24,219
3,293
0
26
290
(776)
27,052

16,725
819
0
0
0
0
17,544

412
101
0
0
5
0
518

43,709
13,260
1,574
26
(8,363)
(776)
49,430

50,044
0
0
2,100
52,144

154,021
0
75,679
11,462
241,162

2,406
0
0
85
2,491

25,529
0
0
2,003
27,532

17,262
0
0
1,961
19,223

3,731
0
0
5
3,736

563
0
0
43
606

253,556
0
75,679
17,659
346,894

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2011
Provided during the year
Impairments recognised in operating expenses
Reclassifications
Revaluation surpluses
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2012
Net book value
Owned at 31 March 2012
Finance Lease at 31 March 2012
PFI at 31 March 2012
Donated at 31 March 2012
Total at 31 March 2012

Dwellings
£'000

Of the totals at 31 March 2012, £nil (31 March 2011: £nil) related to dwellings valued at open market value.

9.2 Property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2011 comprise the following elements:
Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£'000

Land
£'000
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2010
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Impairments charged to revaluation reserve
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Disposals
Cost or valuation at 31 March 2011
Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2010
Provided during the year
Impairments recognised in operating expenses
Reclassifications
Revaluation surpluses
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2011
Net book value
Owned at 31 March 2011
Finance Lease at 31 March 2011
PFI at 31 March 2011
Donated at 31 March 2011
Total at 31 March 2011

Dwellings
£'000

Assets under
Construction
£'000

Plant &
Machinery
£'000

Information
Technology
£'000

Furniture &
Fittings
£'000

Total
£'000

51,318
0
0
(85)
300
173
(743)
50,963

231,025
1,078
(2)
(1,415)
22,389
(2,074)
(986)
250,015

3,666
0
0
(239)
0
(46)
(713)
2,668

29,340
12,401
450
0
(22,689)
0
(18)
19,484

42,621
2,200
862
0
102
1,052
(2,759)
44,078

18,609
1,210
0
0
0
0
(198)
19,621

1,047
17
22
0
0
26
(1)
1,111

377,626
16,906
1,332
(1,739)
102
(869)
(5,418)
387,940

0
0
70
0
0
0
70

2,026
8,506
1,788
0
(10,006)
(31)
2,283

0
130
0
0
(105)
(25)
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

22,063
3,318
0
2
541
(1,705)
24,219

15,986
824
0
0
0
(85)
16,725

305
101
0
0
7
(1)
412

40,380
12,879
1,858
2
(9,563)
(1,847)
43,709

48,843
0
0
2,050
50,893

157,539
0
78,575
11,618
247,732

2,499
0
0
169
2,668

16,610
0
180
2,694
19,484

18,159
105
0
1,595
19,859

2,873
0
0
23
2,896

673
0
0
26
699

247,196
105
78,755
18,175
344,231
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9.3 Analysis of property, plant and equipment

9.3.1 Analysis 31 March 2012
Net book value
Protected assets at 31 March 2012
Unprotected assets at 31 March 2012
Total at 31 March 2012

9.3.2 Analysis 31 March 2011
Net book value
Protected assets at 31 March 2011
Unprotected assets at 31 March 2011
Total at 31 March 2011

Land
£'000
52,144
0
52,144

Land
£'000
50,893
0
50,893

Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£'000

Dwellings
£'000

236,255
4,907
241,162
Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£'000

2,491
0
2,491

Dwellings
£'000

243,715
4,017
247,732

2,668
0
2,668

Assets under
Construction
£'000

27,532
27,532

Assets under
Construction
£'000

19,484
19,484

Plant &
Machinery
£'000

Information
Technology
£'000

19,223
19,223

Plant &
Machinery
£'000

Furniture &
Fittings
£'000

3,736
3,736

Information
Technology
£'000

19,859
19,859

606
606

Furniture &
Fittings
£'000

2,896
2,896

699
699

Total
£'000
290,890
56,004
346,894

Total
£'000
297,276
46,955
344,231

9.4 Net book value of property, pland and equipment in the Revaluation Reserve

9.4.1 Net book value as at 31 March 2012

As at 1 April 2011
Movement in year
As at 31 March 2012

9.4.2 Net book value as at 31 March 2011

As at 1 April 2010
Movement in year
As at 31 March 2011

Land
£'000
50,893
1,251
52,144

Land
£'000
51,318
(425)
50,893

Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£'000

Dwellings
£'000

247,732
(6,571)
241,161
Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£'000

2,668
(177)
2,491

Dwellings
£'000

228,999
18,733
247,732

3,666
(998)
2,668

Assets under
Construction
£'000
19,484
8,048
27,532

Assets under
Construction
£'000
29,340
(9,856)
19,484

Plant &
Machinery
£'000

Information
Technology
£'000

19,859
(633)
19,226

Plant &
Machinery
£'000

Furniture &
Fittings
£'000

2,896
840
3,736

Information
Technology
£'000

20,558
(699)
19,859

699
(93)
606

Furniture &
Fittings
£'000

2,623
273
2,896

742
(43)
699

Total
£'000
344,231
2,665
346,896

Total
£'000
337,246
6,985
344,231

10. Investments in associates and joint ventures
The NHS Foundation Trust's principal subsidiary undertakings, associates and joint ventures as included in the consolidation at 31 March 2012 are set out below. The accounting date of the financial
statements for the subsidiaries is 31 March 2012 and for the associate, 31 December 2011. For the associate undertaking that has a different accounting year end date, interim accounts to 31 March 2012
have been consolidated.
Country of
Incorporation

Beneficial
Interest

Principal
Activity

Subsidiary undertakings
KCH Commercial Services Ltd
Agnentis Ltd *
KCH Management Ltd *

UK
UK
UK

100%
100%
100%

Holding Company
Other software consultancy and supply
Healthcare Services

Associates
GSTS Pathology LLP *

UK

33.3%

Healthcare Services

* Not directly owned by the NHS Foundation Trust

10.1 Investment in associate - GSTS Pathology LLP

31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000

Carrying Value at 1 April

894

0

0

1,111

(816)
78

(217)
894

Acquisitions in year
Share of profit/(loss)
Carrying Value at 31 March

10.2 Amounts relating to associate - GSTS Pathology LLP

£'000

31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000

Non current assets

4,489

Current assets

£'000
5,133

5,745

8,813

Non current liabilities

(4,957)

(4,058)

Current Liabilities

(7,360)

(9,807)

Group share net assets/(liabilities)

(2,083)

81

Revenue
Expenditure
Group share net loss
As per accounting policy note 1.4, the group accounts for the associate above on an equity basis.
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11. Inventories

31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000
£'000

Drugs
Clinical Consumables

3,108
7,855

3,642
7,539

TOTAL INVENTORIES

10,963

11,181

2011/2012
£'000

11.1 Inventories recognised in expenses

Inventories recognised in expenses

114,540

2010/2011
£'000
105,849

12. Trade receivables and other receivables
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000
£'000
Current trade and other receivables
NHS Receivables - Revenue
Other receivables with related parties - Revenue
Other receivables with related parties - Capital
Provision for impaired receivables
Prepayments
Accrued income
Operating lease receivables
PDC dividend receivable
VAT receivable
Other receivables - Revenue
Other receivables - Capital

11,586
926
112
(2,756)
3,844
8,411
53
257
2,044
17,146
22

17,736
2,213
16
(3,302)
3,046
1,952
0
0
1,680
14,405
0

TOTAL CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

41,645

37,746

Non-Current trade and other receivables
NHS Receivables - Revenue
Other receivables with related parties - Revenue
Other receivables

0
2,596
932

1,977
2,631
2,974

TOTAL NON-CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

3,528

7,582

Non-current other receivables include an amount of £2.596m which relates to a loan to the associate - GSTS Pathology LLP.
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12.1 Provision for impairment of receivables

2011/2012
£'000

At 1 April
Increase in provision
Amounts utilised
Unused amounts reversed
At 31 March

3,302
1,790
(385)
(1,951)
2,756

31 March 2012
Trade
Other
Receivables
Receivables
£'000
£'000

12.2 Analysis of impaired receivables

Ageing of impaired receivables
Over six months
Total
Ageing of non-impaired receivables past their due date
Up to three months
In three to six months
Over six months
Total

2010/2011
£'000
2,860
2,174
(618)
(1,114)
3,302

31 March 2011
Trade
Other
Receivables
Receivables
£'000
£'000

555
555

2,201
2,201

1,645
1,645

1,657
1,657

2,005
1,782
414
4,201

4,948
1,929
8,921
15,798

3,060
1,520
2,407
6,987

2,341
1,989
9,196
13,526

13. Trade and other payables
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000
£'000
Current trade and other payables
Receipts in advance
NHS payables - Revenue
Other trade payables - Capital
Other trade payables - Revenue
Social Security costs
Other taxes payable
Other payables
Accruals
PDC dividend payable

1,904
6,609
2,372
13,868
3,797
4,142
9,742
23,522
0

5,734
5,761
1,454
13,236
3,468
3,896
10,083
14,672
64

TOTAL CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

65,956

58,368

Non-current trade and other payables

0

0

TOTAL NON-CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

0

0

14. Other liabilities
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000
£'000
Current other liabilities
Deferred Income
Deferred Government Grant

6,181
0

3,591
0

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

6,181

3,591

Non-current other liabilities

0

0

TOTAL OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

0

0
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15. Borrowings
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000
£'000
Current borrowings
Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Other Loans
Obligations under finance leases
Obligations under Private Finance Initiative contracts

1,011
123
0
733

1,012
89
124
668

TOTAL CURRENT BORROWINGS

1,867

1,893

Non-current borrowings
Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Other Loans
Obligations under Private Finance Initiative contracts

11,866
218
76,388

12,877
223
77,121

TOTAL NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

88,472

90,221

15.1 Finance lease obligations
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000
£'000
Gross lease liabilities
of which liabilities are due
- not later than one year;
Finance charges allocated to future periods
Net lease liabilities
of which liabilities are due
- not later than one year;
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0
0

167
(43)

0

124

0

124

0
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16. PFI obligations on Statement of Financial Position
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000
£'000
Gross PFI liabilities
of which liabilities are due
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.
Finance charges allocated to future periods
Net PFI liabilities
of which liabilities are due
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

214,384

222,630

8,246
32,982
173,156
(137,263)

8,246
32,982
181,402
(144,841)

77,121

77,789

733
3,718
72,670

668
3,388
73,733

77,121

77,789

16.1 Commitments in respect of the service element of the PFI
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000
£'000
Within one year
2nd to 5th years (inclusive)
Later than five years
Total

21,538
94,955
828,516
945,009

20,723
93,992
1,033,751
1,148,466

As part of the total scheme, HpC assumed responsibility for the provision of site-wide catering, domestic and portering services from
April 2000. These costs were included within the revenue operating expenses of the Trust. The commitments above include an
inflationary increase of 3.93% based on the rate used for 2012/13.

The project enables the centralisation of acute services in new and refurbished buildings on the Denmark Hill site following the transfer
of services from Dulwich Hospital and Mapother House. The construction and provision of site-wide catering, domestic and portering
services will be undertaken by Hpc (King's College Hospital) Plc. The project is being financed by means of a wrapped, index linked bond
guaranteed by MBIA-AMBAC and debt and equity capital provided by Costain, Skanska, Sodexho and Edison Capital. The contract
period is 38 years including the construction phase. Annual payments by the Trust will be dependent on availability and service quality
standards being met by the contract.
Phase 1 of the PFI scheme was the construction and management of a new clinical wing, the 'Golden Jubilee Wing', and this building
was made available to the Trust in September 2002.
Phase II of the PFI scheme was the refurbishment of the existing Ruskin Wing.
£'000
75,679

Net book value of the PFI scheme
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17. Prudential borrowing limit
The NHS Foundation Trust is required to comply and remain within a prudential borrowing limit.
This is made up of two elements:
i the maximum cumulative amount of long-term borrowing that enables the NHS foundation trust to remain within the limit set by
Monitor.

A Tier 1 Limit is set by Monitor for NHS foundation trust based on their annual plans and in accordance with the ratios below. This limit
applies for the whole year, subject only to material changes in the financial position of the NHSFT during the year.

A Tier 2 Limit is available, in appropriate circumstances, to accommodate affordable 'major investments' including PFI schemes. When an
NHS foundation trust is planning a transaction that would exceed its Tier 1 Limit, it is required to submit a request to Monitor for a Tier 2
Limit, which, if approved, will replace the Tier 1 Limit. The Tier 2 limit will be subject to a maximum cap, determined through the ratio tests
used in setting the Tier 1 limit, but with the thresholds shown below.

Actual Ratio
2011/12

Actual Ratio
2010/11

Tier 1 PBC
Ratio
Thresholds

Tier 2 Cap
Ratio
Thresholds

Minimum dividend cover

3.02

2.76

>1x

>1x

Minimum interest cover

3.34

3.23

>3x

>2x

Minimum debt service cover

2.83

2.74

>2x

>1.5x

1.93%

2.00%

<2.5%

<10%

Financial Ratio

Maximum debt service to revenue

ii the amount of any working capital facility approved by Monitor.

The limit on the Working Capital Facility is set annually by Monitor, although variations can be requested within the year by an NHS
foundation trust or proposed by Monitor. The size of the facility will vary according to individual circumstances of each NHS foundation trust.
The Working Capital Facility is available, up to its own limit, for for short-term cash flow management.

31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000
£'000
Total long term borrowing limit set by Monitor
Working capital facility agreed by Monitor

124,100
35,000

114,900
35,000

TOTAL PRUDENTIAL BORROWING LIMIT

159,100

149,900

Long term borrowing at 1 April
Net actual borrowing/(repayment) in year - long term
Long term borrowing at 31 March
Working capital borrowing at 1 April
Net actual borrowing/(repayment) in year - working capital
Working capital borrowing at 31 March

92,114
(1,775)

93,701
(1,587)

90,339

92,114

0
0

0
0

0

0

Further information on the NHS Foundation Trust Prudential Borrowing Code and Compliance Framework can be found on the website of
Monitor, the Independent Regulator of Foundation Trusts.
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18. Provisions for liabilities and charges

18.1 Provisions for liabilities and charges 2011/2012

Pensions
relating to
other staff
£'000

Legal claims
£'000

Redundancy
£'000

Other
£'000

Total
£'000

At 1 April 2011
Arising during the year
Utilised during the year
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount

7,511
41
(682)
(142)
188

154
101
(61)
(38)
0

1,164
0
(1,164)
0
0

191
144
(191)
0
0

9,020
286
(2,098)
(180)
188

At 31 March 2012

6,916

156

0

144

7,216

Expected timing of cashflows:
not later than one year
later than one year and not later than five years
later than five years

684
2,736
3,496

156
0
0

0
0
0

144
0
0

984
2,736
3,496

Total

6,916

156

0

144

7,216

Legal claims
£'000

Redundancy
£'000

18.2 Provisions for liabilities and charges 2010/2011

Pensions
relating to
other staff
£'000

Other
£'000

Total
£'000

At 1 April 2010
Change in the discount rate
Arising during the year
Utilised during the year
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount

8,784
(764)
0
(687)
0
178

152
0
78
(26)
(50)
0

0
0
1,164
0
0
0

71
0
191
(71)
0
0

9,007
(764)
1,433
(784)
(50)
178

At 31 March 2011

7,511

154

1,164

191

9,020

Expected timing of cashflows:
not later than one year
later than one year and not later than five years
later than five years

704
2,816
3,991

154
0
0

1,164
0
0

191
0
0

2,213
2,816
3,991

Total

7,511

154

1,164

191

9,020

Clinical Negligence
£84,060,545 is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority at 31 March 2012 in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of the trust. The
NHS Litigation Authority is carrying provisions with a value of £117,501 in relation to ELS and £83,943,044 in relation to CNST for King's College Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust. The ELS (Existing Liabilities Scheme) was superceded by the CNST (Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts).
Pensions
The measure of the Trust's pension liability for early retired staff was recalculated in 2001/02. The NHS Pension Agency capitalisation tables for the
NHS Pension Scheme were used to determine the full liability rather than using the average retirement age of the employees minus average current
cost of these employees.
Legal Claims
The provision is based upon information provided by the NHS Litigation Authority and refers to non-clinical claims against the Trust (e.g. Public and
Employers Liability cases)
Other
The Foundation Trust has provided £78k for retrospective remuneration for Neurology consultants on-call and £66k for outstanding Employment
Tribunal cases and associated legal fees.
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19. Revaluation reserve
31 March 2012
31 March 2011
Revaluation
Reserve -property,
Total Revaluation Total Revaluation
plant and
Reserve
Reserve
equipment
£'000
£'000
£'000

Revaluation
Reserve intangibles
£'000
Revaluation reserve at 1 April
Prior period adjustment - note 28
Revaluation reserve at 1 April - restated

48
0
48

88,700
0
88,700

88,748
0
88,748

81,114
2,180
83,294

0
0
0

(5,549)
2,956
(176)

(5,549)
2,956
(176)

(1,739)
8,698
(1,505)

48

85,931

85,979

88,748

31 March 2012
£'000

31 March 2011
£'000

At 1 April
Net change in year

22,696
4,911

12,838
9,858

At 31 March

27,607

22,696

6,008
21,599

13,925
8,771

27,607

22,696

Impairments
Revaluations
Asset disposals
Revaluation reserve at 31 March

20. Cash and cash equivalents

Broken down into:
Cash at commercial banks and in hand
Cash with the Government Banking Service
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21. Contractual capital commitments
Commitments under capital expenditure contracts at 31 March 2012 were £8.565m (31 March 2011: £3.551m).
These contracts comprise the completion of the Clinical Research Facility (£1.338m), the Emergency Department (£1.1m), Unit 6 Coldharbour Lane
(£2.127m), the Maternity department (£1m) and the Endoscopy department (£3m).
It is anticipated that all these projects will be completed in the next financial year.

22. Events after the reporting period
There are no post Statement of Financial Position events having a material effect on the accounts. (31 March 2011: there were no post Statement of
Financial Position events having a material effect on the accounts.)

23. Contingent (liabilities) / assets
31 March 2012
£'000

31 March 2011
£'000

Contingent liabilities

(70)

(76)

Net value of contingent liabilities

(70)

(76)

The above contingencies refer to non-clinical legal claims, dealt with by the NHS Litigation Authority on behalf of the Trust.
In common with many other Trusts, it is possible that other claims could arise in the future due to incidents which have already occurred. The future
expenditure which may arise from such incidents cannot be determined until such time as a claim is formally made.
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24. Related party transactions
King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is a body corporate established by order of the Secretary of State for Health.

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year King's College Hospital NHS Trust has had a significant number of
material transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.

The main local commissioners are Lambeth PCT, Southwark PCT and Lewisham PCT. Additionally the Trust has transacted with a large number
of other PCTs and NHS Trusts as well as the NHS Litigation Authority and NHS Business Services Authority (including NHS Supply Chain). The
Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds, principally the King's College Hospital Charitable
Trust.
Value of transactions/balances (other than salary) with related parties in
2011/12
Department of Health
Guys And St Thomas NHS Foundation Trust
Medway NHS Foundation Trust
South London And Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust
East Kent Hospitals University NHS Foundation Trust
South London Healthcare NHS Trust
The Lewisham Healthcare NHS Trust
London Strategic Health Authority
Bexley NHS Care Trust PCT
Bromley PCT
Croydon PCT
Eastern And Coastal Kent PCT
Greenwich Teaching PCT
Lambeth PCT
Lewisham PCT
Medway PCT
Southwark PCT
West Kent PCT
West Sussex PCT
NHS Litigation Authority
South East Essex PCT
NHS Blood and Transplant (excluding Bio Products Laboratory)
National Patient Safety Agency
NHS Business Services Authority (incl NHS Supply Chain)
Other NHS Bodies
HM Revenue & Customs
Charitable Funds
GSTS Pathology LLP Associate

Income
£'000
3,232
5,176
873
1,693
292
803
1,145
79,587
14,627
30,460
66,474
20,667
18,033
92,986
42,595
6,984
119,546
30,491
10,120
0
6,443
1,224
0
818
40,325
0
1,965
21,938

Expenditure
£'000

Receivables
£'000

1,485
3,740
173
1,188
213
109
2,150
0
0
0
0
0
0
113
43
0
791
0
0
8,936
0
66
0
0
19,563
0
8
28,844

0
1,885
293
714
75
445
283
2,175
303
238
426
741
224
955
505
325
1,371
853
127
0
424
31
0
3
16,357
2,044
301
737

Payables
£'000
239
3,471
223
303
39
197
828
547
20
72
40
0
0
141
152
0
840
0
0
0
0
479
487
2,094
10,885
0
0
0

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other Government Departments and other central and local Government
bodies. There were also many transactions with King's College London in respect of education, training and research and development.
During the year none of the Board Members, the Foundation Trust's Governers, members of the key management staff or parties related to
them has undertaken any material transactions with King's College Hospital NHS Trust.
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25. Financial instruments

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.
The Trust does not have any complex financial instruments and does not hold or issue financial instruments for speculative trading purposes. Because of the
continuing service provider relationship that the NHS Foundation Trust has with Primary Care Trusts and the way those Primary Care Trusts are financed, the NHS
Foundation Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities.
Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which these standards mainly
apply. The NHS Foundation Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational
activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the NHS Foundation Trust in undertaking its activities.
The Foundation Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the Foundation
Trust’s Standing Financial Instructions and policies agreed by the Board of Directors. Foundation Trust treasury activity is subject to review by the Trust’s internal
auditors.
Liquidity risk

The Foundation Trust’s net operating costs are incurred under annual service agreements with Primary Care Trusts, which are financed from resources voted
annually by Parliament. The Foundation Trust also largely finances its capital expenditure from funds made available from Government under an agreed borrowing
limit. King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.
Interest-rate risk

55% of the Foundation Trust's financial assets and 100% of its financial liabilities carry nil or fixed rates of interest. King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is
not, therefore, exposed to significant interest-rate risk. The two tables below show the interest rate profiles of the Foundation Trust's financial assets and liabilities.
Currency risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and Sterling based. The Trust has no
overseas operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
Credit risk

Because the majority of the Trust’s income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum
exposures as at 31 March 2012 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the Trade receivables and other receivables note (Note 12).

25.1 Financial assets
Fixed rate

Currency

Total
£'000

Floating rate
£'000

Non-interest
bearing
£'000

Fixed rate
£'000

Weighted
average
interest rate
%

Weighted
average period
for which fixed
Years

Non-interest
bearing
weighted
average term
Years

At 31 March 2012
Sterling
Gross financial assets

60,764
60,764

27,607
27,607

0
0

33,157
33,157

0.3% unlimited

0

At 31 March 2011
Sterling
Gross financial assets

59,180
59,180

22,696
22,696

2,101
2,101

34,383
34,383

0.6% unlimited

0

25.2 Financial liabilities
Fixed rate

Currency

Total
£'000

Floating rate
£'000

Fixed rate
£'000

Non-interest
bearing
£'000

Weighted
average
interest rate
%

Weighted
average period
for which fixed
Years

Non-interest
bearing
weighted
average term
Years

At 31 March 2012
Sterling
Gross financial liabilities

153,667
153,667

0
0

97,213
97,213

56,454
56,454

10.2% unlimited

0

At 31 March 2011
Sterling
Gross financial liabilities

146,404
146,404

0
0

101,134
101,134

45,270
45,270

4.8% unlimited

0
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25.3 Foreign currency risk
The Trust has no/negligible foreign currency income or expenditure.
25.4 Financial instruments by category
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000
£'000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)

Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities

60,765

59,180

60,765

59,180

153,667

146,404

153,667

146,404

25.5 Maturity of financial liabilities
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
£'000
£'000
In one year or less
In more than one year but not more than two years
In more than two years but not more than five years
In more than five years

58,963
2,718
8,001
83,985

49,376
2,672
7,802
86,554

153,667

146,404

25.6 Fair values of financial instruments at 31 March 2012

Book Value
£'000
30,203

Fair value
£'000
30,203

Total

30,203

30,203

Financial Liabilities
Provisions under contract
Loans
Other

6,232
12,084
76,388

6,232
12,084
76,388

Total

94,704

94,704

Financial assets
Other

Basis of fair
valuation

Note a

Notes
a. Fair value is not significantly different from book value since, in the calculation of book value, the expected cash flows have been
discounted by the Treasury discount rate of 2.2% in real terms.
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26. Third party assets

The Trust held £43,544 cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2012 (£14,530 at 31 March 2011) which relates to monies held by the NHS
Trust on behalf of patients. This has been excluded from cash at bank and in hand figure reported in the accounts.
2011/2012
Money on
Bank Balances
Deposit
£'000
£'000
At 1 April
Gross inflows
Gross Outflows
At 31 March

2010/2011
Money on
Bank Balances
Deposit
£'000
£'000

15
75
(46)

0
0
0

6
58
(50)

0
0
0

44

0

15

0

27. Losses and special payments
There were 369 cases of losses and special payments (436 cases in 2010/11) totalling £542,525 (£653,661 in 2010/11) paid during the year
ending 31 March 2012. These amounts are reported on an accruals basis but exclude provisions for future losses.

28. Change in accounting policy prior period adjustment (note 1.8 iv)
28.1 Reconciliation of reported profits for the year ended 31 March 2011

OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
Operating Income from continuing operations
Operating Expenses of continuing operations
OPERATING SURPLUS

2010/2011

Donations

Government
Grants

£'000

£'000

£'000

585,967
(567,195)
18,772

FINANCE COSTS
Finance income
Finance expense - financial liabilities
Finance expense - unwinding of discount on provisions
PDC Dividends payable
NET FINANCE COSTS

Share of loss of associate accounted for using the equity method
Corporation tax expense
Surplus from continuing operations
Surplus/(deficit) of discontinued operations and the gain/(loss) on
disposal of discontinued operations
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income
Impairments
Revaluations
Receipt of donated assets
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE) / INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

107
(9,611)
(178)
(8,195)
(17,877)

0
0
0
0
0

(217)
0
678

0
0
734

0

0

678

734

(1,809)
8,170
1,332
7,693

Prior period adjustments
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE) / INCOME FOR THE YEAR
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804
(70)
734

70
528
(1,332)
(734)

2010/2011
Restated
£'000

(57)
0
(57)

586,714
(567,265)
19,449

0
0
0
0
0

107
(9,611)
(178)
(8,195)
(17,877)

0
0
(57)

0

(217)
0
1,355

0

(57)

1,355

0
0
0
0

(1,739)
8,698
0
6,959

0

0

0

8,371

0

(57)

0
8,314
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28.2 Reconciliation of equity and net assets as at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010

31 March 2011

Donations

Government
Grants

£'000

£'000

£'000

31 March
2011
Restated
£'000

31 March
2010

Donations

Government
Grants

£'000

£'000

£'000

31 March
2010
Restated
£'000

Current liabilities
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities

(3,738)
(66,212)

0
0

147
147

(3,591)
(66,065)

(3,186)
(51,933)

0
0

204
204

(2,982)
(51,729)

Total assets less current liabilities

359,589

0

147

359,736

354,127

0

204

354,331

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED

262,561

0

147

262,708

254,140

0

204

254,344

0
0
147

88,748
0
38,382

81,114
17,378
20,120

2,180
(17,378)
15,198

0
0
204

83,294
0
35,522

147

262,708

254,140

0

204

254,344

Financed by (taxpayers' equity)
Revaluation reserve
Donated Asset Reserve
Income and expenditure reserve
TOTAL TAXPAYERS' EQUITY

86,297
18,175
22,511
262,561

2,451
(18,175)
15,724
0

The 31 March 2011 adjustments are cumulative and include the adjustments made at 31 March 2010.
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Who to contact to clarify details of this report:
Jane Walters
Director of Corporate Affairs & Trust Secretary
King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Denmark Hill
London SE5 9RS
Telephone: 020 3299 1680
Email: janewalters@nhs.net
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